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A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last

five financial years is as follows:

RESULTS

AEEBEREMBFEZETEES
YRR T ¢

ES

Year ended 31 December

HZT-B=t-HLEE

CEBE - BERSE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1f —E-NE —Z-=% “T——F F——F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETT ARETT AREFTT AREFT
(Restated)
()
Revenue Wi 1,087,737 830,704 634,171 498,834 556,868
Cost of sales SHERA (862,401) (656,811) (501,659) (400,622) (436,163)
Gross profit ES | 225,336 173,893 132,512 98,212 120,705
Other income and expenses,  EHWA KGR
other gains and losses Efa REE (11,340) (16,990) 31,168 5,979 63212
Selling and distribution HERSHRY
expenses (82,575) (46,745) (37,678) (25,575) (24,236)
Research and development  HE
expenditure (36,571) (25,135) (19,284) (17,600) (17,743)
Administrative expenses TBAX (83,209) (48,388) (44,314) (36,483) (32,817)
Listing expenses IsilEh T o - - - (14,908)
Finance costs BEKAR (35,961) (31,629) (13,654) (13,317) (15,113)
(Loss) profit before tax BEA (1) ) (24,320) 5,006 48,750 11216 69,100
Taxation BB (3,390) .449) 19.455) 13,79 (12,207
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)ER (27,10 2,557 39,29 7422 56,893
Qther comprehensive income/ Bt 2EE/F%
expense
ltems that may be reclassified ~ E# a2 E# 7%
subsequently to profit or loss:  /EzA1ER -
Exchange difference arising oM £7514E
on translation of foreign FELEH
operation =8 1,198 (44) (265) (207) -
(Loss) profit and total ER(BE)EHR
comprehensive (expense) 2EFEZ)HA
income for the year pak (26,512) 2,513 39,030 7,215 56,893
(Loss) profit for the year FEIER(ER)
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company KATEEA (22,631) 2,557 39,295 7422 56,893
Non-controlling interests SERRRIES (5,079) - - - -
(27,10) 2,557 39,295 71422 56,893
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Financial Summary (Continued)

BB ERBR (&)

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
= “F-mF “F=F —FIF FfF

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT AREFT AREFL NS
(Restated)

(=51

Total comprehensive (expense) FEE2E(FIZ)MA

income attributable to: EEE
Owners of the Company KRR A (21,433) 2,513 39,030 7215 56,893
Non-controlling interests FERRER (5,079) - - - -
(26,512) 2,513 39,030 7,215 56,893
(Loss) earnings per share HhR(ER) AT
- Basic (RMB) -ER(AR%T) (0.06) 0.01 0.1 0.02 0.23

Note: To conform with the presentation of the financial it AEERE-_ZT-—AFT_A=+—HIEFEIBRRNEIHA
statements for year ended 31 December 2015, ER—B LRSI 2 RE 2 IR RATERIER X ERER T
warranty expenses in the consolidated statements of FE(TES -
comprehensive income shown above have been restated
on the same basis.

As at 31 December

Rt=A=1+-H

2015 2014 2013 2011

ZZ-5f —T-ImF —T-=F - 3 —T——F

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥ETR AREFL ARETT ARETT AREFT

Non-current assets FnBEE 707,996 677,403 683,817 561,344 449,026

Current assets TEEE 1,169,575 666,980 501,588 384,047 455521

Total assets BEBE 1,877,571 1,344,383 1,185,405 945,391 904,547

Current liabilities SEAE (1,046,259) (797,127) (655,080) (580,024) (462,911)
Total assets less current BEAERTHAR

liabilities 831,312 547,256 530,325 365,367 441,636

Non-current liabilities reak (77,276) (157,882) (143,464) (83,828) (167,312)

Owner's equity BB NER 754,036 389,374 386,861 281,539 274,324

Non-controlling interests SERI S 125,341 - - - -

Equity attributable to owners AR FEE A
of the Company ElhiEas 628,695 389,374 386,861 281,639 274,324
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Dear ’

On behalf of the board of directors of China First Capital Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”), | hereby gladly present the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Since 2014, the Group has started to diversify the scope of business and venture into financial, investment and related
services as part of the Group's transformation strategy, to further expand its asset portfolio and sources of revenue.
The year 2015 was the first year for the Group to implement comprehensive transformation and venture into new
businesses. Despite the adverse economic conditions such as the slowdown in China’s economic growth, slow
recovery of the global economy, wide fluctuations in stock market as well as volatile commodity prices and exchange
rates, the Group managed to achieve breakthroughs in all its business segments.

Following the acquisition of an asset management company in the end of 2014, the Group continued to develop its
financial-related business in 2015, and acquired two immigration advisory service firms successively. Leveraging on
their well-established networks and extensive resources in key cities in China and overseas regions, the firms have
been generating synergies by bringing high net-worth customers to our asset management business. During the year,
the Group also established First Capital Securities Limited which has been officially licensed and approved to carry out
securities trading business.

During the period together with Surrich International, which is a subsidiary of the largest state-owned enterprise in Wuxi
of Jiangsu Province, Wuxi Guolian Development (Group) Co., Ltd.,, and New Citic International Capital Co., LTD, the
Group established Guolian Financial Holding Group Co., Limited. Capitalizing on the full-ranged financial licences and
clientele of Guolian Group in China as well as the Group’s financial platform in Hong Kong, we provide our customers
with more professional and comprehensive domestic and foreign financial services.

The transformation of the Group has also attracted new funding. In 2015, two share placements were conducted by the
Company. An aggregated amount of net proceeds of over HKD330 million were raised and provided a powerful capital
support for accelerating the arrangement of transformation.

For the industrial segment, the Chinese automobile manufacturing industry developed persistently in 2015, yet
slower growth was seen. Despite rising costs and increasingly competitive business environment over the years, our
automobile component manufacturing business has achieved a considerable growth in 2015 thanks to our refined
management, continuous investment and proactive development in the recent years. Also, we successfully established
a joint venture with our core management during the fiscal year. This move has alleviated the Group's capital pressure
arising from its constant demand for capital investment and high debt ratio.

Looking forward to 2016, the Chinese leaders’ Silk Road Economic Belt and 21st Century Maritime Silk Road initiative
will boost the demand for infrastructure in the areas along the Belt and Road'’s twin corridors and facilitate trade and
investment and achieve deepening financial integration. By capitalizing on Hong Kong's advantages, as a financial hub,
in experience and talents, the Group will seize this opportunity to provide financial services for constructing “One Belt,
One Road”.

The Group will continue to implement the transformation and consolidate its financial business. Meanwhile, it will also
invest in industry and build a platform with integrated production and financing capabilities. For the financial arm, the
Group will continue to strengthen its advantages as a fully licensed financial institution. In addition to its existing licences
for Type 1, Type 4 and Type 9 regulated activities granted by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC"), the Group
plans to apply for the SFC's licence for Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities in order to develop
investment banking business with an aim of providing a more comprehensive investment and financing services to the
high net-worth customers and institutional investors of the Group’s assets management and securities business.

|u

Stepping into the “New Normal” era, the Chinese economy has been experiencing slower growth which affects the
overall consumer market to a certain extent. Nevertheless, with the nation-wide implementation of the “two-child
policy”, the government’s support in the development of private education sector and increasing demand for quality
education driven by the rise of middle class, there is tremendous market opportunities in Chinese education sector.
The Group will explore the sector, invest in and operate potential education-related enterprises. It is also committed to
constructing an integrated and international platform for education business investments and operations.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all shareholders and business partners for their
generous support, as well as to all the management members and staff for their unfailing devotion and contribution.
Although the economic environment in 2016 is full of challenges, the management remains cautiously optimistic about
the development of the Group. We will overcome the challenges and grasp new development opportunities. We expect
to achieve a better result in the next year and deliver greater returns for all our shareholders.

Wilson SEA
Chairman and Executive Director
28 March 2016
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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INTRODUCTION

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is mainly engaged in the research and development, design,
manufacturing and sale of various automobile shock-absorbers,
and has over 50 years of experience in the automobile industry.
Since the end of 2014, the Group has started to engage
in certain new businesses, including investment migration
consultancy service, financial advisory and consultancy services,
financial credit service and securities brokerage service, to
facilitate the diversification of the Group’s business, and further
expand its asset portfolios and sources of revenue.

MARKET REVIEW

In 2015, the sales volume of automobiles in the PRC was
24,597,600 units, representing an increase of approximately
4.68% compared to that of 2014, while the rate of growth
decreased by 2.18 percentage points year-on-year (source:
China Association of Automobile Manufacturers). Under the
business environment of rising manufacturing cost in the
PRC and increasingly intense competition, with our refined
production management, sustainable investment in fixed
assets as well as research and development, and active market
development, our automobile component manufacturing
business has achieved considerable growth in 2015.

The Group sold a total of 8,682,000 units of automobile shock-
absorbers for the year ended 31 December 2015, representing
a growth of 1,539,000 units or 21.5% over the corresponding
period last year. The Group's sales income of automobile shock-
absorbers amounted to RMB1,082 million, representing an
increase of RMB251.3 million or 30.3% over the corresponding
period last year.

Following the acquisition of First Capital Asset Management
Limited (formerly known as First Capital Financial Limited) in
2014, the Group continued to make active efforts to develop
the finance-related business, and acquired Shenzhen Crown
Bridge Migration Consultancy Limited and Shenzhen Juntuo
Migration Consultancy Service Limited in 2015. Despite of the
stricter migration policy for overseas regions including Hong
Kong, leveraging on the market network and resources in the
key cities in the PRC and overseas regions of the two migration
companies, synergistic effect has been generated by bringing
high-net-worth customers to the Group’s asset management
business. The commencement of those businesses generated
a revenue of RMB5.7 million for the Group in 2015.

e

ARBH/—FREZEBR AT - FEETBREZE
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% el Bl

RZZT—AFE  FEERSHEHE42,459.76
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEWR DT (E)

In response to the requirements of the commencement of the
new businesses including investment migration consultancy
services and financial advisory services, the significant increase
in initial promotional cost and operational expenses of new
businesses for the current period resulted in a loss attributable
to shareholders of the Group of approximately RMB22.6 million
in 2015, as compared to a profit recorded by the Group of
approximately RMB2.6 million over the corresponding period
last year.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2016, the Chinese leaders’ Silk Road
Economic Belt and 21st Century Maritime Silk Road initiative
will boost the demand for infrastructure in the areas along
the Belt and Road's twin corridors and facilitate trade and
investment and achieve deepening financial integration. By
capitalizing on Hong Kong's advantages, as a financial hub, in
experience and talents, the Group will seize this opportunity
to provide financial services for constructing “One Belt, One
Road".

In addition, while the United States is gradually shifting towards
the normalization of interest rates, China, Japan and the Euro
zone have adopted a more relaxed monetary policy, resulting in
the diverging trend of interest rates for main economies. Along
with the change of the market's expectation about the one-
way appreciation of RMB, it is believed that the demand for
overseas assets from the high net-worth customers in the PRC
will increase, benefiting the asset management business of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEWR DN (E)

REREFHEESANER  AEEKERE
BELA T EVERAR

To create highest values for the shareholders and stakeholders,
the Group will implement the following strategies proactively:

To diversify its business and widen its sources of revenue,
the Group has embarked on certain new businesses
(the “New Businesses”), including investment Migration
consulting service as well as financial consulting service,
and built a new platform for the New Businesses for
a better development by conducting acquisitions and
establishing joint-venture partnerships with reputable
companies. Meanwhile, a synergy of each business can be
created to increase the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The Group will continue to implement the transformation
and consolidate its financial business. Meanwhile, it will
also invest in industry and build a platform with integrated
production and financing capabilities. For the financial arm,
the Group will continue to strengthen its advantages as a
fully licensed financial institution. In addition to its existing
licences for Type 1, Type 4 and Type 9 regulated activities
under the SFO, the Group plans to apply for the licence of
Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities
under the SFO in Hong Kong, to develop investment
banking business with an aim of providing a more
comprehensive investment and financing services to the
high net-worth customers and institutional investors of the
Group's assets management and securities business.

RETICHARAER 2 215 R EMR AW
AEBECDRRERRE THEF(THE
%) BRREBRERRE RSB H
BERRTS - WiBBWEAREERR TN
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEWR DT (E)

() Facilitating the growth of automotive component (ll) #ESESHAHRELEBHRE

manufacturing business

The Group will continue to implement the development
strategies in relation to the automotive component
manufacturing business by adhering to the following
specific measures:

(1) taking advantage of the expanded production facilities
to enhance production capacity and efficiency;

(2) exploring new customers, new products and new
market segments to increase market share;

(3) enhancing the level of research and development and
technologies to strengthen competitiveness;

(4) maintaining cost advantages;

(5) developing the shock absorber market for railway
transportation; and

(6) pursuing expansion of business through investments,
acquisitions and mergers.

(lll) Indirectly investing the solar energy and clean

energy segments

On 29 December 2015, together with Surrich International
Company Limited, which is a subsidiary of the largest
state-owned enterprise in Wuxi of Jiangsu Province, Wuxi
Guolian Development (Group) Co., Ltd., and New Citic
International Capital Co., Ltd, the Group established Guolian
Financial Holding Group Co., Limited (“GF Holding”). On
11 January 2016, GF Holding entered into a subscription
agreement with Comtec Solar System Group Limited to
subscribe for approximately 29% of the latter’'s enlarged
issued share capital. This demonstrates that we are
optimistic about the development and prospects of solar
and clean energy segments which will indirectly generate
future returns to the shareholders.
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Stepping into the “New Normal” era, the Chinese
economy has been experiencing slower growth which
affects the overall consumer market to a certain extent.
Nevertheless, with the nation-wide implementation the
“two-child policy”, the government’'s support in the
development of private education sector and increasing
demand for quality education driven by the rise of middle
class, there is tremendous market opportunities in Chinese
education sector. The Group will explore the sector, invest
in and operate potential education-related enterprises.
The finance segment under the Group is able to provide
various financing channels and proposal for the investment
in educational projects, striving to construct an integrated
financial platform for education business investments and
operations.

The Group strongly believes that by consistently
implementing the above strategies, the Group will be able
to continue to strengthen and enhance its competitive
edges, and maintain its leading position in the respective
market, fully satisfy the increasing demand for the products
and services from customers, grasp the opportunities for
growth from the changes in the market, and create long-
term values and returns for shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s revenue
for sales of automotive components increased by 30.3% to
RMB1,082.0 million from RMB830.7 million in 2014. Such
increase was primarily due to the Group's continuous efforts
in developing new products simultaneously to meet the
needs of automobile manufacturers to secure new purchase
orders and enhancement of the market share. Meanwhile, the
Group's new businesses, the financial and consultancy advisory
services, also contributed a revenue of RMB5.7 million to the
Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's cost
of sales of automotive components increased by 31.3% to
RMB862.4 million from RMB656.8 million in 2014, which was
mainly driven by the increased sales volume of our products.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the overall gross profit
of the Group increased by 29.6% to RMB225.3 million from
RMB173.9 million in 2014. It was mainly due to the increase in
the sales of automotive components business. The gross profit
derived from the New Businesses was RMB5.7 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, gross profit margin of
automotive components business decreased by 0.6 percentage
points to 20.3% from 20.9% in 2014. It was mainly due to the
increase of production costs was not completely offset by that
of sales volume.

The other income and expenses, other gains and losses
decreased by 33.5% from a loss of RMB17.0 million in 2014
to a loss of RMB11.3 million in 2015. Such losses were
mainly due to the combination of the following factors: (i)
after relocation to a new plant area, Nanyang Cijan cleaned
up losses of assets, including disposal of returned goods and
losses of retired facilities, of approximately RMB12.5 million; (ii)
a government grant received by Nanyang Cijan for the period
was approximately RMB5.9 million; and (iii) an impairment of
investment of approximately RMB6.9 million as a result of
acquisition of a subsidiary for the Group's diversification of
business in 2015.

Selling and distribution expenses increased by 76.9% from
RMB46.7 million in 2014 to RMB82.6 million in 2015. Such
increase was primarily due to an increase in sales volume of the
automotive components business resulting in an increase in the
transportation costs, and the increase in after-sale expenses
in response to customers’ requirement. In addition, the Group
has started to develop its migration advisory and financial
consultancy services in 2015, and the corresponding business
promotion activities also resulted in an increase of overall
selling expenses.
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The research and development expenses are primarily the
research and development related costs of the Group's
automotive components business. Such cost increased by
45.8% from RMB25.1 million in 2014 to RMB36.6 million in
2015. Such increase in the expenses was primarily due to
(i) increased efforts on the research of applying the shock-
absorber related technology to different brands and models
of automobiles; and (ii) additional development costs of shock
absorbers for newly-developed automobiles.

The administrative expenses increased by 71.9% from
RMB48.4 million in 2014 to RMB83.2 million in 2015. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase in the office and
administrative expenses from the commencement of new
businesses, including expenses such as rentals of office
premises, wages, welfare and related social insurance premium
for administrative staff.

Finance costs increased by 13.9% from RMB31.6 million
in 2014 to approximately RMB36.0 million in 2015. Such
increase was mainly due to an increase in the working capital
required for the expansion of the production and operation
of shock absorber manufacturing business as well as the
commencement of new businesses including migration and
financial consultancy services during the period, which resulted
in the increase of the relevant finance costs.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's overall
income tax expense was approximately RMB3.4 million,
increased by RMB1.0 million or approximately 41.7% over
2014. The increase in income tax expense was mainly due to
an increase in the amount of tax payable generated by Nanyang
Cijan.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a
loss of RMB27.7 million as compared with a gain of RMB2.6
million in the corresponding period of 2014. Such decrease
was mainly due to the fact that the newly added significant
expenses including start-up expenses, related operational
and promotional expenses in response of the need for new
business. In addition, the increased income of the shock
absorber business in 2015 was offset by the increased
expenses during the period, especially the special provision for
receivables for specific customer and the increase of loss from
disposal of inventory.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s net current assets was
RMB123.3 million as compared to the net current liabilities of
RMB130.1 million as at 31 December 2014. Such change was
due to new investors’ recognition of the development direction
of the new business during the year. The fund raised through
two share placements during the year further increased the
capital strength of the Company, and resulted in significant
increase in net current assets and bank deposits balance as at
the end of the period.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND BANK BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2015, the Group's total cash and bank
balances, most of which were denominated in RMB and
HK dollars, amounted to approximately RMB402.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 364.2% as compared
with that of approximately RMB86.8 million, most of which
were denominated in RMB and HK dollars, as at 31 December
2014. Such increase was mainly due to the fund raised from the
share placements for the Group's diversification of business, in
addition to the cash recovery from traditional operating activities
for automotive components.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's total borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB498.9 million, representing
an increase of approximately 2.5% as compared with that
of RMB486.6 million as at 31 December 2014. Of which,
short-term borrowings due within one year amounted to
approximately RMB436.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 28.9% as compared with that of approximately
RMB338.7 million as at 31 December 2014, while mid-to-long-
term borrowings due after one year and more amounted to
approximately RMB62.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 57.8% as compared with that of approximately
RMB147.8 million as at 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s gearing ratio, presented
as a percentage of total borrowings and bills payable divided by
total assets, was approximately 32.6% (2014: approximately
42.3%).
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WORKING CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's net inventories, mainly
comprising raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
products, amounted to approximately RMB102.0 million,
representing a decrease of 13.5% from approximately
RMB117.9 million as at 31 December 2014. The management
of the Group reviews and monitors the inventory level on a
regular basis. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the
average inventory turnover days were 46.5 days (2014: 56.0
days). Inventory turnover days were arrived at by dividing the
average of the opening and ending balances of inventory during
the period by cost of sales for the period and multiplied by 365
days.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's trade receivables
amounted to approximately RMB379.9 million, representing an
increase of 15.7% from approximately RMB328.3 million as at
31 December 2014. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
the average turnover days of trade receivables were 118.8
days (2014: 130.5 days). Turnover days of trade receivables
were arrived at by dividing the average of the opening and
ending balances of trade receivables during the period by sales
volume for the period and multiplied by 365 days. The decrease
in the average turnover days of trade receivables was mainly
due to enhancement of cooperation with key customers and
continuously striving for long-lasting and favorable cooperation
conditions, so long as the Group maintained sustainable
revenue growth.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's trade payables amounted
to approximately RMB357.4 million, representing an increase of
33% from approximately RMB268.7 million as at 31 December
2014. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the average
turnover days of trade payables were 132.5 days (2014: 131.7
days). The turnover days of trade payables were arrived at by
dividing the average of the opening and ending balances of
trade payables during the period by cost of sales for the period
and multiplied by 365 days. The turnover days of trade payables
in 2015 have no significant changes as compared with those in
the previous year.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, capital expenditures
of the Group were approximately RMB72.4 million (2014:
RMB52.8 million). The Group’s capital expenditures were
primarily related to an acquisition of land use rights, and the
expenses for construction of production facilities, plants,
machinery and equipment for the business expansion of
Nanyang Cijan production base.

The Group has been financing its capital expenditures primarily
through cash generated from operations and bank borrowings.

The Group will continue to expand its existing production
facilities and construct new plants as part of its plan to expand
production facilities. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had
capital commitments for acquisition of plant and machinery of
approximately RMB28.9 million (2014: RMB28.3 million).

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk on the variable rate of interest earned on
the restricted bank balances and bank balances. The Group's
borrowings have fixed interest rates and therefore, are subject
to fair value interest rate risk.

If interest rate of variable-rate bank balances had been 10
basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December
2015 would decrease/increase by approximately RMB439,000
(2014: RMB145,000 increase/decrease in the Group's profit).
In the director’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis above is
unrepresentative for the interest rate risk as the exposure at
the end of reporting period does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

The Group monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

BEXFAREREE

RBE-_ZT-—HAF+_A=1t—RHILFE K&
HERARXBOARE72ARET(ZZ—F :
AR¥628BETT) - AEBEEAHAXTEABY
B Mg  EEEERERBE - #BRER
W2 - AMERGHATREE R« ¥ B0 E -

AEE-EXRBERLERRITERELZRE
REBRRASEE

ANEE B S 4 B IR R EL IR B A A AR K B TR
B ERETEEREZ 5D  c R=ZF—AF
+ZA=+—8  AEERKERERERZE
REBEHARB289FETL(ZE—IF : ARK

i —

28.3BBIT) °

A=

MEREBRA-IFESHTENAFERAREDR
£ 715 [ T 355 81| SR B 7 R B P s SR B LB o AR R
2 [ 52 R Il SR 7T A R S SR 1T A8 BR AT IR ER B 71 2 Y
AEMEMEHRERENEXEAR - REENHE
FABEME S - MEBAFENXRRTE -

i) 2 BRI TAE AR TR EF+ B 10{EE B M AT
FEMERERTE  AAEEHE-_T—RF
+—A=+—HIEFENBEERD EMHOA
FR#439,0007C(=Z — M4 : #in, W AEE
Al A RH145,0007T) - EFRA - ARHREH
RE) RS T RE RBLFE AN RS - A ESRE DT
TRER KA ERR -

AEBERFIRAR - LHRVBEEEEHE
AR o



18 Annual Report 2015 4F£§

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEWR DN (E)

FE E#E£E AR 2 7 China First Capital Group Limited

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The businesses of the Group are located in the PRC and Hong
Kong, and its major operating transactions are denominated in
RMB and HK dollars. Except certain bank balances and other
borrowings of the Group and certain professional payables are
denominated in HK dollars and US dollars mainly because of
the listing of the Company, most of the assets and liabilities
of the Group are denominated in RMB or HK dollars. Since
RMB is not freely convertible, there exists the risk that the
PRC Government may implement measures to interfere with
the exchange rates, which in turn may have impact on the
Group’s net asset value, profit and the dividends declared and
the Group has no hedging measures against such exchange
risks. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

HUMAN RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had
1,643 employees (2014: 1,539 employees) with total
remuneration and welfare benefits expenses amounting to
approximately RMB112.9 million (2014: RMB87.3 million).
The Group's remuneration policy is primarily based on the job
responsibilities, work experience and length of services of each
employee and the prevailing market condition. The Group has
also provided internal and external trainings and courses to
the employees to encourage self-improvement and enhance
their professional technical skills. The remuneration of the
Directors will be determined based on their job duties and
responsibilities, experience and the prevailing market condition.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s
extraordinary general meeting held on 19 October 2011, a share
option scheme was approved and adopted (the “Scheme”).The
Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years from the
date of its adoption.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, no share options were
granted under the Scheme by the Company. In addition, as of
31 December 2015, no share options under the Scheme were
outstanding.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, (i) the Group’s certain buildings and
production equipment with a net carrying amount of RMB192.4
million (2014: RMB198.7 million) and (ii) the Group’s leasehold
land with a carrying amount of RMB101.2 million (2014:
RMB103.4 million) have been pledged to secure the Group’s
bank loan facilities.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's certain restricted bank
balances with a carrying amount of RMB113.2 million (2014
RMB84.3 million) were pledged to secure the Group’s bank bills
due within three to six months, which were issued to suppliers
as a pledge for the purchase of raw materials by the Group.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have other
immediate plans for material investments and capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 31
December 2014, the Group entered into an agreement to
acquire the entire issued share capital and shareholder’s loans
amounted to HK$5,000,000 of First Capital Group Limited
from a connected person, with an aggregate consideration of
HK$7,138,443. The acquisition was completed on 8 June 2015.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 16 April
2015, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire 51%
equity of Shenzhen Juntour Migration Consultancy Service
Limited and 65% equity of Shenzhen Crown Bridge Migration
Consultancy Limited from an independent third party, with an
aggregate consideration of RMB5,800,000. Those acquisitions
were completed on 3 June 2015.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 10 August
2015, Nanyang Cijan and Subscriber entered into a conditional
Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which Nanyang Cijan has
agreed to issue and the Subscriber has agreed to subscribe for
30% of the equity interest in Nanyang Cijan by way of capital
injection into the registered capital of Nanyang Cijan at the
consideration of RMB110 million in cash. The Subscription
Agreement was completed on 3 November 2015. The equity
interest of Nanyang Cijan is held as to 70% by the Group and
30% by the Subscriber. Nanyang Cijan becomes a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

As disclosed in the Company’'s announcement dated 29
December 2015, the Company, Surrich International Company
Limited and New Citic International Capital Co., Ltd entered
into the Joint Venture Agreement in relation to the formation
of the Joint Venture, GF Holding, for carrying out investment
and financial service business in Hong Kong. The number of
issued shares of GF Holding was 500 million shares, which
were equivalent to HK$500 million. The Company, Surrich
International and New Citic subscribed and owned 35%, 40%
and 25% equity interest of GF Holding, respectively. In March
2016, HK$175 million has been used by the Company to
subscribe for 35% shares of GF Holding.

Save as the above, for the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Except for the investment of First Capital Automotive
Component Industry M&A Fund L.P. as set out in note 19 to
the financial statements of this annual report, the Group did not
hold any significant investment as at 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEHWk DT (E)

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE RASEEFZEBRAESHRERE

OF PROCEEDS

Save for the equity fund raising activity set out below, the BT XTSRS E TSI - ARA R ELEITIE
Company had not carried out any other equity fund raising {AHEMF RN -_FE—RFE A NBRITHR
activities involving the utilisation of the general mandate ARFRBREEAFAEIN _ZE—AF+_FN\BE
granted at the annual general meeting of the Company held on  THIZAR A FIRR R B RIIA & 5% H B — AR I RE R BR AR
9 June 2015 and general mandate granted at the extraordinary  &£&/EF) -

general meeting of the Company dated 8 December 2015.

Actual amount
utilised during

Date of Proposed used of the year ended
announcement Fund raising activities Net proceeds proceed 31 December 2015
BE-_ZE-—1E
PR +=H=+—H
SEEH Fr8RRIE R HERE % LEENERBRASE
5 October 2015 Placing of 76,800,000 HK$151.6 million (i)  Approximately (i)  Approximately
new shares of HK$60.4 million HK$42.9 million
the Company at shall be used has been used
the placing price of to finance the to finance the
HK$2.00 per development development
placing share of investment of investment
migration advisory migration
services and advisory services
financial consultancy and financial
and advisory consultancy and
services of the advisory services
Group; of the Group;
“E-RFTARER USKEER{H2.00ET 151.6BEET () #H604BEETHA () H4298EETE
#EC & BB 576,800,000 RERNFEAREER AREMFEERE
IRAD B RABRERRE R E IR & KR
SRAAERRS R & & Bl eh ER
R
(i) approximately (i) approximately
HK$50.0 million HK$53.0 million
shall be used for has been used for
the development the development
of financing and of financing and
financial credit financial credit
business; and business; and
(i) #950.0BEBITHA (i) #B3.0EEETE

RRERELIHE FRFZAE X5
BE® R BEEXES Rk
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEETRR DN ()

Date of

announcement Fund raising activities

KEEH

10 December 2015 Placing of 92,160,000
new shares of
the Company at
the placing price of
HK$2.00 per

placing share

“E-RFTZATHE ABREERH2.008T
AOBC & (B ACE 92,160,000
B R RIRARRAD

Net proceeds

e E R

HK$182.0 million

182.08 8B

Actual amount
utilised during

Proposed used of

proceed

the year ended
31 December 2015

BE-Z-—1F

P8 RE
HEEE AR

(iii) approximately
HK$41.2 million
shall be used for
general working
capital of the Group.

(i) #41288BLHEA i)
RAREER—REE
BE o

Shall be used for general Nil
working capital of
the Group and/or for
funding of business
or investment
opportunities if so
arise.
BRARAEEN—REE &
Be R/ FEATED
BEBIIREHE o

+ZA=+-H
LEENERDASHE

(i) approximately

HK$14.8 million
has been used for
general working
capital of the
Group.
“nasEEBTE
ARAREEH—RK
BEEG o
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EENEREEEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wilson Sea (formerly known as Xi Chunying), aged
52, was appointed as the chairman of the Board and non-
executive Director of the Company on 27 April 2011 and has
been re-designated as an executive Director on 1 January
2015. He is responsible for the general strategic planning and
business planning and co-ordination of the Group, as well
as for supervision of the enforcement and execution of the
management'’s strategies. Mr. Wilson Sea is the director of
Wealth Max. He is also the director of 9 subsidiaries of the
Company. From 1997 to 2004, Mr. Sea worked in Minsheng
Securities (RAEFEHFBREFEAF]) as an assistant to president,
president and chairman, responsible for the investment banking
business, the business of research department, planning and
development of the company. From 2004 to 2007, he was the
chairman of the board of Kaifeng Lanwei Highway Development
Company Limited (REMHEF SR AKERARAF]). Mr. Sea
worked as the vice-chairman of the board of Yubei (Xinxiang)
Power Steering System Co., Ltd. from 2007 to 2011. He
has also been appointed as the director of Nanyang Pukang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (S EEAZEARE 2 F]) from 2008 to
2013 and as the director of First Capital Management Co., Ltd
from 2012 to 2013.

Mr. Sea obtained a bachelor degree in Economics from the
University of Henan (Al F A22) in 1986. He further obtained a
master degree and a doctoral degree in Economics from Fudan
University (8 B AZ) in 1992 and 1995 respectively. He was
appointed as a professor by University of Henan (AIFAZES) in
1995.

HITES

Wilson Sea(AIBEHMB) - 5255 R_T——
FUNA-++BEEZAEARRESTSERFIE
HITERE YN -_ZT—RHF—A—BEABIHNT
BEx -FXZEAFTAEEMBERBAE - XK
FENGALEETEENRBHITNEE -
Wilson Sea%t 4 AWealth MaxZE % » I8 AAR
RAIZNERNBRARIZESE - R—ANEFEZ
TTNF - Sea kR RAEFHFERETERRL
1B RBRIETHBEPE  BINER  BEZA
AR B IRITHETR - AFREER - REIRBERT
fE- RZZEEMFEE_FTTLF  KEEHEET
HRERAKERERARESTSER - Sealt
EE_EELFE T —FERILGM) A8
PHEMFERAGEZGEIER - BT -F
SN\ EFE T =FAEGERAEERAAE
£ -J T EF " T—FIEHEHELER
BRATIES -

Sea i AN —NN\RFRFAAABRKERSE S
B o HEMD BN —NANZFR—NANLEFR
SEEARSLESBEL BN NRE LB - BN
—NANAFEARASRESEE -
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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FEl E{E£ B AR A 7 China First Capital Group Limited

Zhao Zhijun (#7&E), aged 41, was appointed as the chief
executive officer and an executive Director of the Company in
May 2011. Mr. Zhao Zhijun is the director of Plenty Venture.
He is also the director of 4 subsidiaries of the Company. He
joined the Group in 2005. Mr. Zhao has plenty of experience
in management in automobile shock absorber industry. He is
principally responsible for establishing development strategy,
making decision in respect of investment projects and the
general operation and management of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, he worked for the general office
of the China Securities Regulatory Commission’s Zhengzhou
Office (TEHFSFEEEREZEeYMNFRENEERITE R
from 1999 to 2002. Mr. Zhao served as a general manager of
Nanyang business department of Minsheng Securities (R4
BHABRETAFEBLESE from 2002 to 2005. Mr. Zhao
graduated from Central South University (fFEAE) with a
master degree in Philosophy in 2004.

Tang Mingyang (& #B3), aged 48, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 28 March 2016, with
effect from 1 April 2016. Mr. Tang found an enterprise which
was the first batch of enterprises engaging in mineral resources
mining and trading in 1980s in the People’s Republic of
China and acted as its chairman. In 1992, he was accredited
National Outstanding Young Entrepreneur (2BEH S FEE
%) and Outstanding Young Entrepreneur of Sichuan Province
IS EBEFTELEZK). Mr. Tang has over 30 years of
business experience and has extensive experience in areas
including business management and capital operation. He was
appointed as Visiting Professor of Sichuan Winshare Vocational
College (PO)I| 3 EF B3 267) in January 2016. Currently he
is the Honourable Chairman of Chengdu Dazhou Chamber
of Commerce (BXZB:EMNE5€) and the Honourable Founding
Chairman of Sichuan & Chongging (H.K.) Association (&)l|
SE4B42<€). Mr. Tang graduated from Sichuan Daxian Finance
and Trade School (P0)||3Z BB E 5 24%) in 1986 and obtained
a college degree.

iﬁﬁ.‘ii Np o R-E——FHARZERRE
RATTHARRATES - BEERERBRZ
BEF - RARARANEMBRARZES « KN
“TERFEMALRER o BEENTERIRRTT

$AHUEOTRES - REBARHTHESE
§ - SHRATEE (RRE RASEOBREER
B -

RMAAKER - BER-AANFE-TE=
FERNTAEFEEERE RPN ERR
FEGAR  BELN-BE-FE-TTAA

EEAREFEHFERET AR EIGE EIBLIE -
HAEER_STNFEERNTTEAS  FEELS
===l VA

B8 - 485% - T—R"FE=A=-+/\HE
ERAR ﬂ%ﬂﬁ§$ BE== —/\iﬂﬁl—ﬁt
ER o BERER—NNTFEREIPREARILA
BEEHREREERMAZEREZRNEELEETE
& R—NNZF  BREFZRESETFLER
R EEBFEFRERBY - BEEHEEFHI0
FRRKR UHREEEEREAEESTEFA
BEELR - FRZZE—R"F—AEEARMIX
HRBESHREFEHAE - FRAKTENESELE
EREREA) aEBBSEBENER - BEE
R—NANREEERN I ZEEVREESHER - &
BREEA -
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EERSHNEEEERE (&)

YAN Haiting (&%), aged 53,was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 28 March 2014 with
effect from 1 April 2014 and has been re-designated as an
executive Director on 1 January 2015. He is also the director
of 7 subsidiaries of the Company. He was responsible for
the execution of the overall strategies for operations and
development as well as the daily operating management for
the financial services business. Mr. Yan joined the Foreign
Investment Department of the People’s Bank of China (F1 8] A
REIR1TINE R]) (the “PBC”) in 1996 responsible for the financial
affairs of Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan, and was transferred
to the International Department of PBC (FB B A R ER1TRIER
al) in 1999 responsible for financial affairs of America. From
2001 to 2002, he was seconded to HSBC United Kingdom to
learn corporate financial and asset management business. He
served as deputy director and later director in the International
Department of PBC from 2003 to 2005. From 2006 to 2010,
he was the chief representative of PBC of Europe, responsible
for the coordination and liaison with major countries in Europe,
policy study and submitting proposals to PBC and the State
Council of China regarding the formulation of and decisions in
economic and financial policies. From 2010 to 2013, he served
as the vice chairman and chief executive officer of Agricultural
Bank of China (UK) Limited, responsible for business and
market operations. Mr. Yan graduated from Henan University
majoring in English in 1988 and obtained a Master's Degree in
economics from Renmin University of China in 2001.

BEF 83m R_T-—MFE=A_+\BEZ
ERARRFATEE BT —MEFMA—H
RER YR -_T-—hF—-—A-BRFAENTE
Z-BEARECRRBEEBELHERER
REENMTRATEEEE - WITARRA LM
MEBARZESE - BEER—NANARNFMARE
ARBITTARRITDINER - AEEFE - R
AEBZERMER YN —NANFREARR
TERE AEENZERER B _FTT—F
E-TTF RFTREZEE LSERIRTT
BRAR  BEARCREBREETEEK
BE-_ZET=F2_"TTAF  EEARRITH
BRAzERERER -B-_ZEREFE_ZT-F
F - REARBITRBMZ EFEREK - B EERK
MEBBR 2 A 1ERIR - BURHTE Rt 4808 & 8t
B BIFT FORR M ARRIT R BHEBRRER
BE BT TEE_T—=F - KELPH
RERTRE)BRAB 2B EFEFRITHAR -
BEXEBEMSEE - BEER-NN\NFEX
PORBARSE » TER: RBE—FEPEA
RARBRFQBEBER LB -
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Yang Weixia (13 &), aged 39, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in May 2011. She is also the deputy
general manager of the Group and is principally in charge of
the Group’s purchase, human resource and informationalization
affairs. She joined the Group in 2007 and served as the
financial manager, human resource manager, assistant to
the general manager and deputy general manager. Prior to
joining the Group, she worked in various positions in Minsheng
Securities (RAEFFHBREEAR]) including office manager
of the business department, officer in charge of the service
department, deputy general manager of business department
and Bank-Security business department ($R 75 %75 2F) from 1998
to 2007. Ms. Yang graduated from Henan College of Finance
and Economics (A Eg8i &8 £Fc) (later renamed as Henan
University of Economics and Law ([ BA & BUA K ) with a
bachelor degree in Economics in 1998. She further obtained
a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from Henan
University of Economics and Law. She was accredited as a
medium level economist (FF 4 £ZZRM) by Ministry of Personnel
of PRC in 2000.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Li Hua (Z2), aged 34, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 28 March with effect from 1 April
2016. Mr. Li worked at Sichuan Branch of the Bank of China (&
BERTTA% (D BB A FIPD)11%& 277) from 2003 to June 2015. Since
July 2015, he has been the chairman of Sichuan Tong Wei
Sheng Industrial Limited (74| [3B2 % E % HR A R), responsible
for its daily management. Mr. Li graduated from Sichuan
University (F8)117X22%) in 2003 with a Bachelor of Engineering
majoring in software engineering. Mr. Li possessed the
qualification of National Counselling Psychologist (Class Three)
(BISR = AL IR FE FAAD).

BEE 395 R_E——FHAEZERERR
AMITES - RIRAKERIGKE  TBRE
AEENRE  ANBRREBLER - FRZ
ZREFEMAREE - WEEMBEE - ANE
IRIRIE - AR BIE R BRI - RINAKRSE
Al R —NANNFE_ZTLFEEREES
BREERREEZERL - BIEEESBRLE
R RIEEEE  EERMARKENIBERR
MEELRE - HRER—NNNFEEN T
KB (RRARABIREERS)  BEKE
BETEM - MR T NFERG BT ER
ERBIEHERBLEMN - WR_TTTFEH
B A AR A P AR o

FPITES

FE UK R-B-AFZA-T/\BEE(E
RARAFNTES A-FT—~FENA—AR
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (% f %), aged 51, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director in October 2011. Mr.
Chu has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance, audit,
accounting and taxation. Mr. Chu was or has been an executive
director, non-executive director or a senior management
personnel of the following companies listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange: (a) Mastermind Capital Limited (Z1{=4%
BEMRAR]) (formerly known as Haywood Investment Limited)
(F 3% E B R A T (stock code: 905): executive director from
September 2005 to March 2007; (b) Chinese People Holdings
Company Limited ( f1 & #2 f% & B A (stock code: 681):
executive director since December 2008 and deputy chairman
since March 2015; (c) Perfect Group International Holdings
Limited (£R 255 B B R A A R A 7)) (stock code: 3326): non-
executive director since August 2015 and (d) Sun Century
Group Limited (KRIGtE 4L EBEHR A formerly known as
Hong Long Holdings Limited) (J&[& % Hxﬁﬁﬁ ) (stock code:
1383): company secretary from February 2007 to September
2010. Further, Mr. Chu was or has been an in dependent non-
executive director of the following companies listed on the
Main Board or the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange: (a) Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ( 5k 15 #& %
NS A PR A A]) (stock code: 723) from January 2008 to August
2010; (b) EYANG Holdings (Group) Co. Limited (5 B% 4% i% ( &
E ) B A al) (stock code: 117) since Aprll 2007 (c) Huayu
Expressway Group Limited EES =R EEBR A ) (stock code:
1823) since May 2009; (d) Flyke International Holdings Ltd. (7R
= E IR A R A F]) (stock code: 1998) since February 2010;
(e) SkyNet Group Limited (fin 2= B B% &= B G BR A &) (formerly
known as EDS Wellness Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8176)
since March 2012; (f) Telecom Service One Holdings Limited
(B ERHERRBBR 2 7)) (stock code: 8145) since April 2013;
(g) National Agricultural Holdings Limited (stock code: 1236)
(B &4 iE A PR A Al) from June 2015 to September 2015; and
(h) Madison Wine Holdings Limited (Z @ R /B XK EE A
7)) (stock code: 8057) since October 2015. Mr. Chu graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration. Mr. Chu is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chu is
also an associate member of both the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries.

BIkHTES

KEERKE Bl RZE——F+AEZE
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Li Zhi giang (ZX &), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in October
2011. He has been the legal advisor of the General Office of the
CPC Central Military Commission since 1994 and an executive
director and the president of Shougang Holdings Limited (&8
ERR AR A 7)) since 2004. In 2006, he was a director of Sino
Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (FREI4E# A F RIS BR A7) and
vice chairman in 2008, and chairman of China International
Cultural Media Co., Ltd.(FREBIR LR mEEA R A7) since
2006. He was also appointed as the chairman and secretary
to the Communist Party Committee of Shougang Yili Steel
Co., Ltd. (EHFANEARE 2 7)) in 2010. Mr. Li was honored
with the Confucius Business Prize in 2015. Mr. Li graduated
from Euromed Marseille Ecole de Management with a doctor
of Management and is currently the academician of the World
Academy of Productivity (ttF 4 7 S RIE2ER).

Zhang Jinhua (5R3# %), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in October
2011. Mr. Zhang has over 25 years of experience in automobile
industry. He is currently the Secretary-General (f0Z£ &) of
Society of Automotive Engineers of China (A /58E Ti2E2&)
and has been serving as the Deputy Secretary-General (g|H%
£ 1K) and later the Secretary-General of Society of Automotive
Engineers of China and the Secretary-General of China
Automotive Industry Technology Progress Rewarding Fund
(FRERE T ERIE N EE)E S E) since 2009. From 1988 to
2009, Mr. Zhang served as an assistant to the head, deputy
head (8IFTH&) and head (F7&) of the Automotive Technology
Information Institute (T AT EHRFZTFT) of China Automotive
Technology & Research Center (fr B3 E i 1iTH5cH 40 and
an assistant to the president (E{EE)E) and deputy president
of the Center (1 /03&IFE{F). Mr. Zhang graduated from the
Jilin Industrial University (M I3 A22) (later renamed as Jilin
University (F#K£2)) with a bachelor degree in Automotive
Application in 1988.

FE® 6358 RZE——FTABZHEALRR
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Hung Man Yuk, Dicson (3£#£/E), aged 40 has been the
Company Secretary and authorised representative of the Group
since 1 March 2012. Mr. Hung has extensive experience in
accounting, financial control and compliance. Mr. Hung obtained
a Master's Degree in finance from The Curtin University of
Technology in November 2002. He was admitted a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in July
2004 and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants in November 2006. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Hung has also
been appointed executive of several other listed companies,
including Qualified Accountant, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of Zhongtian International Ltd. (Stock
Code: 2379) from 2006 to 2007, Company Secretary of Come
Sure Group (Holdings) Ltd (Stock Code: 794) and China Tian
Lun Gas Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 1600) from 2010 to 2015
respectively.

Mr. Wang Hui (£ #8), aged 37, has about 10 years of
experience in corporate finance, accounting, taxation and
investment area. He specializes in corporate financial
management, internal control and capital management. He
has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
with effect from 1 January 2016. Prior to joining the Group, he
served as general manager of Shenzhen Huaxin Bainian Equity
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd (FYIIZ= (S ERERE
HEEEARAT) from January 2014 to December 2015; chief
financial officer of Shenzhen Huaxin Equity Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd (RYIZFREREZSBEEFR DA
from February 2012 to December 2013; chief financial officer of
Nanyang Pukang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (F5f8 LR B R A
7]) fromm March 2008 to January 2012 and investment manager
of Henan Hexie Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd. (A&
AWREIZELEERARAR]) from September 2006 to February
2008. Mr. Wang graduated from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics in 2000 and obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
economics with major in asset valuation and management. In
2003, he obtained a master’s degree in economics from School
of Public Economics and Management of Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics. In 2007, he further obtained a PhD in
management from School of Accounting of Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics. He is a non-practicing member of
China Association of Certified Public Accountants.

SREEE
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the 2015 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is mainly engaged in the research and development, design,
manufacturing and sale of various automobile shock-absorbers,
and has over 50 years of experience in the automobile industry.
Since the end of 2014, the Group has started to engage
in certain new businesses, including investment migration
consultancy service, financial advisory and consultancy services,
financial credit service and securities brokerage service, to
facilitate the diversification of the Group’s business, and further
expand its asset portfolios and sources of revenue.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries
at 31 December 2015 are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the 2015 Financial Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 79 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 6 June 2016 to Wednesday, 8 June 2016, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
the upcoming AGM of the Company, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
3 June 2016, for registration.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the
Group during the 2015 Financial Year are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements of this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the 2015 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 82 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB406.8 million (2014
RMB145.0 million), comprising the share premium, the capital
reserve, the share-based reserve and the retained earnings of
the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
in addition to the retained earnings of the Company, the share
premium and capital reserves of the Company are also available
for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company will
be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business immediately following the date on which any such
distribution is proposed to be paid.

For the surplus reserves, it comprising statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve, which are non-distributable
and the transfer to these reserves is determined according to
the relevant laws in the PRC and by the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiaries in accordance with the Article of Associate
of the subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to
make up for previous years’ losses or convert into additional
capital of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company. Discretionary
surplus reserve can be used to expand the existing operations
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had property, plant and
equipment at net book value of approximately RMB468.3
million (2014: RMB438.4 million). Details of the movements are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Group made charitable
and other donation totaling approximately RMB188,000 (2014
RMB276,000).

CAPITALIZED INTERESTS

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Group did not capitalize
any interest expenses related to properties under construction
development (2014: Nil).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in note 27 to
financial statements of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, sales to
the Group's five largest customers accounted for 60.2% and
60.0% of the total revenue of the Group, respectively, of which
sales to the largest customer accounted for 22.6% and 20.5%,
respectively.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 33.1%
and 38.0% of the total purchases of the Group, respectively, of
which purchases from the largest supplier accounted for 9.7%
and 8.8%, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company's issued shares) had any interests in
the Group's five largest customers or suppliers set out above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company is incorporated, under which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2015 Financial Year was the Company,
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the 2015 Financial Year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wilson SEA (Chairman)

Mr. ZHAO Zhijun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YAN Haiting

Mr. WANG Wenbo

Ms. YANG Weixia

Mr. WANG Ping (until 31 December 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHU Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. LI Zhigiang

Mr. ZHANG Jinhua

Ms. SHI Hongmei (until 24 July 2015)

According to article 83(3) of the Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Mr. Tang Mingyang was appointed as an executive Director and
Mr. Li Hau was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company on 28 March 2016, with effect from 1 April 2016. As
such, Mr. Tang Mingyang and Mr. Li Hua will hold office until
the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.
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According to article 84(1) of the Articles, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but no less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at AGM at
least once every three years. According to article 84(2) of the
Articles, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires. As such, Mr. Wilson Sea, Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus and Mr. Zhang Jinhua will retire, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 23 to 29 of this
annual report.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR’S
INFORMATION

As at 24 July 2015, Ms. Shi Hongmei has tendered her
resignation as an Independent non-executive Director and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, Mr. Wang Ping has tendered his
resignation as an executive Director and Chief financial officer
of the Company.

At the AGM convening on 9 June 2015, Mr. Wilson Sea, Mr.
Yan Haiting and Mr. Wang Ping, executive Directors and Mr.
Li Zhigiang, an INED have retired and offered themselves for
re-election at the AGM according to the Article 84(1) of the
Articles of Association.

During the 2015 Financial Year, save as the aforementioned,
no other changes was made for directors and directors’
information.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
All of executive Directors had entered into a service contracts
with the Company. Details of the service contracts include: (1)
a term of directorship for three years with effect from the date
of reappointment or re-election; and (2) the contract shall be
terminated according to the terms of contract.

Each of independent non-executive directors had signed a
letter of appointment with the Company. Details of this letter of
appointment mainly include: (1) a term of directorship for three
years with effect from the date of reappointment or re-election;
and (2) the contracts shall be terminated according to the terms
of each contract.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the emoluments of every Director for the 2015
Financial Year is set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance, to which the Company,
or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
throughout the 2015 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an
interest in a business which causes or may cause any
significant competition with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Wealth Max Holdings Limited, Mr. Wilson Sea, Mr. Zhao
Zhijun, Mr. Wang Wenbo and Ms. Yang Weixia (collectively, the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 19 October 2011 (the “Deed of Non-competition”)
pursuant to which each of the Covenantors jointly and severally,
irrevocably, under takes with the Company that each of the
Covenantors shall, and shall procure that their associates shall,
among others, not directly or indirectly engage, participate
or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business in competition with or
likely to be in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group or be in competition with the Group in any business
activities which the Group may undertake in the future save
for the holding of not more than 5% shareholding interests
(individually or any of the Covenantors with their associates
collectively) in any company listed on the stock exchange or any
other stock exchange. Details of the Deed of Non-competition
are set out in the section headed “Controlling shareholders and
substantial shareholders — Deed of non-competition” of the
Prospectus.

In order to ensure the Covenantors have complied with the
Deed of Non-competition, the following actions have been
taken:

(i) the Company has required each of the Covenantors to
give confirmation to the Company on an annual basis as
to whether he or she or it has complied with the Deed
of Non-competition and the Company has received
annual confirmations from each of the Covenantors that
he/she/ it has complied with the terms of the Deed of
Non-competition;

(i) the independent non-executive directors of the Company
has reviewed on an annual basis on the compliance with
the Deed of Non-competition by the covenantors and the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
has reviewed and understood that the covenantors have
complied with the Deed of Non-competition; and
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(i) the Company has enquired each of the Covenantors,
from time to time, on whether he/she/it has engaged in
any business which compet es or might compete with
the business of the Group; and enquiries have been
made with each of the Covenantors before publication
of the Company’s interim reports and annual reports
and the Company has gained an understanding from the
Covenantors that each of the Covenantors has not engaged
in any business which competed or might compete with
the business of the Group.

Having considered the actions taken by the Company as
mentioned above, the board of directors of the Company is of
the view that the Covenantors have complied with the Deed of
Non-competition for the year ended 31 December 2015 and no
matters is required to bring to the attention to the public.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of shareholders of the
Company passed on 19 October 2011, the Company adopted
the Share Option Scheme subject to the terms and conditions
therein. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from the Listing Date.

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the
Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below)
have made or may make to the business development
of the Group.

2. Eligible Participants

The Board may at its discretion offer options to any
executive, non-executive or INED; any employee of the
Group and any customer, supplier, agent, business or
joint venture partner, consultant, distributor, promotor,
service provider, adviser or contractor of any member
of the Group. The above-mentioned persons are
collectively referred to as “Eligible Participants” and
each an “Eligible Participant”.
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3. Maximum number of Shares 3. RERGEE

As at the date of the annual report, the total number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes was 32,000,000 Shares,
representing 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.
Options may not be granted under any schemes of the
Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this
will result in the said 30% limit being exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company,
no option may be granted to any Eligible Participants
which if exercised in full would result in the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options already granted or to
be granted to such Eligible Participant (including
exercised, cancelled and out standing share option) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such new grant exceeding 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of such new grant.

Time of exercise of options and duration of

Share Option Scheme

(a) Time of exercise of options
An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
during the period to be notified by the Board to the
grantee save that such period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.

Unless the Board otherwise determined, a grantee
is not required to achieve any performance target
before any options granted can be exercised.

(b) Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be
10 years from the Listing Date.
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6. Subscription price and payment on grant 6. BEBEEBRRHEHEM
(a) Subscription price (a) FRAEE

The Subscription price for the Shares under BREGEIE TRONWRBERE

the Share Option Scheme shall be the price FEETRBANAERSEE B

determined by the Board and notified to the TMEER T =ZEFHORSE

Eligible Participant which shall not be less than the

highest of:

(i) the nominal value of a Share; (i) BRHOEE :

(i) the closing price of each Share as stated on (i) AREEREZ AFRROR
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet B A2 PR B B R A5 A U
on the date of grant of the option; and B R

(i the average closing price of each Share as (i) REERHERES AEE
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation FEZR 5 B F AR P8 X P
sheet for the five consecutive trading days HRARERMHIEFIHUWTIE -
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option.

(b) Payment on grant (b) BT
Eligible Participants are required to pay a EERDEENEMEMERTH
consideration of HK$1.0 for the acceptance of an MBS RS H S I RE 1.0 T -

option granted to them.

7. Termination of the Share Option Scheme 7. RUERETEZ
The Company may by ordinary resolution in general RARARBRRAE FRRELBRER
meeting or the Board may at any time terminate RIS ES SRR R ILR
the Share Option Scheme. Options granted prior to fgtEst &l o R IEET BRI HE R IE
such termination but not yet exercised at the time of ST &2 B 8 R 1T 150 A0 B AR A S AR B8 B IR
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in PERT B MR AR A FIT{E -

accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

As at date of this annual report, no option has been granted RAFHRAH - SEBEERE SR LK
or agreed to be granted under the Share Option Scheme. Cib=esdunl ¢ 30
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DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise required to
notify the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares

Name of Directors

Wilson Sea’ Wilson Sea’
(formerly known as Xi Chunying) (RItEEELD)
Zhao Zhijun? 52
Wang Wenbo? F0Re
Yang Weixia* HIEE
Notes:

1. These Shares are held by Wealth Max. Mr. Wilson Sea is the sole
beneficial owner of Wealth Max and hence is deemed to be interested
in all the Shares held by Wealth Max under the SFO.

2. These Shares are held by Plenty Venture. Mr. Zhao Zhijun (#75%) is
the sole beneficial owner of Plenty Venture and hence is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Plenty Venture under the SFO.

3. These Shares are held by Mr. Wang Wenbo (3 ) directly.

4. These Shares are held by Ms. Yang Weixia (1532 E) directly.

ESERRONEBERODNERER AR

RZZE—RAF+-A=+—R0 ' EFRAQAT
A BRARARSKEA R EE(TERESR
HEGPIEXVE) KRG - HEEIRGD RESHS
BEERIBEEAS R PEEHEI2EATFENER
fFraces - SRBIREFRIZBANE AR R MR
FrRotEss ok BT

RBROHHFE

Number of issued Shares
held and nature of interest

FRAERTROBE RERNTE

Corporate Approximate

Personal Interests percentage of

Interests (interests of issued

(beneficial a controlled share capital

owner) corporation) of the Company

NRIER R NG

BAER (A — Rl ERITRAEAMN

(BREAAN) ATIMRER) BAE D

- 101,566,000 18.37%

- 16,800,000 3.04%

1,200,000 - 0.22%

960,000 - 0.17%
HiaE

1. #ZE W1 E Wealth Max# & ° Wilson Sea 7t 4 &
Wealth Max®)E—E#=EA A - HUIREBE S REEK
BIIRR YER Wealth Max$58 BIFT A IR (5 R A fgam

2. ZEBRNBERSHE - BHEELERBRE RS
BA - BREBEESRMEGRIIRERERFANRAE
Bin A

3. REROBEXREEEERS -

4. ZEBROBBEEZTEERES -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company, had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise required to notify to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the financial year ended 31 December 2015
were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of Shares in the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long Positions in Shares

RREB A

Name of shareholders

Wealth Max! Wealth Max'
Wang Lily?2 Wang Lily?
Hongkong Chuang Yue Co., Limiteds3 Bl G RR A B
Tang Yuyuan BEER

BREXHWEEN R_E-—RF+-_A=1+—
B BMEEERARFTRABRARANEMS
AREEEE (E & RES RS HROIFEXVER) # ik
fn - HERND REST - BERBEESFRBAREK
BIFE3B2EMEA TR EMERMATRE - FRE
BRETRZAM S AR R LB R E RSO

PN
2o

RZZF-—RFE+-_A=+—RLMBRFEEEAH
B BEEMESHERESBOERBIRKFET
LERFFEBARNRBRO MERHERN - BE
TMEITEEILFERN  ARF] - AR
HAEMM B A R AT SLE R B - B EEA
REREMEABRES U EREF -

FERRREMATRRG RAERRG
BB KRR

R-E—AF+=_A=+—H ' WFAL(ESEK
RAREZITHABRRIN R AR B FERE AR
0 BEEREE S MGG FE336IEREERT
FENE MRS AR

RGP EEFRE

Number of issued Shares
held and nature of interest

FFEERITROHAE
REGNE

Approximate
Personal percentage of
Interests issued share
(beneficial capital of
owner) the Company
1A A F
BAREE ERITRAEMN
(BRHEEAN) BABE D
101,566,000 18.37%
101,566,000 18.37%
50,282,000 9.09%
50,282,000 9.09%
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Notes:
1. Wealth Max is solely and beneficially owned by Mr. Wilson Sea.

2. Ms. Wang Lily is the spouse of Mr. Wilson Sea. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Wang Lily is deemed to be interested in all shares in which Mr.
Wilson Sea is interested and/or deemed to be interested.

3. Hongkong Chuang Yue Co., Limited is owned as to 90% by Shenmane.D
Co., Limited, which in turn is solely owned by Golden Cloud Co.,
Limited, and which in turn is solely owned by Ms. Tang Yuyuan.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2015, no
other person had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 34 to the financial
statements also constitute continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules.

Save the major and connected transaction — deemed disposal
relating to subscription of equity interest in a subsidiary
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11
August 2015, during the 2015 Financial Year, the Group had no
connected transaction and continuing connected transactions
that were not exempted under Rules 14A.31 and 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holdings of the Shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
the Company had maintained sufficient public float that the
percentage of the Company’s shares which are in the hands
of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

HaE -
1. Wealth MaxfWilson Seat £ BE R B HE °

2. Wang LilyZ 1 AWilson Sea’t A MEME - RIEFFH K
HIE &) - Wang LilyZZ #5153 AR Wilson Sea st 4
BR/SWREREAN DR EA R -

3. Al#iE R A R A 7 Shenmane.D Co., Limited # &
90% )% © Shenmane.D Co., Limitedf Golden Cloud
Co., Limited’& 4 - i Golden Cloud Co., Limited
AEERL T BERS -

BEXBEBEESN  BEMEERAATTRAR
B R=F-AF+-A=+—8 - BELH
AERBHHAR ARG - BEREES
R I EI36 T A T IR B B M AT
FOMERS AR -

BERS
M HRRM AN BEEALR S T L
MRRIFT R ERFERER S °

BRARRR=_ZE—RAFNA+—BHLAMGHEER
FER 5 — A ERE MK B AR RENRIER
BN R —RAMREFER » AEBEHE
T TR BISE 14A 31 REL 5 14A 33K EA 2 1O 8
ERHNIFEBERS -

B R RE# R
EEWTHEARARRERBERATAZHE
ARSI R -

ZEABREFRE
BERARAESHNARER RBESHA - B
FIBEAREFRANREERITAE - ARF—EH
W EFTRABETNRARNRSRE  AQRE
BRBIE25% AN R EZITHRMD °
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REMUNERATION POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had
1,643 employees (2014: 1,539 employees) with total
remuneration and welfare benefits expenses amounting to
approximately RMB112.9 million (2014: RMB87.3 million).
The Group's remuneration policy is primarily based on the job
responsibilities, work experience and length of services of
each employee and the prevailing market condition. The Group
also provided internal and external trainings and courses to the
employees to encourage self-improvement and to enhance
their professional technical skills. The determination of the
remuneration to the Directors will be based on their job duties
and responsibilities, experience and prevailing market condition.

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code provision B.1.5,
the remuneration of the member of the senior management by
the remuneration band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is
set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

FNBUR
BE_Z—RE+-_A=T—HILFEE  ~£H
B1643%5EE(ZZ—M%F : 1,639%)
REAEEIHABAREI129B8T(ZE—N
F:ARMESIZEEL) - AEBFHERREE
RESETIBE « TELBRREFEUANIR
ATRETE - NEENAIESREANIBRINFLES
FNRGRE - USE B BREBCE RIS S EER
it - EFFHEIEREREZBBE RS - €8k
WITTREE °

RIRMEERTAEB.15KEX - SREEEK
BEE_ZT-—AFT-H=+—HIFERHH
MRIBI D 2 F ST -

Number of
individuals

FHAR(ARE) AH

500,000 to 1,000,000

1,000,001 to 1,500,000
1,500,001 to 2,000,000
2,000,001 to 2,500,000
3,500,001 to 4,000,000

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the employer and employee are required to
make contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income
to the scheme, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. Contributions made to the scheme are vested
immediately.

The employees of the subsidiaries i n the PRC participate in
the retirement schemes operated by the local authorities. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their salaries to these schemes to finance the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group in respect to these schemes is the
required contributions under the schemes.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's total
contributions to the retirement schemes charged in the income
statement amounted to approximately RMB10.0 million (2014
approximately RMB9.6 million). Details of the Group’s pension
scheme and the basis of calculation are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

500,0007C% 1,000,0007T 5
1,000,0017C%1,500,0007T
1,500,001 C%2,000,0007T
2,000,0017C%2,500,0007T
3,500,001 C%4,000,0007T

NN oY)
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BREEMEENRDEEROZBREERL —IHR
HEREDAEI([BESAE ) - BESHES
—IERBYEFEAETENERRTRKTE - R
EeiRTEE BEEREEESABAKEERMN
B ARE% A BIH - = AE AEBEA
30,000/&7T ° st BIHRENEG /R

BB A R M E B2 B A i R R AR L RO R
K&tdl - B RARARERFETANLLAZ
FRTEIEFUINA @A - AERENZFT MM
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than employment with employees of the Company, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed with any individual, company or
body corporate during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Details on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report from pages 47 to 61 of this
annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the 2015 Financial Year have been
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be
proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited financial statements have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Company, which comprises three
INEDs namely Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, Mr. Li Zhigiang and
Mr. Zhang Jinhua. Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee.

On behalf of the Board
Chairman and Executive Director
Wilson SEA

28 March 2016
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Environment, Society and Governance Report

RIR - HERERBRE

The Company has always placed importance to its cooperation
with all of its stakeholders, including shareholders and
investors, staff, customers, suppliers and business partners,
the media, government and regulators, the environment and
the community. Furthermore, the Company maintains operation
compliance, sincere cooperation, cultural integration, employee
care, as well as charity and public welfare, and, as a corporate
citizen, continuously expands the breadth and depth of social
responsibility fulfillment to achieve a sustainable development.

The Company endeavors to develop itself into a modern
resource-saving and environmental-friendly enterprise to
achieve harmony among enterprise, society and the nature by
its circular economy philosophy, commitment to an ongoing
improvement and its strengthened efforts in repair and
recycling, energy-saving and cost-reducing, and integrated
utilization of materials.

A. QUALITY OF WORK ENVIRONMENT
A1 Work Environment
The Company has a team of dedicated and competent
workforce who cope well with the Company's
strategies to support its business expansion strategies
and to sustain its development.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had a total of
1,643 employees, of which, 1,594 were from mainland
China (accounting for 97%), 27 were from Hong Kong
(accounting for 2%), and the remaining 22 were foreign
employees (accounting for 1%), who were mostly
located across ltaly, and primarily were research
and development related personnel. By business
segments, the number of employees from the
automotive component business was 1,519 (accounting
for 92%) and that from the financial and consultancy
business were 124 (accounting for 8%).

RiLES

By location

AR —BEEREMEFNERTAE  ETE
BREEEZREE  BI BP  HEBEEKAS
ERH - B BRREERE RERME -
ARBBFHEERE  BEEIE  LRs - B
THERERSENE  WACEARNAE - N
RAMSEERTHREENRE - UERAFHE
HRMED

ARARRBB/RQBEES - BHHEREEW
BIFEENRE SBERNGETA  BHEY
BREANE  RERFEBARCLE  BHER
EREM S ERNME LT

A. IT{FRIEEE
A1 T{ERIE
AARVEE —HEABRER BELOEEN
EEEK e IRE S ARIRK
B - MBI A R EERTE R MFE R
}E °

R-B—RE+-_A=+—H  &xRQ7F
EERAEA1,643%  Hb : hE R
EE1,594% (1597%) - BEHEIES
274 (152%) » E#p22% 85ME B (K1h
1%) EZHMHEEAF T2 APFER
ITABAL - REKE D ABTHMH
E£%EE1,5198(1592%) » £ Bh & R
HAEEEE 124N (H1E8%) -

As at 31 December 2015
BE-Z-—RF+=-A=+—H
2015
—ZT—hfF

Mainland China AR A, 1,594 1,515 +5.21%
Hong Kong B 27 2 +1,250%
Foreign pSZIN 22 22 -
Total A&t 1,643 1,639 +6.8%
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By business segment

Manufacturing of automotive  JEZ IR

As at 31 December 2015
BE—Z-—HF+-A=+—H

2015 2014 Changes
—E-—0fF —T—mF

component 1,519 1,639 -1.3%
Financial and consultancy SR N EER A 124 - N.A
Total A5t 1,643 1,539 +6.8%

As the Company has actively developed the business
of overseas financing and financial services during
2015, the current number of employees from such
business is 124, of which 27 employees are from Hong
Kong.

Adhering to the people-oriented concept, the Company
is committed to providing a healthy and safe work
environment for all staff. The Company also encourages
its staff to exert their creativity and potential and to
align personal development with enterprise growth, so
as to promote mutual development between the staff
and the enterprise.

In order to attract, incentivize and retain the
talented employees, we will constantly review our
compensation and benefits programmes to ensure that
they are both competitive with the external market
and internally equitable among colleagues. Apart from
annual reviews, special reviews will also be conducted
to align remuneration packages of well-performing
employees to cope with prevailing volatility and
competitions in labour market. “Pay for performance”
is the key principle adopted to link rewards to the
achievement of key performance indicators to motivate
employees to work towards meeting company goals
and objectives.

To increase employees’ engagement, wellness and
sense of belonging with the Company, different social,
recreational and health-related activities are arranged
by the Company annually. For example, birthday parties
are organized on a monthly basis to give gifts to the
staff, as well as birthday blessings by the general
manager published in the factory's journal. Apart
from the employees, we are also concerned about
their family members and their children’s growth.
For example, grants are provided for their children’s
enrollment by colleges and for their entrance of
university.
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In 2015, the Company's development strategies were
coordinated with and assisted by our human resource
strategies. A series of on-going measures including
exploring new recruitment channels, reviewing
remuneration and engagement conditions were
adopted by the Company to recruit and retain talents.
During the year, It R EREFEABRR A was engaged
to optimize and reform the internal organization and
structure, performance management system and
remuneration management system of the Company,
to further motivate the aggression at work for internal
staff, as well as to coordinate the need for long-term
development in respect of the management on human
resources.

The Company will continuously promote fairness and
justice, respect employees, provide equal opportunities
for employment and uphold a higher standard of
employee treatment.

The Company has set up a complete Environmental
and Occupational Safety Management System and an
environmental department of safety technology with
professional to develop, implement and supervise the
health and safety management system and operation
specification in order to institutionalize health and
safety management, standardize operating procedures
and clarify duties and responsibilities, thereby
safeguarding the occupational health and safety of the
Company'’s staff.

In August 2014, Nanyang Cijan has passed the
verification by Beijing Zhong Da Hua Yuan Certification
Centre (b R KERRBFEHF ) and obtained
GB/T24001-2004/1SO14001:2004 Environment
Management System Certificate (RIEEIEE ZR
EEZ) and GB/T28001-2011/OHSAS18001: 2007
Occupational Health and Safety Management System
Certificate (B EEREL 2 BIREBRRAETIE).

During 2015, the Company's operations strictly
followed the Manual of Environmental and
Occupational Health and Safety Management ((:3570
B 2 (2 BT 22 2 B I8 F 1) and the Script of Environmental
and Occupational Health and Safety IRE A EERE
Z 22 318) to actively avoid safety and health-related
risks during production, which has basically fulfilled
the annual target: zero-pollution in production, zero-
significant-accident and zero-fire-failure.
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The manufacturing segment recorded five minor injury
accidents, in which three persons were slightly injured,
zero serious injury accident and zero fatal accident
(2014: recorded five minor injury accidents, in which
three persons were slightly injured, zero serious injury
accident and zero fatal accident.). The rates of safety
education training, attendance with special operation
certificate, and accident reporting and dealing for the
year have all reached 100%, and the implementation
rate of safety instructions and the rectification rate of
accident risks have reached 100%.

Over 80% of the frontline production staff of the
Company has received professional technical education
at college level or above. The rate of our staff who
possess the certificate for eight major types of special
operations, including crane operations and electricians
in accordance with the state regulations reached
100%. Governance on the working environment of
high temperature, electroplating and spray painting has
met the national standards, and the health and safety
of the staff are safeguarded.

Training and fire drills are organized annually for work
safety management personnel, while the work safety
campaign is conducted among the staff during the
work safety month, so as to enhance the skills on
health and safety of the staff. In 2015, the rates of
safety education training and attendance with special
operation certificate reached 100%, and all of the
15 full-time and part-time work safety management
personnel have received training by rotation. In 2015,
the Company provided safety education and work
safety training for all new staff, and the passing rate
reached 100%.

Besides, the factories has established and implemented
systems, including the Safety Inspection System, the
Accident Risk Investigation and Rectification System,
and the Major Hazards Monitoring System, to timely
detect and effectively rectify all kinds of safety risks.
In 2015, the Company detected 72 safety risks of
various categories, 72 of which were rectified, and the
rectification rate reached approximately 100%. The
Company monitors real-time major sources of hazards,
such as oil depot and paint storage, to prevent the
occurrence of safety accidents.
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In early 2015, the Production Department conducted
investigation on harmful toxic positions throughout
the Company for a total of around 180 persons and
established files for staff in these positions, and carried
out occupational health check in batches through the
coordination with the Anti-Epidemic Station of Xichuan
County O JIIS&B5%35). In June, another centralized
group health check was carried out for staff operating
at harmful toxic positions, and no disease case was
found.

In 2015, the Company took various measures in the
manufacturing segment to continuously improve the
environment and strengthen the occupational health
and safety, including installing wind supplying devices,
by means of which the cool air could be conveyed to
all operating areas; improving ventilation systems in
No. 1 general assembly workshop, connecting rod
workshop and No. 3 general assembly workshop to
greatly reduce fumes trapped inside the workshops;
while checking the high-noise equipment in factories
and installing noise reduction devices against the
noisemaking air compressor vents, as well as adding
warning signs to dangerous road sections in factory
areas to minimize accidents.

In order to better verify the environmental performance
of the factories, in the first half of 2015, the Company
successively invited the Environmental Protection
Bureau (324&f8) and Environmental Monitoring Station
(BRIEELAIuh) of Xichuan County (47)1|8%) to conduct
environmental monitoring, and the monitoring results
showed that the emissions of wastewater, waste
gases and noise of the Company met the requirements
of national standards. The Company has not received
complaints from relevant parties or punishments from
environmental protection department at all levels for
years. In respect of comprehensive utilization of the
waste, the Company adopted the way of collective
storage and unified treatment to avoid secondary
spread and resource wastage.
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Each factory has developed strict targets for work
safety responsibility assessment, and has signed the
“Statement of Responsibilities for Safety Target”
(Z& BfE& =), which would be included in the
performance appraisals of the departments (workshops)
and the staff, and the performance of work safety is
linked to individual remunerations, promotions and
appraisals.

In conclusion, it can be confirmed that the current
environmental and occupational health and safety
system of the Company continues to operate in an
effective manner.

In order to improve the overall quality of all staff and
professional technical standard, the Company has
made and implemented Training and Management
System and established a series of training system
and procedures including induction training, vocational
technical training and quality training.

With respect to the manufacturing business,
the Company is focused on creating a favorable
environment for studying, the Human Resource
Department was mainly responsible for carrying out
internal training for staff. The workshop staff mainly
studies production technology, quality system,
equipment operation techniques, while the new
staff members could only take up their jobs after
receiving and passing proper training; and for senior
management, special expertise, and statutory eligible
members who need to attend external training, the
Company should appoint personnel to attend in a
timely manner. The Company has formed a knowledge
management system in order to continuously
summarize methods for staff to acquire and learn
knowledge, master extensive knowledge through
customers, business, self-learning, team-learning and
network etc. Communication and sharing are the core
of all learning activities.
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Similarly, the Company has also established a
comprehensive staff training system for the non-
manufacturing business. First Capital International,
Shenzhen Crown Bridge Immigration Consulting
Limited and Shenzhen Juntour Immigration Consulting
Services Limited have provided new and existing staff
with induction training and regular training, covering the
knowledge, professional skills, managerial capacities
and product information of the immigration industry.
Moreover, external training agencies are invited by
First Capital Securities Limited and First Capital Assets
Management Limited to provide trainings for the
licensed personnel and staff, and they also sponsored
the staff to participate in continuing professional
training (CPT) programs.

An aggregate statistics of the trainings of the Company
for 2015 is set out below:
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ARRER016FHIIE R LR T

Times of training
IR

2015

Business segment —E—HF
Manufacturing B 247 94
Finance and consultancy SR B 356 N.A
NERA

Number of persons trained/
training hours per person
IR AGEHIREE

2015

Business segment

Manufacturing Bls

—E-RF
8,490/27.3 2,995/141.02

Finance and consultancy 2 E K& EERE 9,893/320 N.A

Note: In 2015, the Company carried out extensive training for
the staff with respect to the new financial service and
consulting business due to the commencement of such
business. In 2014, the manufacturing segment of the
Company conducted more training as a result of the
relocation of the new production base and improvement in
automation of production lines.
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In relation to the work safety, the Company has strictly
complied with laws and regulations, such as the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety.
The Production Department of the Company has
assigned dedicated safety officers to take charge of
safety affairs, inspect the safety operating condition of
the Company at any time and engage relevant health
department to inspect whether the results conform to
relevant requirements.

In order to strengthen the staff team-building of the
Company, improve the fundamental qualities of the
staff, achieve reasonable allocation of human resources
and adapt to the need of corporate development, the
Company formulated the “Management Regulations
on External Recruitment of Staff” (MR8 ITINEEIE
EEIEHTE)Y) which incorporated the “Recruitment
Management System” ({FFIEEIEHIE) ). Under such
regulations, there is a specific requirement stated that
the external staff must be over 18 years old, healthy
without disabilities, well-behaved without illegal
records, and without any disputes or engagements
with any other employers.

Under the same conditions, the Company give priority
to people relocated from the reservoir area of Xichuan
and demobilized soldiers during recruitment, in order to
fulfill its responsibilities for keeping social stability and
helping impoverished peasants to overcome poverty in
local areas.

B. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

In relation to the automotive component manufacturing
business, with the aim of building a garden-like factory,
the Company is dedicated creating an environmentally
friendly enterprise. The Company strives to build a model
enterprise in energy saving and emission reduction by
insisting on the development model of circular economy,
comprehensive utilization and clean production, and reduce
the negative impact of the production activities on the
environment through the way of circular utilization and
technology upgrading.
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Meanwhile, the Company has adhered to the development
by science and technology innovation, and conducted
study for industrial equipment and production techniques,
so as to reduce the consumption of the utilities and
raw materials and protect the environment. In order to
reduce the machining allowance, shorten the process
and improve the efficiency of environmental protection,
the Company actively carries out the innovation, tuning
and transformation of the technology. Since 2014, the
Company has realized the improvement of the welding
fume extracting system and water-cycling system. The
welding fume extraction system reduced the damage from
fume to the health of staff during the welding process, and
the improvement in the water-cycling system realized the
circular utilization of waste water from production, which
achieved water saving of up to 1,850 tons in 2015 (2014
1,120 tons).

For the non-manufacturing segment, it upholds the
principles of energy saving and minimize wastage of
resources to lessen the damage from operations to the
environment. Specific guidelines are set up for the use of
electricity and paper.

Adhering to the tenet of “safety production, clean
production and environmentally friendly production”,
the manufacturing business is committed to
the maintenance of a healthy and safe working
environment. The Company complies with the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China in respect of the environment, and assesses
periodically on the conformity with environmental
laws and regulations. As for the environmental impact
from production process, the Company complies
strictly with relevant laws and regulations, and conduct
inspecting and monitoring on a regular basis. According
to the inspection results, the three wastes, noise and
power dust, etc. generated from production process
of the Company is in conformity with the laws and
regulations.
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In 2015, the Company has formulated five
environmental objectives. The objectives include:
the emission shall reach Grade Il of the Integrated
Emission Standard of Air Pollutants (GB16297-
1996); the wastewater discharge shall reach Grade
Il of the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
(GB8973-1996); and the noise emission shall reach
Grade Il (daytime<60dB, night<50dB) of the Emisson
Standard For Industrial Enterprises Noise At Boundary
(GB12348-2008); and all of which shall conform with
the standard requirements in inspections by competent
departments.

The Usage of Resources

In relation to the manufacturing industry business, the
plants have placed emphasis on recycling economy
and saving resources in production and operation.
Resources including water, electricity and gas have
been used efficiently in the process of production,
and the worn-out equipment and materials have been
repaired and recycled. Waste and rubbish from the
process of production have been classified and taken
full use to maximize the benefits of resources.

The Company implemented budget management,
tracking control to set goals and duties for Energy
Department and Production Department, issued
KPIl assessment indicators, set up measurement
and reporting system for analysis and evaluation,
according to the Company’'s energy management
measures on the basis of the control policy of scientific
management, on-time provision, reasonable use, and
elimination of waste.

Segment of automotive

component manufacturing

Production quantity of product EnEEHE(EE)
('0000 pcs)

% of water and electricity consumption (TR SR EFEKEE
by administration and management TEHA%
to revenue

Water and electricity consumption of B EMEEBFEKESR
unit product (RMB) (AR®T)

MEERHREDE

B2

2015F AR R HERIEBZ6MHE - 21
BERBEBUGERIC KRS 2R & HERUE
#E)GB16297-1996 — £ ¢ 5 /K HE L iE
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According to the performance assessment in 2015,
weighting of usage of resource was relatively higher,
for example, energy and equipment department and
production department accounted for 30% and 25% in
the percentage of water and electricity, respectively. It
has provided an incentive to achieve the goal of energy
saving and to reduce production cost.

In relation to the non-manufacturing industry business,
energy saving scheme was implemented in our offices
in 2015. Our Company strictly executed low-carbon
offices, installed of energy-saving office equipment,
and maintained air-conditioning temperature at 26°C, so
as to reduce energy consumption; and the promotion
of recycling of used batteries.

In relation to the manufacturing industry business, in
strict compliance with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China with respect
to the environment, and assesses regularly on the
conformity with environmental laws and regulations.
As for the environmental impacts from production
process, the Company complies strictly with relevant
laws and regulations, and conducts inspecting and
monitoring on a regular basis. According to the
inspection results, the three wastes, noise and power
dust etc. generated from production process of the
Company are in conformity with laws and regulations.
In respect of comprehensive utilization of the waste,
the Company adopted the way of collective storage
and unified treatment to avoid secondary spread and
waste of resources. The plants recycled 100% of the
production waste.

In relation to the non-manufacturing industry, the
offices successfully created a platform on Dingding (“£7]
£]"), which will be used extensively to transfer files
via online tools, thereby replacing the traditional paper
forms and reducing the use of paper in the future.

We will continue to adhere to the development idea
of safety, harmony and green, and make unremitting
efforts to create a resource-saving and environmentally-
friendly corporate.
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C. OPERATING PRACTICES C. EE1EN

The Company has developed and implemented
Procurement Execution Control Procedure and
Supplier Control Procedure for centralized purchasing,
storage and deployment management of the materials
required by the Company. Instant transmission and
sharing of information including purchase order, quality
information feedback and inventory inquiry have been
realized by an information management platform
comprising of ERP system, PTX service information
platform and Quality Assurance System structured
by the Company, which not only enhanced service
efficiency and the abilities of quick response to the
markets, but also guaranteed high quality products and
services from suppliers by reducing the procurement
cycle and procurement cost and improve service
efficiency.

By the end of 2015, the Company had 94 supplier
teams (by the end of 2014: 91), all of them were within
China. More than half of the suppliers have established
a steady long term cooperation relationship with us.
We recognize that the status and role of each supplier
in the Company's value creation and operation, which is
our base to provide high-quality products and services.
Under the concept of “value co-creation and win-win
cooperation”, the Company actively collaborates with
the suppliers to enhance the competitiveness of the
Company’s products.

We generally entered into purchase framework
agreements with our suppliers which set out our
annual purchase budget and we might give notice to
the suppliers or adjust according to our needs at a
particular time. To avoid any disruptions in production,
we maintained at least two suppliers for each of the
raw materials or components and carried out AB roles
supply to prevent monopoly of suppliers and ensure
timely delivery of the purchased materials. The quality,
service, on-time supply of products are evaluated for
their comments and ranking on a monthly basis to
eliminate the under-performed.
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In order to optimize the supply chain management, the
Company built two synergistic platforms specifically
for two groups, suppliers and customers. The basis of
supply chain management requires greater investments
in hardware and software, from flows of commerce,
information and materials, these require application of
computer technology and automation technology to
ensure the accurate and fast delivery of information.

The Company has attached great importance on
product quality and regarded it as its soul. We have
passed international quality system certifications such
as 1SO9001, QS9000, VDA6.1, ISO/TS16949, and have
formulated “Quality Manual”, “Quality Program File"”,
“Quality Operation File”, “Quality Guidance Book”
and “Quality Control Regulations”. By implementing
a full range of quality control in production process,
we ensure that we will provide good-quality products
and services to our customers. All products to be sold
to the customers must be inspected according to the
standard before they go out of the factory.

The sales department of the Company is responsible
for collecting and investigating the demand and
expectation from customers, and serves as a
communication channel during delivery of products
to them, so as to resolve their problems and grasp
the market opportunities to meet the needs of
the customers as soon as possible. The corporate
governance department is responsible for conducting
assessment in relation to the product varieties,
specifications, product usages, pricing, means
of payment, demands, delivery terms, quality
requirements and corporate production capacity,
identifying problems, and developing measures for
improvement, to satisfy different requirements on
supply of products from customers. The quality control
department has also set up a customer service hotline
to cope with customers’ complaints in a timely manner.

In order to precisely grasp the trend of customers’
demand for quality, price and service which are market
factors, the Company adopted various methods such
as questionnaires, statistics of zero-kilometer PPM
value and customer information feedback (complaints)
in accordance with the standard requirement of I1SO/
TS16949-2009 to conduct customer satisfaction survey.
After statistical analysis of feedback from customers,
we will take effective measures to enhance customer
satisfaction.
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We have been dedicated to improving and enhancing
our quality control system. We conduct regular internal
reviews for the quality control system of production
process and finished goods inspection. Currently, we
adopt SPC, MSA, APQP, PPAP and FMEA program
and analysis during the production process to avoid
and control defects in designing, production and quality
inspection. In 2015, RMB17.80 million was provided
for our products’ warranty, increased by 42% when
compared to RMB12.53 million in 2014 which is
basically in line with our increase in output.

Our company has sound staff honesty and self-
discipline requirements, supplier honesty requirements
and internal whistle-blowing policy. We also have
tipoff telephone and anti-corruption account to prevent
any occurrence of cases of corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud or unethical behaviors through internal
and external prevention and control measures. An
employee who violates professional ethics and
requirements will be penalized seriously in accordance
with the provisions of the system. Employees can
report to inspection team of our Company as to rule-
breaking behaviors including various derelictions
of duty, misconduct, abuse of power for personal
gain, taking bribes, and possessing our Company's
properties of any employees of our Company by
letter, fax, mail, telephone and conversation. After
investigation and collection of evidence as well
as verification and to reach a conclusion by the
inspection team of our Company, such employees
will be punished accordingly. In 2015, our Company
announced “Notice on Prohibition of Demanding and
Accepting Bribes during Production and Operation
(for example, Purchase) Process ((BRERZAELEE
FHEELEBEPRIE XD )" and “Honesty
Letter to Suppliers ((BUEERmMBERES KLY )" to
further regularize suppliers’ operation behaviors of our
Company and strengthen employees’ honesty and
self-discipline, thereby creating a good and orderly
production and operation environment as well as
eradicating occurrence of corruption and enhancing
honesty and self-discipline.
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D. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Our Company takes building a harmonious enterprise
as its mission and attaches great importance to
harmonious relations with the local community. Our
Company also actively participates in community
activities to realize needs of the community where it
located and do practical and good things for community
residents.

In order to enhance communication with the local
community and build a harmonious relationship, our
Company’s office will be responsible for receiving
and dealing with appeals of community residents,
with an aim of maintaining smooth communication
and active coordination with the local community.
Through building a communication mechanism with
the government as the leader and rural enterprises
having equal opportunities for communication,
together with support from county government, town,
village and community of Xichuan, we maintained our
communication channels open, thus playing a role
in coordinating the stable relationship between the
Company and community.

Our Company proactively drives the local economic
development and has made a great contribution to
the local social stability and economic prosperity
where it located. In 2015, Our Company has donated
RMB262,000 (2014: RMB276,000) for community
assistant project.

e Qur Company is especially concerned about the
livelihood of the underprivileged and the poverty
community. On each Chinese New Year Eve,
our Company provides supplies along with our
greetings and blessings to the poor families in
the community to help them celebrate the festive
holidays.

e |n February 2015, the staff of Nanyang Cijan went
to a targeted poverty alleviation village to build
school and roads there. They also went to Jinzhuhe
Village (£ 775A4}), Madeng Town, Xichuan County
to help repair and construct a safe drinking water
project.
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e I|n 2015, Nanyang Cijan made donations to
Shangmeichi Village (_E##T), Jingziguan Town,
Xichuan County to help repair and construct the
cultural square and build up a beautiful village for
the villagers.

e |n September 2015, Nanyang Cijan made donations
of RMB100,000 to those needy undergraduates in
Xichuan County, who were good at both academic
results and conduct, accomplishing their wish for
going to college.

e |n order to solve the employment issues for the
children of the residents of the place where our
Company is located, our Company gave priorities
to 121 local villagers under the same conditions of
recruitment in 2015.

e |n order to increase the local residents’ income
where our Company is located, our Company gave
priorities to local residents to undertake the green
projects and infrastructure maintenance works,
thereby increasing the income of local residents.

Looking forward, through mid-to-long-term planning
and implementation, we will continue to improve
social responsibility working system, strengthen
responsibility governance and responsibility integration,
and we will continue to enhance and innovate in the
pursuit of the perfect co-existence of economy, society
and environment.
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The Board is committed to promoting good corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and
to enhance the Group's performance. The Group believes that
conducting its businesses in an open and responsible manner
and following good corporate governance practices serve its
long-term interests and those of its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with Corporate Governance Code
(the "Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules so as to enhance the corporate governance
standard of the Company throughout the 2015 Financial Year
and up to the date of this annual report.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Board reviews at least annually the
corporate governance practices of the Company to ensure its
continuous compliance with the Corporate Governance Code,
and make appropriate changes if considered necessary. During
the 2015 Financial Year, the Board has performed the corporate
governance duties set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

None of the Directors is aware of any information which would
reasonably indicate that the Company was not in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code during the 2015 Financial
Year and up to the date of this annual report.

THE BOARD

The overall management of the business of the Group is
delegated to the Board. The Board is responsible for the
formulation of strategic, management and financial objectives
of the Group and ensuring that the interest of Shareholders
including those minority shareholders are protected. Daily
operations and administration of the Group are delegated to the
executive Directors and the management.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises a combination of executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors. As of the date of this annual report, the
composition and committees of the Board is as follows:

Audit
Committee

Directors = ENZEE

Executive Directors {/T£%E

Mr. Wilson SEA (Chairman)

Wilson SEA 4(2/E)

Mr. ZHAQ Zhijun (Chief Executive Officer)
WEBRE(7THAEH)

Mr. YAN Haiting &5 =% 4

Mr. WANG Wenbo 30 5t 4

Ms. YANG Weixia 5S4+
Independent Non-executive Directors

BUHATEE
Mr. CHU Kin Wang, Peleus k&% % 4% C
Mr. LI Zhigiang 235 & M
Mr. ZHANG Jinhua i &5 4 M
Notes:
C - chairman
M — member

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 23 to 29 of this
annual report and is updated on the website of the Company.

The Board believes that the composition of the executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that safeguard the interests
of Shareholders and the Group. The non-executive Directors
provide the Group with diversified expertise and experience.
Their views and participation in Board and committee meetings
bring independent judgement and advice on issues relating
to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process, which in turn ensuring that the
interests of all shareholders are taken into account. One of
the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus possesses the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration
Committee

FHEEE

EEE

EXRBRMNTES  SFRTERE LB
TEFEK  -RAFERSAY  EFGHAK
ESSE-p UL

Committees
Z58
Risk
Management
Committee
EAREEZES

Nomination
Committee

REZEE

Strategic
Committee

EKZEE

C C C
M M
M M
M M M
M
C M M
C—%xJ%
M- &
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.

The Group provides briefings and other trainings to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group,
together with its legal counsel, continuously update Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year, the Company organised a formal training
session for the Directors and conducted by its Hong Kong
legal advisers. The training session covered topics including
the Corporate Governance Code, the disclosure of inside
information and establishment of an internal control system. All
Directors attended the training session.

The Board meets at least twice a year and additional meetings
will be convened when deemed necessary by Board.

The schedule of regular meetings for the whole year has been
informed to each Director. Notices of Board meetings will be
served to all the Directors at least 14 days before the meeting.
Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by
the Company Secretary as delegated by the Chairman. All
the Directors are given the opportunity to include any matters
which they believe to be appropriate in the agenda of the Board
meetings.

Agenda and relevant documents of Board meetings with
adequate background information and supporting analysis
are made available to the Directors at least 3 days before
the intended date of the Board meeting. All the Directors are
given separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management for further information and enquiries.
The Company Secretary and senior management attends all
the meetings of the Board and Board committees to advise
on corporate governance, statutory compliance and financial
matters.
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Any material matters that would have conflict of interest
between the directors/substantial shareholders and the
Company will be dealt with at the Board meeting. Pursuant to
the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote on (nor is counted
in the quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of any
contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in
which he or any of his associates (including any person who
would be deemed to be an “associate” of the Directors under
the Listing Rules) has any material interest, except under certain
special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting
is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such
requirement at each Board meeting and their responsibilities
in making proper declaration of interest at the Board meeting
where conflicts of interest arise.

Directors have access to the advices and services of the
Company Secretary and key officers of the Company in
relation to the board procedures. Draft minutes of Board/Board
committee meetings shall record in sufficient details of the
matters considered by the participants of such meetings and
decisions reached and then be forwarded to the participants
for comments within a reasonable time after the meetings. The
final versions of minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board committee are kept by the Company Secretary, which
are open for inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow the Directors to fulfill their duties
properly. Directors may seek independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense, if necessary, with the approval of
the Board.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged
Directors and Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any legal
actions which may be taken against Directors and management
in execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of the Directors at the meetings of the
Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Strategy Committee and the
general meetings during the 2015 Financial Year are set out in
the following table:

gENLFELE

TREFIR - T AEHRFEDHESLREE
£% EREEE FHEEE EEERY.
BREE G B RRRARMN AR

Meetings attended/Meetings held
A Ve VA Ve
Risk

Audit Remuneration Nomination Strategy Management General

Board  Committee

Bhzee

Executive Directors #iEE
Mr. Wilson SEA (Chaiman) Wilson SEA %4(2) e NATER
Mr. ZHAO Zhijun BEERE

(Chief Executive Officer) (77 37) 1m NATER
Mr. YAN Haiting e M NARNER
Mr. WANG Wenbo ks nm NANER
Ms. YANG Weixia BEELL nm - NANER
Mr. WANG Ping (Note 1) TREEGT) 1 NATER
Independent non-executive Directors ~ U ##/7EZ
Mr. CHU Kin Wang, Peleus RELRE 1m 22
Mr. LI Zhigiang Nty 91 22
Mr. ZHANG Jinhua ks 1M 2
Ms. SHI Hongmei (Note 2) LR 44 i

Note 1:  Resigned on 31 December 2015

Note 2:  Resigned on 24 July 2015

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated
and not exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board and ensuring that all material issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
and the implementation of the approved strategies of the
Group. The Board is headed by the Chairman, Mr. Wilson Sea.
The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Zhao Zhijun.

Committee  Committee  Committee  Committee meeting
EMZEE REZEE  BMZES EREEZEE kxAg

NIA NER 11 L L 44

" NATER 1 NATER 24
NATER  NANER i 1 44
NATER  NANER  NATER  NATER 14
NATGER  NANER  NATER  NATER 14
NATER  NANER  NATER  NATER 44

n 1 NATER i 24
NATER  NANER 1 NATER 14

11 N m NATEE 1/
NATER  NANER  NATER  NATER 11
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With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman is
committed to ensuring all the Directors are properly briefed on
issues to be proposed at the Board meetings and be provided
with adequate information in a timely manner.

INEDs

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least 3 INEDs,
representing at least one-third of the Board and with at least
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise
throughout the 2015 Financial Year.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the INEDs of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent
of the management and free of any relationship that could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgment.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to
the Board for its decision. Generally, the executive Directors
constantly meet on an informal basis and participate in senior
management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to
monitor and ensure the management carry out the directions
and strategies set by the Board correctly and appropriately.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Company and the Board require each Director to
understands his responsibilities as a Director and the business,
operating activities and development of the Company. Every
Director is required to devote sufficient time and involvement
in the affairs of the Board and the material matters of the
Company and to serve the Board with such degree of care
and due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.

A comprehensive Compliance Manual has been provided
to each Director and will be updated from time to time. All
Directors have been updated and briefed the changes in legal
and regulatory matters to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the
Company and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities
under the laws and regulations.
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Each executive Director is responsible for the management of
the different functions of the business of the Group. The non-
executive Directors attend the Board meetings and give their
opinions on the business strategy of the Company and review
the financial and operation performance of the Group.

The INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent
judgment on strategic direction, development, performance and
risk management of the Group. The INEDs are all or a majority
of members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any
person as a Director to fill a casual vacancy on or as an
additional member of the Board. Suitable candidates who are
experienced and competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary
duties and duties of skill, care and diligence would be
recommended to the Board.

Each of the executive Directors was appointed for an initial
term of three years and each service agreement will continue to
be in effect thereafter until terminated by either party by giving
to the other party not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors was appointed for a specific term of three
years. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are
eligible for re-election pursuant to the Articles.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board
either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition to the Board shall
retire and be eligible for re-appointment at the next following
general meeting after appointment. At every AGM, one-third
of the Directors, including the Chairman, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders. The
Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement
and re-election as mentioned above shall be taken into account
in calculating the total number of Directors for the time being
but shall not be taken into account in calculating the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for
re-election shall have their biographical details made available
to the shareholders to enable them to make an informed
decision on their re-election. Any appointment, resignation,
removal or re-designation of Director shall be timely disclosed
to the shareholders by announcement and shall include in
such announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his
resignation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 5 Board Committees, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Strategy Committee and
the Risk Management Committee, to assist the Board for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The
terms of reference setting out the principles, procedures and
arrangements of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Risk
Management Committee are available on the website of the
Company. The Board Committees report to the Board their
decisions and recommendations at the Board meetings.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) pursuant to Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing
Rules, with written terms of reference in compliance with the
requirements of the CG Code in order to review and supervise
the Group's financial reporting process and internal control.
The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review,
oversee and supervise the effectiveness of the Group's
financial reporting process, internal control systems and risk
management.

The Audit Committee will hold meetings at least twice a year.

During the 2015 Financial Year, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held. The Audit Committee has recommended
to the Board on the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditors for the coming
year and the related resolution shall be put forth in the coming
AGM.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of
the audit and its cost effectiveness as well as the independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditors.
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During the 2015 Financial Year, the Audit Committee has,
amongst other things, reviewed the semi-annual and annual
results of the Company and the internal control matters of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
in conjunction with the auditors, the audited annual financial
statements of the Group for the 2015 Financial Year and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The
annual report for the 2015 Financial Year has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's external
auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, provided interim review
and annual audit services. For the year ended 31 December
2015, the total fee paid/payable in respect of services provided
by the Group's external auditors is set out below:

Annual audit services FERZRS
Interim review services R EAR B AR S
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1,324
486

There was no non-audit services provided by the Group's
external auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 19 October
2011, with its terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and maintained on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The members of the
Nomination Committee are Mr. Wilson Sea, Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus and Mr. Zhang Jinhua. Mr. Wilson Sea is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
policies and making recommendations to the Board on
nominations, appointment of Directors and Board succession.
During the 2015 Financial Year, the Committee has, amongst
other things, developed selection procedures for candidates
for directorship after considering different criterion including
appropriate professional knowledge and industry experience.
The Committee has also reviewed the size, structure and
composition of the Board and assessed the independence of
the INEDs. The Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and it can seek independent professional
advice at the Company's expense if necessary.

The Nomination Committee will hold meetings at least once a
year.

During the 2015 Financial Year, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee were held. On 27 March 2015, the Nomination
Committee convened the first meeting for 2015 with all of
the members attended such meeting. The re-election of all
Directors at the annual general meeting held on 9 June 2015;
assessed the independency of Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, Mr.
Li Zhigiang and Mr. Zhang Jinhua; reviewed the members,
structure and composition of the Board and discussed the
sufficiency of time and efforts devoted to the performance of
duties by the directors of the Company.

The Company is committed to ensure an appropriate balance
in the diversity of skills, experiences and perspectives and
angles of the Board members so as to support the execution
of business strategies and efficient operation of the Board. The
Company considered that “Diversity” is a broad idea. When
designing the combination of the Board members, the Company
may considered the diversity of members in various aspects,
including but not limited to sex, age, culture and education
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
terms of service. The Board appoints its members based on
their talents and in accordance with the business mode and
specific up-to-date needs of the Company. It also refers to the
objective conditions and the benefits of the diversity of the
Board members in selecting candidates.
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The selection of Board members is based on a series of
aspects of diversity, including but not limited to sex, age,
culture and education background, professional experiences,
skills, knowledge and terms of service. The final decision is
made upon the advantages of the candidates and their possible
contribution to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 October
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and maintained on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Zhao Zhijun, Mr. Chu Kin
Wang, Peleus and Mr. Zhang Jinhua. Mr. Zhang Jinhua is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee will hold meetings at least once
a year.

During the 2015 Financial Year,
Remuneration Committee was held.

one meeting of the

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the structure of remuneration for executive
Directors and assessed performance of executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for the
determination, within agreed terms of reference, of specific
remuneration packages for executive Directors and senior
management, including salaries, retirement benefits, bonuses,
long-term incentives, benefits in kind and any compensation
payments. The Remuneration Committee commits to bringing
independent insight and scrutiny to the development and
review process of the Group with regards to remuneration. No
director is allowed to take part in any discussion about his own
remuneration.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration disclosed are set
out in note 12 to the financial statements. The Directors’ fee
shall be subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments shall from time to time be determined
by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities and subject to a review by the Remuneration
Committee.
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The Board of the Company established the Strategy Committee
of the Board on 28 March 2013 with an aim to adopt to needs
of the strategic development of the Company, enhance the
core competitiveness of the Company, ensure the development
plans of the Company, improve the investment decision
form, strengthen the scientific decision-making, uplifting the
efficiency in investment decisions and quality of decisions
and optimize the management structure of the Company. The
current members of the Strategy Committee of the Company
are Mr. Wilson Sea, Mr. Zhao Zhijun, Mr. Yan Haiting, Mr. Li
Zhigiang and Mr. Zhang Jinhua. Mr. Wilson Sea is the Chairman
of the committee.

The Strategy Committee will convene at least one meeting
annually.

The Strategy Committee convened a meeting for 2015. The
meeting reviewed the overall strategic and development plan of
the Company and considered part of investment programs.

The Board of the Company established the Risk Management
Committee of the Board on 31 December 2015 with an aim
to assisting the Board in (i) deciding the risk level and risk
appetite of the Group; and (ii) considering the Company's
risk management, internal control systems, environmental,
social and governance strategies and gives directions where
appropriate. The current members of the Risk Management
Committee of the Company are Mr. Wilson Sea, Mr. Yan
Haiting and Mr. Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus. Mr. Wilson Sea is
the Chairman of the committee.

The Risk Management Committee will convene at least one
meeting annually.

The Risk Management Committee convened a meeting for
2015. The meeting reviewed and passed the terms of reference
and rules of procedures of the Risk Management Committee of
the Company in addition to the risk management and internal
control framework of the Company.
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ACCOUNTANCY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing
the Company’s financial statements for 2015 Financial Year
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Company’s annual report
is prepared and published in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a timely
manner. The Directors are provided with adequate information
to enable them to make an informed assessment of financial
and other information on matters for their approval.

The statement prepared by the auditor of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibility to the shareholders
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 77 to 78 of this annual
report.

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the assets of
the Group. The Company has from time to time reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems in order to ensure
that they meet with the dynamic and ever changing business
environment.

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function, and the training
programmes and budget through the Internal Audit Department
and the Audit Committee.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of dispatch of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the "Requisitionist(s)”) may, by written requisition (the
“Requisition”) to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in the
Requisition. The Requisition shall be lodged with the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong, at Units
4501-02 & 12-13, 45/F, The Centre, 99 Queen’'s Road Central
Hong Kong. The EGM shall be held within two months after
the dispatch of the Requisition. In the event that the Board
fails to convene the EGM within twenty-one days after the
dispatch of the Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. In respect of other
enquiries, Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board
through the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Units 4501-02 & 12-13, 45/F, The Centre, 99 Queen's
Road Central, Hong Kong for handling.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of continuing
communications with shareholders and strives to ensure
the timeliness, completeness and accuracy of information
disclosure to shareholders and to the protection in the interests
of shareholders. As a channel to further promote effective
communication, the Group maintains a website, allowing
shareholders to access updates on the Company’s particulars
where the Company’s announcements, financial information
and other information are posted.
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The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders
through general meeting of the Company to communicate with
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and all directors would
attend the general meeting to answer any questions from
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate issue. A shareholder is
permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote
in his stead. In accordance with the Articles, the notice of AGM
would be sent to all Shareholders at least 20 business days and
no less than 21 clear days before the meeting and the notice of
all other general meetings would be sent at least 10 business
days and no less than 14 clear days before the meeting.

The Articles have set out the rights of shareholders and
procedures demanding and conducting a poll on resolutions at
general meeting. Shareholder’s rights to demand a poll have
been specified in corporate communications to shareholders
and details of such rights are explained at the general meeting
of shareholders by the Chairman. In order to comply with the
Listing Rules, all the general meetings will be voted by way
of poll. The results of the poll, if any, are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

There is no amendment on the Company’'s memorandum of
association and the Articles during the 2015 Financial Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”). Having made
specific enquiries to the Directors and to the best of their
knowledge, all Directors had complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code
for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate
dealings in securities of the Company by certain employees the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries and the holding companies
who are considered to be likely in possession of unpublished
inside information in relation to the Company or its securities.
The Company has made specific enquiry of the relevant
employees regarding non-compliance with the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees during the 2015
Financial Year and they have confirmed their full compliance
with the required standard set out in the said code for the 2015
Financial Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Hung Man Yuk, Dicson as
the Company Secretary, and Mr. Hung is responsible for all
the secretarial service. Mr. Hung confirmed that for the year
under review, he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal control systems are maintained so as to
safeguard the Group's assets and the interest of shareholders.
The Board is responsible for reviewing the internal control
policies and has delegated the day-to-day management of
operational risks to the Executive Directors.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Group’s
annual results and interim results are announced on a timely
basis.
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Deloitte.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA FIRST CAPITAL GROUP
LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China First Capital Group Limited (the "Company") and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group") set out on
pages 79 to 161, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015 and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. WWe conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEakHMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-F—ari - A=t—HILEE

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—UE
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
HizE ARET T AREETIT
Revenue Wzs 7 1,087,737 830,704
Cost of sales SHERAR (862,401) (656,811)
Gross profit ER 225,336 173,893
Other income and expenses, HEr AKX
other gains and losses Ethioas & g5 1E 8 (11,340) (16,990)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE N D HERAXT (82,575) (46,745)
Research and development e
expenditure (36,571) (25,135)
Administrative expenses THRX (83,209) (48,388)
Finance costs IS Vp#N 9 (35,961) (31,629
(Loss) profit before tax BRRT (8518 ) % A 10 (24,320) 5,006
Taxation Fi1E 11 (3.390) (2,449)
(Loss) profit for the year FREE) =R (27,710) 2,657
Other comprehensive income E 2wk
Items that may be reclassified A @B EE
subsequently to profit or loss: EammEE -
Exchange difference arising on EINETSIRE PR E S
translation of foreign operation MEH =% 1,198 (44)

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive 4 X (518 )& F &

(expense) income for the year 2 (B ) WA L5 (26,512) 2,513
(Loss) profit for the year EIEFER(EE)
attributable to: Al
Owners of the Company FiN/NSIE YN (22,631) 2,657
Non-controlling interests IR (5,079) -
(27,710) 2,557
Total comprehensive (expense) EEEE(FEZ)
income attributable to: WALBZE
Owners of the Company VIN/NGTE 2 =N (21,433) 2,513
Non-controlling interests Elealilyria (5,079) -
(26,512) 2,513
(Loss) earnings per share T (EE) & T

— Basic (RMB) —ER(AREIT) 14 (0.06) 0.01
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2015
RZF—AF+=—A=1—H

2015 2014
—ZE-hfF —Z—OF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 15 468,326 438,357
Prepaid lease payments S 16 134,154 136,968
Deposits for acquisition of property, FEBWE% - HELEELZS
plant and equipment - 114
Interest in an associate R—EEE AR ER 17 2,500 2,500
Intangible assets mREE 18 419 -
Available for sale investment Al ERE
— unlisted limited partnership —JELMBERER AT 19 69,536 65,761
Goodwvill EHES 20 29,655 29,655
Deferred expenditure EEE - 490
Deferred tax assets FRIEFIIAE B 21 3,406 3,558
707,996 677,403
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 22 101,998 117,859
Trade and other receivables B 5N H M E IR 23 505,227 375,061
Loan receivables EWE R 24 43,234 -
Prepaid lease payments EfHEE 16 3,007 3,007
Restricted bank balances SRR HIIRTT AR 25 113,180 84,290
Bank balances and cash RITHBRER® 25 402,929 86,763
1,169,575 666,980
TOTAL ASSETS BEHAE 1,877,571 1,344,383
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amount due to an associate JE A< — B & 2 )30 3,832 6,669
Trade and other payables B 5 RHMPERFRIR 26 561,670 416,668
Advance from customers KEBEEREK 2,851 2,375
Borrowings — due within one year £z ——F R %I 27 436,508 338,744
Income tax payable FERFTEHL 23,472 20,234
Deferred income BRI A 28 806 817
Provisions BE 29 17,120 11,620
1,046,259 797,127
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEE(BR)FE
(LIABILITIES) 123,316 (130,147)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERBERADAERE
LIABILITIES 831,312 547,256
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At 31 December 2015

RZF—AF+=—A=1+—H

2015 2014
—E-HEF —ZE—OF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFTT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Borrowings — due after one year B ——F AT 27 62,416 147,832
Other payables H b e~ 08 26 544 777
Deferred income EEUA 28 14,316 9,273
77,276 157,882
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEHAE 1,123,535 955,009

OWNERS' EQUITY BE AR
Share capital e 30 45,311 31,318
Reserves i 708,725 358,056

Equity attributable to: FE(GREZS -
Owners of the Company KRATRHEBA 628,695 389,374
Non-controlling interests JEIE R 125,341 -
754,036 389,374

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' &&RIEEAEZEST

EQUITY 1,877,571 1,344,383

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 161 were £ 792161 BN i e M BHRELEETSR T
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on ~ —/~"F=A =+ \BH/EREERE - WHAT

28 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: ATREEE
Mr. ZHAO Zhijun Ms. YANG Weixia
HEERE BESZL
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
- mEEmBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

Reserves
i

Non-

Paid in Share Captal  Surplus  Translation ~ Retained  controlling
capital  Premum  Reserve  Reserve  Reserve  eamings  Interests Total
R B BERG  REEN HERER At

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(noteal  (note )

At 1 January 2014 R-E-mE-A-A 31,318 186,462 QN7 25,100 (472) 101,536 - 386,861
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - 2,557 - 2557
Exchange difference arising HEREEEREE

on translation - - - - (44) - - (44)
Profitand total comprehensive ~ ERETIRZERALE

income for the year - - - - (44) 2,557 - 2513
Appropriations BA - - - 1193 - (1,193 - -
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-RE+-A=t-Ak

1 January 2015 —E3-1%-F-A 31318 186462 0917 26,29 (b16) 102,900 - 389374
Issue of new shares (note 30) HTIRD(WE0) 1393 263012 - - - - - 277008
Non-controlling interests arisingon )\ BB FTEL S RER
- aoquisition of subsidiaries RGN - - - - - - 4124 4124
~ deemed partial disposal of ~BIEHENBARDA (i)

a subsidiary (note c) - - - - - (16251)  12629%6 110,046

- - - - - (162%1) 130420 114169

Loss for the year ENER - - - - - (22631) (5,079 (27,710)
Exchange difference arising HEMEEERER
on translation - - - - 1,19 - - 1198

Loss and total comprehensive EREEREAF LS
expenses for the year - - - - 119 (22631) (6,079 (26512)

At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+ZR=1-H 4311 449474 0917 26,293 682 64018 125341 754,036
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Notes:

(a)

The balance as at 1 January 2014 mainly arising from various
reorganisation to streamline the Group's structure prior to the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The balance comprising statutory surplus reserve and discretionary
surplus reserve, which are non-distributable and the transfer to these
reserves is determined according to the relevant laws in the mainland
China (the “PRC") and by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries
in accordance with the Article of Associate of the subsidiaries. Statutory
surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous years' losses or
convert into additional capital of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company.

Discretionary surplus reserve can be used to expand the existing
operations of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Nanyang Cijan Auto
Shock Absorber Company Limited (“Nanyang Cijan”) entered into a
subscription agreement with a subscriber (“Subscriber”), pursuant to
which Nanyang Cijan issued, and the Subscriber subscribed for, 30%
of the equity interest in Nanyang Cijan, at the consideration of RMB110
million by way of capital injection into the registered capital of Nanyang
Cijan in cash. The subscription issue was completed in 2015.

(@)

(b)

(c)

Bt

R-ZE—HFE—A—BNERIERARABRNES
BBMARXZMBERATIR EMAIAEESIBEHERE
EITZIREEMESE °

%A R B AR R 2K B E B AR A B 1B B AR
B HREREETOERBEPBEAE(HE])
M ERETRATENBARNEESREMNBEA
AMERERARRE - AERKRFBEA BERHE
FRRSER AN FTENE A RNEIER

B 5B AR R e A A R BT A R
EERE -

BE_FT-AF+_A=+—RHLFE  EEINRS
ERiReERE R AR ([ ]) @R A (TREA D
I RE R - B - EBIRE T - MRBBAR
R FSH30% A E - RKESARKI1I0BET
RBE T EREIMNREEMER - BBHITEN=-F
—hFTK °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

2015 2014
—E-EfF —E—E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETTE
Profit before tax BB A1 5 A (24,320) 5,006
Adjustments for: EYEH AT % -
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y = 412
Depreciation of property, Y% - WEREEITE
plant and equipment 26,629 20,574
Deferred income released to BEEEAETEWA
profit or loss (968) (1,378)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME - B KR
plant and equipment (Yez5) 18 7,134 (17)
Interest income WIS@N (1,881) (2,672)
Interest expense F B 35,961 31,629
Investment income TEWRA (7,093) (4,063)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ~ FEEWE - KiE RERED
deposits for acquisition of property, B RO ERE
plant and equipment - 1,508
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised  BtiF &R (HE)
in respect of inventories VERI=N R (4,404) 2,500
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  #tE 5 FEWIBHERH
trade receivables B R 3,392 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of gt H {th FEUL FIBFE R
other receivables VERIEY SR = 8,491
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FA¥IE - E M REHERH
property, plant and equipment WEEE = 33,680
Reversal of impairment loss recognised FHE 5 WG IAEER A
in respect of trade receivables, net BEREREE - F5 - (4,159)
Release of prepaid lease payments RIRTERES 2,814 3,021
Unrealised exchange gain REIRE H e (2,147) (340)
Written off of backlog contracts MIHTER A4 6,873 -
Operating cash flows before movements  &:B& & EHATH
in working capital KEReRE 41,990 94,192
Increase in loan receivables FEU & FIE N (39,934) -
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERADGEM) 20,265 (36,527)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 N Eo A FE WO IE I A0 (137,342) (72,021)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N E A FE A FRIEIE AN 140,105 91,784
Increase (decrease) in advance REFFHENR
from customers ORI 476 (121)
Increase in provision BAEIE N 5,500 4,120
Increase (decrease) in deferred RIEST
expenditure 2HCRA) 490 (490)
Cash generated from operations AL FTISIE 4 31,550 80,937
Income tax paid BETFTEH - (5,204)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING KETHABESFE

ACTIVITIES 31,550 75,733
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions of property,

RERE

2015
—ZT—hfF

RMB’000
AR¥T T

2014
—mE
RMB’000
ARBTT

plant and equipment (67,930) (37,874)
Addition of intangible assets NEEREE (419) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of MEEVE  WEREE

property, plant and equipment 2fize = (11,334)
Grants received in relation to acquisition MEEDE  HENERE

of property, plant and equipment BltEe 6,000 3,390
Net cash outflow for acquisition of U BB B A RIHVIR & R 5

subsidiaries (Note 317) (H1a£31) (4,081) -
Interest received BUF & 1,881 2,672
Dividend received [ 95! 7,093 4,063
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - HE K&

plant and equipment FR1S 38 4,565 549
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEENES - (3,561)
Placement of restricted bank deposits FERHIRITIF (113,180) (84,290)
Release of restricted bank deposits RS RHRITIER 84,290 54,970
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETBHFTAESFE

ACTIVITIES (81,781) (71,415)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
(Repayment of) advance from —fEEE R A (ER) R R

an associate (2,837) 5,819
Interest paid 2AFLA (35,908) (31,554)
New borrowings raised FTBE R 351,092 413,716
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHIR D PS50 277,005 -
Contribution from a non-controlling IEIERG AR R B E

shareholder 110,045 -
Repayment of borrowings BBER (333,000) (357,936)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING BME T BESFE

ACTIVITIES 366,397 30,045
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRSEEYILMNTE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 316,166 34,363
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FONRERRESEEY

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 86,763 52,400
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERREPRESEEY

AT THE END OF THE YEAR 402,929 86,763
Cash and cash equivalents represented ReRRSEEY

by Bank balances and cash BIRTTH M RIR € 402,929 86,763

Note:

Bret -

During the year ended 31 December 2015, other receivable of HE-ZT—HAF+-_A=+—HALFE  HMBEKFTBEBAR
RMB6,930,000, representing the deposit to a third party as security for other ~ #6,930,0007C#545 T 56 = H iR & (fE A E M £ FR (M 7E23
borrowings (Note 23 (c)), was offsetting with corresponding borrowings of (o)) B ) + BN E B EiBR G KA RE7,372,0007T1K
RMB7,372,000 at the date of settlement. 8 o
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1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 27 April
2011. The shares of the Company has been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 23
November 2011. During the year ended 31 December
2015, the Company changed its name from China Vehicle
Components Technology Holdings Limited to China First
Capital Group Limited. Following the completion of two
shares placements during the current year, the Company
no longer has controlling parties. Wealth Max Holdings
Limited (“Wealth Max") (incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands) and its ultimate controlling party, Mr. Wilson Sea
(formerly known as Xi Chun Ying) and other individuals
who have agreed to act-in-concert became the substantial
shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2015.
Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements,
another substantial shareholder of the Company, Hong
Kong Chuang Yue Co., Limited, holds 160,872,000 shares,
representing 29.09% of the Company'’s total issued shares,
the ultimate controlling party of Hong Kong Chuang Yue
Co., Limited is Mr. Tang Min Yang. The registered office
and principal place of the Company is set out in section
under heading of “Corporate Information” of the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 36.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the principal subsidiaries of the
Company operate.

—RER
KRR E——FNHA-_F+EtHERSE
SEMEK I AEREBRAR o RAFRNG
BER=ZZE——F+— A=+ =HBREEEH
ARSGHAERAR([BRAT])ERET - R
2T —AFE+_A=+t—HBIEFE " &
ARETBHETRERSHHRIBIERERA
AERATEEEEEBRAR - RAFE
ERFARMDEER - AR TEESEG
77 ° Wealth Max Holdings Limited ([ Wealth
Max] + RIEBEZEHS MK ) R E&K
25 75 Wilson Seast £ (BIBFE&HI) k&
tRAE—BITHIMATR T —HF+_A
=t+—BRARRARNEBRRE - HZEARE
BHRETEAS  ARAR S — B BREA
# iz B A R A A4 160,872,000 R fR 5
(HERARTEBITIRALEE29.09%) * M
BTG R A RN RRIEF 7 AEHSG L
o RARIM MR EEREBE X2
RERIAEER—&

RRBRREER AR - MBRREZEL?
HEEETO BT TESE

RAEMBHRRARNRFIEMBRRKLLEE
BRELTERERENEBARE(TAR
G EDER I
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

For the purpose of preparing and presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has adopted

for the first time in this year the amendments to the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which are
mandatorily effective for the accounting period beginning

on 1 January 2015.

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture'
Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 10 and Consolidation Exception?
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 Interest in Joint Operations?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative3
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation and
HKAS 38 Amortisation3
Amendments to Bearer Plants?
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate
HKAS 27 Financial Statements3
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

Except as described below, the directors of the Company
consider that the application of the other new and revised
standards and amendments is unlikely to have a material
impact on the Group's financial position and performance as
well as disclosure.

R REETERMBRESE
2l

RRAR 2V GEPBREK - AEERAF
EERRAN_Z—HF— A —HARKBE:
HARR oR b E S E ATV BB M & 2 R
([BEMBRELA DERTA

RAFE R REETBBYBRELE
A AEERAFEBEFENGRA M
KEEMRRAAR, RZEEE P BRERAH
BENUEEATE -

ARG B 3 e A T 51 AR AR 4B 1) R AR RO T
AT R AEERT BB IS MR

BEMBREER T FECTME
EEIEN BRE RN BREER
S

BEMBREENE 109N REFEEMENAK
BB G EAIF 265 AR RNEE
EEIES HEARA

BEMBHRSENE 105 REAER  ERSAAR
BRRBREENE12%E  HfIMER
BB EAIF26H

BiTA
ERUBRSANEIT  WBALEHERY
EiTA gite

BEGHEAFIRETR  THRE
BEGHEAF 16T R BRAEANTER
BB G ERIF36H 2N
EEIES
BRGHEANF 16T R EEMHEYP
BB G ERFMR
EHIES
BRGHER2RE A BURBFRRTH
A
BEMBREENENR  RTA
EEUBREENESR  KEANEPHIA2

T RN TREE A B2 R FE R

2 RIFR)\F-H-BRHZRRAKRNFERRE
B WRHRFRER o

¢ RIE-ARF-A-ARZERRRNFERRE
B ATIRERER o

BRIt &SN - RAREZRREAEM
#a] S ERT ERARIERT AT & S AL E
AR~ RBEARREEREREMNS

=7
N7
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9
was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement by
introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive
income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category.

Specifically, pursuant to HKFRS 9:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortized
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

FERFTRT RAIER] B R MM E L
RI(4E)

R-_FTNFRAENTBMEREERIEHR
SIANERFGESREENTRE - TEM
BRELRFEIREERN T —TFLET
NERERIBLtESRAENRARRLL

RERE - HTE-— TR T =FLKE
7 UBRAE—REPETENTRE
R-ZF—ME+L ABRMNEER K REER
FORA —EAIRA TR BIEa) 2R EEHR
BERKD)EBIIAIRAFEFAEME
s (R A EF AR EE RS )28
B BN ERAEREELERIER -

AEmE - RIBTBMEREERFESR

BERABGTERFEIR TR T AHBE N AT
FEHRTREE  HRECSHBERAIA
FEERARAGE - AEmE REERES
HRERENEBEAMFAENETRER
HenBeneEREERENAEERS
MAMENERRE  —RIZERSFHER
K2 #IENATE - REERKKREEX
HEnERHESREENEBEAMTAE
MEBTRE  AREBREES NIRRT
EHHMELANBREREERINAE KAE
BASHNFRNEBIAR  BRATEFAR
2 EW ST E ° A EMERRE RIRE
REBRERREMERBOQXFEE - It
S IRIBEBM RS ERIEN - EEEAIIA
AR E] b R 1R O At 2 T W R 2 51 BRI
BAERFEREE) HRNATFEZS - &
BENEREAERBELA -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont'd)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an 'economic relationship'. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity's risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group's financial assets including
the impairment assessment but is unlikely to affect the
Group's financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect on the
Group's financial assets until a detailed review has been
completed.

BRI REETERMBRESE
RI(&)

HREEERAFEFABENERE BN
B BEUBHREENFIRRE - RIFNE
iR e WEHAZAABEEERREEH R
ZegyEABENEER 0 TRIZA
BENEERREDSIENERBEQFE
HYHTHEANEBEMKRRES - SHMAE
EERBREFSIENEREBATERZSE
BETERNERREFOE - REFESE
AIZE395% - IHENBRARAFEARNE
BMABNMERFEESHSEINEEANE
5l o

HRERMEEMNRENS @ BFBSHALENE
WA THREELFEEBERAHERR -
BRNBMS ERFRRERAYEERE
BEAFE - BHREEEERAREERNE
BERHERAEERRRZSEREEBENR
HEHAR  URREERR B NS HERE
WEE - ME 2 BABSREEREREMH
AREREEEE -

—REPOI B RERERE =R E
FHRIE - AT - ARSI S RENR
ZRIS|AERNEEN - FhI2EETE
Hh TANTABE RS ETERIEN
SESRIIA B W AR D HARTY o )
Rz R B B R 18 BRI 17 A4S A B 4R J R BIJEX
Ko SR BABIEENTE - B
HeIAERERRRERZSHNRCHER

.
TE °

ARARERRY  BREBBFEUHHRSE
AIFSR B AR B E E (BIREN )
FERNSEARBRTE  HHAKEDN
TREETAAEBRTE - A - E-FA
R TR BASREN SR E ENM R
B AR LIFNERT
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

FERFET RAGIERT B RMBRELE
R (&)

R-ZF—MFLA  BEVBEHRSERF15
SEHEM - AHE-RE-—2EEAMHER
REERBEFPENMELNKBEARR - T8
BTSSRI FE 155 A BRI IR B R
R G EF 18 - BEGFERE
115REEEA K R HR R B s T RR 8 5 -

BEVBHRELREISRORORARER
PRI AR P 8 A B R R
SRR ERERRZERAEMMIRE M
NMRBEEESHRE - AgmE - £8/5
AT ERER S H P8 -

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer FE—#: BAEFRPIIZMNEL

Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the FE-H: BAEGHTHNBNERE
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price F=: ETRHE

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance FMF . BREBAREGHNFHENELE
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity FERS : RNEBTHENETRERNE

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company have yet to perform a
detailed review on the potential impacts of HKFRS 15.
Hence, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the financial effect and the relevant disclosures at this
juncture.

REBEFAFBREEAF 155 - BENTK
BHEERERNE - R ERLE 48
BRI S RIS A0 B | R TR PR o
BRI BRELERE1SFRERTE NN R
BIEMARRIEES - I - BREMBR
SEAEISFREMFHNEFROWE

ARFEELAREBHBREERB16%
BB TE B (TRBIR AT o B - RSB
BYERAAMBB LA B EH B ET
7
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (”Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("CO").

The provision of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ report and audits become effective for the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended
with reference to the new CO and to streamline with
HKFRSs. Accordingly, the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidation financial requirements for
the year ended 31 December 2015 have been changed to
comply with these new requirements where applicable.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirement.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

3. FESFHHE

AR RR DI EE SR I AR A
EBIHRESEARY o WO - HAUHE
ROEWRAES LR LSRR
BB ATED (AR ED) BEHERREE
%o

HEBDTGD(E6228 ) EHAFLER &
EERELBEZNEXBEHARAEE=Z
—AFE+ A=+ HITREEEK - It
h . ETRBIFTE AR ERE NEERRTE
BREHARHEBI ST - Wt A AR
BHRELAFBE—H - At - HE=-F—H
F+- A=+ A LFEFAMBREAN
BREMEREED FERABTFHENET
(tEmR) - BE—_ZT—mE+_-_A=+—8
LIEEF R E ML A B GR A B IS SRR IR 3T
BESHIHIEE -

RENBHRRORELKANELERH - BFL
AR —RIRB R ENE Y R RTE AT SR A 2
FEMEE °

RNHEETH2RERTERMERFIER
HHEBERWINERKEBRAER KX
NOER  EPTHEREERBEMEX
ERAR—HETEALE - RFEEEXA
BEORTER - iS22 EERFERH5
ZEESRBEEEREBREERH  AAKE
EEEZEERBENRS WEHEUK
WEPIETE R, LB B NN AT ERZ
BB EAVHRELEAE2REBER
ARG RERNTRR S - BEGFHERE
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Noncurrent
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of an associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Interest income is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy
below.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Cont'd)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme
or the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress), are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Prepaid lease payments representing land use rights in
the PRC are stated at cost and amortised on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Prepaid lease payments which
are to be amortised in the next twelve months or less are
classified as current assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses
(if any) on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset
is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XxE®FBEE)

(Cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations are
recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at
the director's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the Group's obligation.

For shares granted to senior management by the
shareholders, the fair value of the employee services
received is determined by reference to the fair value of
shares granted at the grant date and recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the shares granted
vest immediately, with a corresponding amount recognised
in capital reserve as deemed contribution from owners.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XxE®FBEE)

(Cont’d)

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the EEEEBKATESNBEXMETNAR
consolidated statement of financial position when a group SREENMBBRERE PSR HRERATER o
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured TREERERABBVSRATETE -
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable g TeMmEERBEGEAFETAE
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities =MEREE RSB ERIN) MEEELD
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities of fair RG] 2 TR B 1= F 1B S A 2 H0
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from BEZESREENSRBENATE -

the fair value of financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets THEE

The Group's financial assets are classified as available- REBENEREE BAMHEE ([AHEY
for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets, loans and receivables EemEE  BERREBYWFHIERATEE
and financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ AEH([EBRAFEFAEBRZDNERMEE -
("FVTPL"). The classification depends on the nature SETDEAREREENMERBR - WK
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at A ERRERE - WERATES ABRE
the time of initial recognition. Transaction costs directly CHEERCMBEEEELNRZZKAR]
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial R IBa R IR o

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method BEERFEE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating BERFERETDFTE S REENEHEK AR
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating DEAREEAF B WA T E - BT
interest income over the relevant period. The effective TR EEMNTEFHx(ER) BEH
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated RN ERRLIR Z V) P RS REFEN G
future cash receipts (including all fees or points paid or RIRIR WA (BIERE R E B F = A ] 2l 30
received that form an integral part of the effective interest SHENIBRH— I ERKEE - XHK
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) AN E g (B S HTRR ) B AR o

through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis BoBARATETFABRNERMEEIN -
for debt instruments other than those financial assets BB TAEMF WA TR ERRF = EAERER

classified as at FVTPL.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, loan receivables, restricted bank balances and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XxE®FBEE)

(Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss included in the ‘other income and expenses, other
gains and losses’ line item.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter
party; or

e Dbreach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

e |t becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables and loan receivables, assets that
are assessed not be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont‘d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables and loan
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable
or a loan receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group entities are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities (including amount due to
an associate, trade and other payables and borrowings)
are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. xEEBER(E)

(Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Group's management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
expected to be shorter than estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Change in these
estimations may have a material impact on the results
of the Group. Details of the movement of property,
plant and equipment and the estimated useful lives are
set out in Note 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-F—AF+ A=+ HLFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

(b) Estimated impairment of trade and other

(c)

receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying
amount of trade and other receivables is set out in
Note 23. Details of additional or reversal of impairment
on trade debts or other debts are set out in Notes 8
and 23.

Estimated impairment of inventories

The Group records inventories at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price for inventories, less all the
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sales.

Operational procedures have been in place to monitor
this risk, including regular review by the management
of the inventory ageing listing on a periodical basis
for those aged inventories. This involves comparison
of carrying value of the aged inventory items with
the respective net realisable value. The purpose is to
ascertain whether allowance is required to be made for
any obsolete and slow-moving items. If the selling price
is lower than expected, additional allowance would be
recognised. The carrying amount of inventories is set
out in Note 22. During the year ended 31 December
2015, impairment loss of RMB4,404,000 for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories was reversed upon
realisation of sales (2014: RMB2,500,000 impairment
loss was recognised).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-F—AF+ A=+ HLFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

(d) Provision for warranty claims

Provision for warranty is made based on the possible
claims on the products by customers with reference
to the warranty coverage period and the percentage of
warranty expenses incurred over total sales amounts
historically. In case where the actual claims are
greater than expected, a material increase in warranty
expenses may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which such a claim takes
place. The carrying amount of provision for warranty is
set out in Note 29.

(e) Estimated impairment on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, further
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2015,
the carrying amount of goodwill was RMB29,655,000
(2014: RMB29,655,000) and no impairment loss was
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2015. Details of the impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in Note 20.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—FT—AF T —A="1—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4. EXSHERAFTTREREZEE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)

(f) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment
The Group reviews the carrying values of its property,
plant and equipment to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets are impaired. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment individually, the
management determines the recoverable amount
of CGU to which the property, plant and equipment
belong. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment is set out in Note 15.

Following completion of the relocation of majority
production facilities from the old plant in Nanyang, PRC,
to the new plant area in the immediate vicinity, certain
plants, ancillary facilities and office buildings with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB33,680,000
in the old plant area becoming idle and were fully
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2014
as the expected recoverable amounts of relevant
assets are insignificant. In 2015, the impairment loss
of RMB33,680,000 was written off upon the disposal
of corresponding assets during the year ended 31
December 2015. No impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment were recognised during the year ended
31 December 2015.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts
(which include borrowings), cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, share premium, capital and surplus reserves,
and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a periodical basis. As part of the review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as issue of
new debt or redemption of existing debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

6. €T H
(a) £RWTEER

Carrying amount at
31 December

Rt=A=+—HHEREE

Financial instrument
classification 2015 2014
SRIAESE —E-AHfF —Z—OF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETTT

Financial assets

SRIEE
Trade and other receivables* Loans and receivables 481,201 358,503
B 5 R E b e Ia BER R ENFIA
Restricted bank balances Loans and receivables 113,180 84,290
ZIRHIRI TR ER R ENRIA
Bank balances and cash Loans and receivables 402,929 86,763
RITHABREIRE® ER R ERRIE
Loan receivables Loans and receivables 43,234 -
FEMWE TR ER R ENFIA

1,040,544 529,556
Available for sale investment AFS 69,536 65,761
AHEERE ATt HE

1,110,080 595,317
Financial liabilities
A=l
Amount due to an associate At amortised cost 3,832 6,669
JERT— B R Bl FRIE RSN
Trade and other payables** At amortised cost 490,212 360,530
B 5 K E M T RUIE * R SHR AR
Borrowings — due within one year At amortised cost 436,508 338,744
B — —F R EH Eize: (511D
Borrowings — due after one year At amortised cost 62,416 147,832
B — —Fiz3H £i78 Sz DN

992,968 853,775

*  Excluded advances to suppliers and prepayments. TEIER M ER SR R TA A -
**  Excluded payroll and welfare payables, other tax payable and > NEERENIARERN - Hib B TE R E
accruals. B -
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BE—FT—AF T —A="1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

The management monitors and manages the financial
risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk assessment which analyses exposures
by degree and magnitude of risks. The risks included
market risk (including interest rate risk and currency
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk on the variable rate of interest earned on
the restricted bank balances and bank balances.
The Group's borrowings have fixed interest rates
and therefore, are subject to fair value interest rate
risk.

If interest rate of variable-rate bank balances had
been 10 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's loss
for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
decrease/increase by approximately RMB439,000
(2014: RMB145,000 increase/decrease in the
Group's profit). In the director’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis above is unrepresentative for
the interest rate risk as the exposure at the end
of reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

The Group monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—_T—aF 1 -A=1+—HIFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)
(ii) Currency risk
Certain bank balances and borrowing of the Group
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$").
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

6. SMIAEE)
(b) ¢HEAKRTERERKE (£

(i) E#/m
RNEBE TRITEB RERTIAS
T([ATDEHE - R|EBRR - &
SEUINETENEBEEREBRE
ROBREELA T :

2015 2014

—E-EHfF —Z—OF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREFT

Bank balances — HK$ RITHERR — BT 264,930 33,333
Loan receivables — HK$ JEWE K — BT 36,247 4,041

Borrowing — HK$ B —AT (80,682) (42,230)

Based on the above net exposures, and assuming
that all other variables remain constant at year
end, a 1% (2014:1%) depreciation/appreciation
of the HK$ against RMB would result in an
increase/decrease in the Group's loss for the
year of approximately RMB2,205,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and (2014: RMB49,000
increase/decrease in the Group's profit). In the
director’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis above
is unrepresentative for the currency risk as the
exposure at the end of reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

The Group monitors foreign currency exposure and
will consider hedging significant currency exposure
should the need arise.

ER ERRFRE - WEREMEE
N FEREFTE  BILHA
RELBE1%(ZZ—MNF :1%)
REFHE  BERAEEHE=
E-—FE+-A=+—RHItFE
MEZBBEMN RO HARE
2,205,000 M (ZTB—PO4 @ A&
& 5 F 30,8 A A R 849,000
TL) e BERA - ARREHROE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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AFEF+-—A=1T—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which cause financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Credit risk is the risk of an unexpected loss if a
customer or third party to a financial asset fails to meet
its contractual obligations. At 31 December 2015,
the Group had concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as 24.2% (2014: 73.2%) of total trade
receivables were due from top 10 customers.

The Group manages this risk by reviewing the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt and
other debt at the end of reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

The Group's sales of automobile shock absorbers to
customers are mainly on an average credit period of
90 days. In order to minimise the credit risk, the credit
terms are granted to original automobile manufacturers
based on the creditworthiness and the Group's existing
relationships with the customers.

The Group has credit risk on loan receivables. In
order to minimise the concentration of credit risk,
the management has delegated staff responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. The management
also performs periodic evaluations and customer visits
to ensure the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant and adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amount. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties comprise of a number of banks which
are state-owned banks located in the PRC or those
with good reputation and high credit ratings assigned
by PRC or international credit-rating agencies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 6. EMIAE)

The Group had concentration of credit risk by
geographical location as trade receivables and bills
receivables comprise various debtors which are all
located in PRC during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2015.

Other than the concentration of the credit risk on
trade receivables, bills receivables, loan receivables,
restricted bank balances and bank balances, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of
credit risk.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
closely monitors its cash position resulting from its
operations and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due for
the foreseeable future. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank and other borrowings.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities as at the
end of reporting period. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
B2 —FE—hF1 - A=1—HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 6. ERMITAE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (d) REELRERE)
Liquidity and interest risk tables REE 2R FIF R

Weighted
average
effective Undiscounted
interest Within 3 months QOver cash Carrying
rate  3months  tolyear 1-2years 2-byears 5 years flows amount

nuw KR
; @AM ZBAZ-F -FEMEF MEERT GRRT ]
RMB'0OO  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBO0D  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'00D

ARETRL ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETH

As at 31 December 2015 W_E-1E&

tZA=1-8
Amount due toan associate  JEN—THEEAEIZUE nfa TER 3832 - - - - 3832 3832
Trade and other payables EHREMEAFE  naNER 472709 1669 - - - 89399 489,399
Other payables to employees  EREEHEHZUE 36 - 283 168 36 163 940 813
Borrowings & 58 171239 277131 795 60821 29647 546790 498924

647,780 294,104 8,120 61,147 29810 1,040,961 992,968

As at 31 December 2014 WZE-mE
tZA=t-H
Amountdus toanassociate BN —HEEELTHE naTER 6,669 - - - - 6,660 6,669
Trade and other payables LHRAMENZE  nhRER 37802 31540 - - - 35943 359432
Other payables to employees  [EfEEHE MR 36 - 3% 283 408 28 1275 1,098
Borrowings &5 6.7 57369 306,521 71,29 93,380 - 527,564 486,676
391930 337,397 nh11 93,788 243 894,940 863,775
(e) Fair value (e) AF{E

The fair value of financial assets (other than investment SMEE(RIELTAERESEARIRER
in unlisted limited partnership) and financial liabilities SN RSB B ENATEHREABIRIR
is determined in accordance with generally accepted SRENTAEENARTEBERET -

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The management considers that the carrying amounts BEERE  REHKANGEE SR
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at ﬁkﬁ%ﬁ‘]@%ﬁﬁ?‘&@@ﬁﬁa’qﬁﬁﬁﬁ
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements BEHENT(ERE °

approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WERDHER
Wante i & B MR IR PR £ RO M as o
AEBRESTOT -

Revenue represents revenue arising from sales of goods
and provision of services. An analysis of the Group's
revenue is as follows:

2015 2014

—®-H%F —T—ms

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Sales of goods HEEMm 1,082,008 830,704
Provision of services R 5,729 -
1,087,737 830,704

(a) Products and/or services within each
operating segment
The segment information reported was determined
by the types of products/services and the types of
customers to which the products are sold/services
are provided, which is consistent with the internal
information that are regularly reviewed by the
executive directors of the Company, who are the chief
operating decision makers (the “CODM") of the Group,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of performance.

In 2015, the segment information reporting to the
CODM was changed following the completion of
acquisition of new business (Note 31), Two operating
segments are identified focusing on the revenue and
gross profits attributable to respective segment. The
change in basis is to align with the Group's long term
business strategy. Following the change, the segment
information for the year ended 31 December 2014 has
been represented to conform to the presentation of
current year's financial statements.

(a) BEESBRANERR, RS

R R0 5 B KL T A @ IR AR
RIAEF i HER, /Rt R EA
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. W&k 5EER(E)

(Cont’d)
(a) Products and/or services within each (a) BEEIBANER KRB
operating segment (Cont’d) (%)
The Group has reportable and operating segments as REBEBATAIZHEEDES
follows:
e Automobile shock absorbers — manufacturing o RHERIRE - EENMAATEITEN
and selling of automobile shock absorber and RABREF R -_FHSHEERE
suspension system products to the automobile BIRES MRR R SEm ©

market of original automobile manufacturers and
the secondary market of the automobile industry.

e Financial and advisory services — engage in the o TRINMEERIRE —NERUBRER
business of provision of immigration consultancy o) N2 JBR PR 7% A % & 4% & A il AR
and advisory services and financial investment e

advisory services.
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) DEPU N D ERELE
Segment revenue Segment results

2 EB i DR
2015 2014 2015 2014

—®-H5F -—T-N& | —B-EF | —T-NF
RMB'000  RMB'000 = RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT  ARETR ARETT

Automobile shock absorbers JRE iR 1,082,008 830,704 219,607 173,893
Financial and advisory © BN R R RS

services 5,729 - 5,729 -
Total segment and DEBERERE

consolidated 1,087,737 830,704 225,336 173,893

Other income and expenses, HAblA KRB -

other gains and losses HrE N EER (11,340) (16,990)
Selling and distribution HERDHAZ

expenses (82,575) (46,745)
Research and development #2552

expenditure (36,571) (25,135)
Administrative expenses THFRX (83,209) (48,388)
Finance costs RE AR (35,961) (31,629)

(Loss) profit before tax KRR (B9 )% A (24,320) 5,006
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REMHRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. W& RkRoEER(E)

(Cont’d)
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) &R D IBHEE(E)
(Cont’d)
Revenue reported above represents revenue generated LA E2RRESIERIHE S IRIHRS

from sales of goods/provision of services to external
customers. There was no inter-segment sales during
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

THMEFPELEN S -BHE-—FT—F
FR_F-OE+_A=1t—HLF
B Bt SEAIHE -

The accounting policies of the operating segments are EED NG RRERNEESHECR
the same as the Group's accounting policies. Segment R - DEFEERSEEDINER

results represent the gross profit of each operating
segment, conforming to the same measurement
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

(c) Geographical information

The Group principally operates in the PRC (country of
domicile of the operating subsidiaries). No material
non-current assets of the Group are located outside the
PRC.

Over 95% of the Group’'s revenue from external
customers is derived from the PRC (country of domicile
of the operating subsidiaries).

(d) Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers which accounts for
10% or more of the Group's revenue are as follows:

(c)

(d)

B RERIFHEREBNMAEIE
BERRARRNFTEIRB AR -

h 35

AEEE TR (EEN B R A M
BIR)&E - NEBBMEERIEREEE
RIAFREIAZMEE o

REBERBINBEPAEREELSIB%
WA LR B P B (2 E M B A R0 RE i B
x) °

FREIEEFNEHR

EAREBRZE10%HA LKA TER
FrlkzsanT

2015
—Z-RF

2014
—T—JF
RMB'000
AREFT

RMB'000
AR¥T T

OEM - Customer A REBERER —BPA 154,337 157,571
OEM - Customer B [RE&EEER — R FB N/ATEF* 169,944
OEM - Customer C RERER —-RPC 244,288 N/ATR i B

*  The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of
the total sales of the Group for the respective year.

* HEARENERT R A S BN EREFE
EHFEN10% ©
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e BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

8. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES, OTHER 8. HMWAKBMX - HitlzmREE
GAINS AND LOSSES

2015
—ZE-hfF

2014
— TN
RMB'000
ARETTT

RMB'000
ARETT

(Allowance for) reversal of allowance ‘B 5 REE (&) & EF5E

for doubtful trade debts, net (Note 23)  (f{3123) (3,392) 4,159
Allowance for doubtful other debts HARIREAE - (8,491)
Dividends from investment in unlisted RIELTHEEEEZ AR

limited partnership WERE 7,093 4,063
Donation B (188) (276)
Exchange gain (loss), net bE 5 e (E518) - 58 4,659 (1,099)
Government grants (note) BB (H75F) 5,860 12,602
Impairment loss on deposits for BEVE BEX

acquisition of property, BiERSHRERE

plant and equipment - (1,508)
Impairment loss on property, Y - R K EREN

plant and equipment B E 1B - (33,680)
Interest income from bank deposits R B RITIFE A F BURA 1,881 2,672
(Loss) gain from scrap sales and RERLHE N BRIRE

aged products (E518) Has (5,321) 2,971
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, HEME - BRE&EHED

plant and equipment (518 e (7,134) 17
Loss on securities trading BEZHEE (2,426) -
Others Hitb (2,248) (1,864)
Penalties Eilo (6,009) -
Release of asset-related government fifE [ B & AR A MY I A B

grants (Note 28) (Hi7E28) 968 1,378
Storage services income 2 RIS A 1,790 2,066
Written off of backlog contracts MEHEEA 4 (6,873) -

(11,340) (16,990)
Note: e :

BTy — R BB R AR RN % R B G5
RITEAERMRZ MESHOEE - LS/ ARIE
BRMBER T RAERRREREE R REEME

The grants represent incentives received by a PRC subsidiary for the
eminent contribution in technology development and encouragement
of business development, etc. These grants are accounted for as
immediate financial support with no future related costs nor related to
any assets.
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REMHRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. RMIERA
2015 2014
—E-EF —TmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Interest on: ATNEIEOAE
Bank borrowings wholly repayable BRRFREBEEER
within five years RITIE 29,818 30,843
Other borrowings wholly repayable BRI EFRNBEEERN
within five years Hi 6,090 711
35,908 31,554
Accretion on other payables HibfEM BN EETE A
(Note 26) (H17#26) 53 75
35,961 31,629
10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BRTEADE F
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: BB AR R EHBR

2015 2014
—B-RF —ZT—F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR¥ETT

Employee benefits expenses (including EEREFFEXZ(BHEES) :

directors):

— salaries and other benefits — e REMEF 102,813 77,676

- retirement benefit scheme —RIREFIFT B

contributions 10,037 9,608

Total staff costs @8 TR 112,850 87,284
Auditor's remuneration e CiEA Tl 1,659 1,624
Amortisation of intangible assets EREESE(BIEEITIR

(included in administrative expenses) B A1) = 412
Cost of inventories recognised as EERAAINFEKA

expenses (included in cost of sales (BIEEHERAR

and research and development R ER)

expenditure) 880,478 666,766
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BENMEREITE

equipment 26,629 20,574

Release of prepaid lease payments fEpRTEN S 2,814 3,021
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e BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

11. TAXATION 11. Bi1E
2015 2014
—EB-HF —ZE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBFIT
Tax expense comprises: MBS B4
Current tax expense B ERT 18 =2 3,238 2,200
Deferred tax expense (Note 21) RERIBRSZ (HiE21) 152 249
3,390 2,449
The current income tax expense for the years ended 31 HE-T—AFE-FT—MF+-_A=+—
December 2015 and 2014 represents the PRC enterprise HIEFER M SN IR B EMRS
income tax which is calculated at the prevailing tax rate on Tt - ZARIETHRLA A B A 55 (B B B A FE AR AR
the taxable income of the group entities in the PRC. Under WARIBITREGTE o BIEBEFBEDEMSH
the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT E([REFRFBE]D REEMSTENE
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the 4R =TT N\F—A—Bi - FEHB
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January NEIMTER25% °
2008 onwards.
The Company and other companies within the Group REER R REMA RN BAGRERE
incorporated in Cayman Island and the British Virgin Island B SREREBR LS ([ EREE L
(“BVI") are not subject to any income tax. 5 )FEMakaL o
Group companies incorporated in Hong Kong have had no EEARNRBEBEMKY - BERKESEF
assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax since 110K 32 LA SR AR £ fe] ZB 4 4 & 78 R4S ) B
their respective incorporation. Bl
Way Assauto Srl was incorporated in Italy and has had Way Assauto SR E ARG - B HE
no assessable profit subject to any profits tax since its SR AR SZ AR -+ Sl A i SR A Ve ) B A AN AR AT
incorporation. FIFH o
On 15 December 2009, Nanyang Cijian obtained “High and RZZFTNF+ZA+HAB - EEREE
New Technology Enterprise” status (“Status”) for 3 years [T R T2 IRz ([HbRZ ) - ARARA BB
that entitles Nanyang Cijian a preferential tax rate of 15% = HEBNMREBE=FFBESR BH=Z
for the period from 2011 to 2014 according to the PRC tax ——FE T —FIE15%NERREH
law. The Status has been renewed in 2015 for another 3 o T —RFEER=F -

years.
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REMHRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

11. TAXATION (Cont'd) 1. RIE(E)
Other PRC established group entities did not have any Hitn R EK I EEEBRNEBE—_S—A
taxable profit for the years ended 31 December 2015 and FERZZB-NF+_A=+—HILFEWE
2014. R FERR B A ©
The tax charge for the years ended 31 December 2014 B E—NER_E—FRF+_A=+—
and 2015 can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit before tax BLEFEMNBERSY B Ba REMEE
per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other Wz R FTRBRTL AT (B518) SR FIE R T

comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2014
—E-FEF —T—mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT
Profit before tax BRI R (24,320) 5,006
Tax at 25% 1225% M) B R et E AT I8 (6,080) 1,252
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERFIBEIENTR ST E 3,391 2,003
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  NEJHIFE R L B FE G 2 &
for tax purpose 16,563 6,427
Tax effect of income not taxable BERRIMARNT ST E
for tax purpose (3,639) (2,268)
Tax effect of additional qualified BING B A R S %
expenses deductible for tax purpose SE(H5E)
(note) (4,526) (3,153)
Effect of tax concessions granted ) — A B E A RE R IE
to a PRC subsidiary BEENTE (2,159) (1,495)
Utilisation of tax losses previously B SR AR FERR AT IE 518
not recognised (160) (317)
3,390 2,449
Note: The amount represents additional 50% income tax deduction in Hist - ZL BB FAMMEE S ERFE AR
respect of qualifying research and development expenditures 50 % FI{S B IR ©

incurred for the year.
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e MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_F—RFf+-H=1—HIFE
12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
Details of the emoluments paid to the directors and
chief executive of the Company during the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
CO, on a named basis are as follows:

12. 5 > FETHRABREESHMH

(a) EBERTETHAEME
BE A TR R R A BHEGIA RIRE S
FARE  AFERARTDEERTE
TTRABXNHMEFFENT

Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z-AF+-A=1+—HLEE
Contributions

Salaries to retirement

Discretionary and benefit
bonus* allowances scheme
REER
STEIR @it
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT

Total

ik Bfgteas

FEREE
RMB’000

ARETR

RMB’000
ARBTR

RMB'000
ARBTR

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhao Zhi Jun BEELE 159 620 404 - 1,183
Mr. Wang Wen Bo TOREE 159 298 180 - 637
Ms. Yang Wei Xia BRERL 159 366 180 - 705
Mr. Wilson Sea Wilson Sea%t &
(re-designed as (M=%
executive director on —A—RHAL
1 January 2015) HTES) 1,005 2,530 - - 3,535
Mr. Yan Hai Ting BEELLE
(re-designed as (R=Z—-1%F
executive director on —A—BHT
1 January 2015) HITEE) 582 1,287 200 - 2,069
Mr. Wang Ping (resigned ~ F¥4&4
on 31 December 2015) (R=F—1F
+ZA=1+—RH&D) 167 419 1,005 15 1,606
Independent non- BUYTES
executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Jin Hua REELE 151 - - - 151
Mr. Li Zhi Qiang TEE 151 - - - 151
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus %27 5% 4% 151 - - - 151
Ms. Shi Hong Mei (resigned $ ZH2+
on 24 July 2015) (RZZ—1F
T AZ+HHEHT) 75 - - - 75
2,759 5,520 1,969 15 10,263
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REMHRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12.E% - X EfTHABK{EE & M

EMPLOYEES’' REMUNERATION (Cont'd) (&

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBERFTETHAEME(E)
(Cont’d)
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_Z-—NF+_A=+—HLFE

Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
Discretionary and benefit
Fees bonus* allowances scheme Total

ETER
ik WL HekEl ATRIER 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ANRBTT ARETT ANRBTT

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhao Zhi Jun BEELA 169 540 486 15 1200
Mr. Wang Wen Bo TIR%EE 159 310 180 4 653
Ms. Yang Wei Xia BEELT 169 349 180 n 699
Mr. Fu Peng Xu (resigned ~ [EMBEAE
on 23 May 2014) (R=T—RF
ER=+=HEHE) 4 - - - 44
Mr. Xie Qing Xi (resigned ~ #iiEE%4E
on 23 May 2014) (R=T—RF
ER=+=HEHE) 4 - - - 44
Mr. Wilson Sea Wilson Sea’t & 13 - - - 113
Mr. Wang Ping (appointed T4
on 1 April 2014) (R=ZE-m%F
mA—HEERF) 118 79 951 13 1,161

Independent non-executive B3 F&7ES

Directors
Mr. Zhang Jin Hua FEERE 140 - _ _ 140
Mr. Li Zhi Qiang ks 140 - - _ 140
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus  kEZE%4 140 - - - 140
Ms. Shi Hong Mei (appointed ¥ g2+
on 1 April 2014) (R=ZE-m%F
mA—HEZT) 106 - - - 106
1,322 1,278 1,797 43 4,440
Mr. Zhao Zhi Jun is also the Chief Executive of the HEBRENRARTEETHAS
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include A FPTR BRI F M BRI IE R E BT
those for services rendered by him as the Chief A BRI RIS BB
Executive.
The emoluments of executive directors and A EHITEERBYIENTESHHS
independent non-executive directors shown above DREERBSREEEERAD R RA
were mainly for their services in connection with the EEEBEANREREEARARTES
management of the affairs of the Company and the e

Group and for serving as directors of the Company,
respectively.



132 Annual Report 2015 3y HE EiE&EBE AR 27 China First Capital Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_F—RFf+-H=1—HIFE
12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)
(b) Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015 included 3 (2014: 4)
directors. The remunerations of the five highest paid

1NEE - TETBRAEREETMH
(&

(b) EEME
BE-_ZT—AG+-_A=+—8i1HF
B AEENALERSFALBE=SS
T ME)EE - AERSE

individuals are as follows:

ATEFBNEAT

2015 2014
—ZE-hfF —Z—OF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBFIT
Employees [=3=]

— salaries and other benefits — e MEMmER 3,757 2,572
— discretionary bonus* — BB IEAL* 5,888 1,625

— retirement benefits scheme — R R B R
contributions 15 47
9,660 4,244

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BENMES N T LATEE -

Number of Individual

AH

2015
—E—A5F

Nil to HK$1,000,000
(equivalents to approximately Nil
to RMB837,780)

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
(equivalents to approximately
RMB837,780 to RMB1,256,670)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalents to approximately
RMB1,256,671 to RMB1,675,560)

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
(equivalents to approximately
RMB1,675,561 to RMB2,094,450)

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
(equivalents to approximately
RMB3,351,121 to RMB3,770,010)

EZ 1,000,000 7T

(HHEgRHZE

AFR#837,7807T) = 3
1,000,001 TE

1,500,000 T (FEE R

#ANR¥837,780TE

AR#1,256,6707T) 1 2
1,500,001 7T

%2,000,00078 7T (FHE 7

4N RH£1,256,671T0E

AR#1,675,5607T)
2,000,001/87TE

2,500,000/ 7C(FEER

HANR¥1,675,561TE

AR#2,094,4507T) 1 -
4,000,001/ 24,500,000

BITEEROARE

3,351,121 T&

AR#3,770,0107T) 1 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

13.

14.

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors of
the Company waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

*  The discretionary bonus is determined having regard to the

performance and market trend by the remuneration committee of
the Company.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share is based
on the following data:

1.EFT - FETBRAEBREEFHFMH

13.

14.

(4&)

HE-_Z—AFK_FT-—NF+-_A=+—
HILFE @ AEBHERAARFEMESLK
hEmEmTATZHME - AHEAMA SN
AREEE R BBOME BEZT
—hEFERZF—HEHF+A=+—HLF
B BEANESREXRERETMH
B o

Y BBEADAARRFHERSREFERTR
EERE ©

BRE
REBEE-ZFT—HAFAR-_ZFE—HTNF+=A
=t+—HIFE  BERSSERRS @
B RS AR AR INEERERRS ©

Fh(E8)BA
SREAR(EHR) B TR A TR -

(Loss)/Earnings
(Loss) profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company for the

(&51])BF

purpose of basic earnings (loss) per wA(ARBFT)
share (RMB'000)
Number of shares BRE

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

ERERENME K
BB 8

IEREAEN(BR)ME
ARRHERANEEFAER)

(22,631) 2,657

400,369,973 384,000,000

No diluted (loss) earnings per share are presented as there
was no potential ordinary share outstanding during the year
or as at the end of reporting period.

HREFAREBEREAREBEAEITE

SNEREE B - MU E27|SREE(EER)
AH o
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e BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 3% - BERRE

Furniture, Construction
Motor  fixture and in  Leasehold
Buildings vehicles equipment Machinery  progress Improvement
B %ER

e AE R BE  EEIR  HEZE
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTr  ARBTx  ARETR  ARETR & ARETT

CosT s
At 1 January 2014 RZT-ME-F-8 227,389 13,653 5,599 245,136 7904 - 47,293 546,974
Additions "B 126 2,188 1,589 5953 34,745 - 3112 48,313
Transfer from CIP BERTREE 30,115 - - - (30,115) - - -
Disposal HE - (523) 5) (153) - - - (681
Exchange realignment ERRE - 2 (37) (13) - - - (162)
At31December 2014and  RZZ-IE
1 January 2015 +-RA=+-Hk
“T-1§-A-H 267,630 15,916 7,146 250,823 12,534 - 50,405 594,454
Additions e 11,758 - 2,537 14,060 23552 2,063 14318 68,288
Addition through acquisition  EBWENBAANAE
of subsidiaries - - 253 - - - - 263
Transfer from CIP BERIREH 34,580 - - 616 (351%) - - -
Disposal HE (26,777) (4722) (3,697) (81,888 - - (6627)  (123,711)
Exchange realignment AR - (6) (272) (13) - - - (291)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE
TZA=t-H 277191 11,188 5,967 183,598 890 2,063 58,096 538,993
ACCUMULATED ZATERNE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2014 R-3-mE-A-H (9.321) 2,939) (2,809 (81.471) - - (5390)  (101,930)
Provided for the year Enie (6,641) (1,236) (637 (10,130) - - (19300 (20574)
Eliminated on disposals R\ EE - 16 2 131 - - - 149
Impairment loss recognised  NEZEREAHEESE
in profit or loss (10,808) (129) (744) (18,159) (1,657) - (1,583 (33,680)
Exchange realignment ERRE - (1) 49 (110) - - - (62)
At31December 2014and  RZZ-EF
1 January 2015 T-R=t-Hk
Z5-1%-A-A (26,770) (4,889) (4139 (109,739) (1667) - (8903)  (156,097)
Provided for the year Ene (6,699) (1,300) (967 (14,088 - (454) (3.141) (26629
Eliminated on disposal RHERHE 18,540 2,600 3,749 78,820 1,657 - 6,646 112,012
Exchange realignment ELAE - ] 59 8) - - _ 4

At 31 December 2015 RZE-1E
T-A=t-H (14,929 (3.593) (1,298) (44,99) - (454) (5,398 (70,667)

CARRYING VALUES BaEE
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%

t-A=t-H 262,262 7,5% 4,669 138,603 890 1,609 52,698 468,326
At 31 December 2014 i ild
TZA=+-A 230,860 11,027 3,007 141,084 10,877 - 41,502 438357
Note: Others mainly comprise various ancillary structures including Hiit - B EEESENBHEEY  S8EER 8

wires, circuits and drainages etc. BERIKEE o
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e MIBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 15.%% - BMERS#E(£Z)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other FRTEZE TR AN B2 - R a8 18
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight- BT REMEeRER - R TAIEEF RS
line basis over the following estimated useful lives taking BB REERE

into account of their estimated residual value:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of B5 T EAS30F (AR &
lease, or 30 years RZE)
Motor vehicles 5-10 years E 5-10%F
Furniture, fixture and Over the shorter of the term of Bl RERRE  HESG-7F (B
equipment lease or 5-7 years HIRAE)
Machinery 1-15 years e 1-154
Others 3-20 years HAm 3-204F
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group HE_ZT-—HNF+_A=+—HILFE K
completed majority relocation of its working workshops SETHREHETEERERRER ([EME )R
from old plant area (“Old Plant”) to new premise. BRAFTM AR EEZRE - 5 TWE - K
Certain property, plant and equipment becoming idle EREHEHE  ZRAEBMEEEMNEANR
that is considered to be a material impairment indicator EBERFR -R-_ZT—NF+_A=+—H &
of the assets in Old Plant. At 31 December 2014, the RREFE ERBEH L EZA A IRE BT
directors of the Company assessed the recoverable HEHEEENWEFRIE - BEBEHOA
amounts of assets in Old Plant, mainly based on expected R #33,680,0007T * ANERERFHE BN
recoverable amounts upon disposal. An impairment loss AR E (B ERR AR E AR ERRIE - BERERRN
of approximately RMB33,680,000, being the excess of HE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—HILFEMHAE
the carrying value of the Old Plant over the corresponding mH e RAFE - AEBEBAERE - K
recoverable amount at the year end date, has been TERAR B B TE i S8 A R #E33,680,0007T ©

recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2014. In current year, the Group has written
off the Old Plant and the associated impairment loss of
RMB33,680,000 were written off accordingly.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. EffHEE
RMB'000
AREFIT
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NFE—H—H 139,435
Additions e 3,561
Charged for the year FRMk (3,021)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZBE—NF+-_A=+—HK
—Z—h%—H—H 139,975
Charged for the year FRMER (2,814)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—RE+-_A=+—H 137,161
2015 2014
—B-HF —E—E
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
Analysed for reporting purposes: FLERIRE BT
Current assets TRENEE 3,007 3,007
Non-current assets FRBEE 134,154 136,968
137,161 139,975
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise medium- AEEMBEMNESBEAN R EA BB L
term leasehold land located in the PRC. Prepaid lease FE T - RSN T48ZE504F KT EA
payments are released to profit or loss over the lease terms e Eiaas o
ranging between 48 to 50 years.
17.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. REEE R BV RE R
2015 2014
—B-HF —E—FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Cost of unlisted investment in an R—REBERRELETMIRER
associate [p#N 2,500 2,500
Share of result and DEEE R EMM AR

other comprehensive income - -

2,500 2,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE—_T—aF 1 -A=1+—HIFE

17.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont’d)
WO | EIR 2R PR A &) Zhejiang Xichuan Shock Absorber
Company Limited (the “Zhejiang Cijan”) was established
in the PRC with a registered capital of RMB10,000,000
in 2013 and is engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of shock absorber component products. Zhejiang Cijan
is owned as to 25% by the Group and 75% by another
investor. The Group is able to exercise significant influence
over Zhejiang Cijan because it has the power to appoint
one out of the three directors of Zhejiang Cijan under the
provisions stated in the Articles of Association of Zhejiang
Cijan.

Summarised financial information in respect of Zhejiang
Cijan, representing amounts shown in associate’s financial
statements prepared in conformity with HKFRSs is as
below:

Current assets MENVAE
— cash and cash equivalent —-RekBRSEED
Non-current assets EMENVE EE
Current liabilities mENEE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Revenue Wz
Profit for the year F 5 F
Other comprehensive income E b 2=

17.

RS QT ER(Z)

AT AR 22 A B A &) ([T AT ) =
T=—FEHPEKY sMERABARE
10,000,0007T © #EERIRES T EBHAIRIE R
HEER - MINBBEAEB RS —B&RE
FHDBIHEE25% M T75% s o AL B R
IWBITEEATE N  REAEAERE
AR A 4B AR E 2 A BIFT SIS REA
BEMIN TR =R ESE R —% -

TXEUR BRI INR M K ER - BER
ARV B RE LR MREE SR RPBHRE
FIRE%R

2015 2014
= e
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSTE| ARETE
10,933 8,140
6,334 679
2,887 3,751
(3,5632) (1,892)
9,433 11,436
289 1

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
Zhejiang Cijan recognised in the consolidated financial
statements is as below:

£ XX PRt B 75 B R B AR A B T SRR P
R DNB R A R EES RN T -

2015 2014

—B-HF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREETTT

Net assets of Zhejiang Cijan AR B B B FE 10,288 10,000
Proportion of the Group's ownership TR EE BRI B B 2k B A

interest in Zhejiang Cijan FEZREL 1D 25% 25%

Carrying amount of the Group's ANEE ST TAT RS R BR E (E -

interest in Zhejiang Cijan, BRI GFAE(WE)

adjusting by unrealised profit (if any) 2,500 2,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

18.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BILEE
Security

Customer trading
relationship Patents licence Total

EFH% R BEXZER At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®ETT ARETRT AR®TT ARETR

COST (DN
At 1 January 2014 and RZE—NF—A—HK
31 December 2014 —T—NF
+=-A=+—H 3,593 555 - 4,148
Addition NE - - 419 419
At 31 December 2015 RZT—h%F
+=-A=+—~H 10,466 555 419 11,440
AMORTISATION AND BELRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NF—HF—H (3,181) (555) - (3,736)
Charge for the year FRNBR (412) - - (412)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—MF
+=-A=+—H (3,593) (555) - (4,148)
At 31 December 2015 RZT—h%F
+=-A=+—H (10,466) (555) - (11,021)
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 RZE—HF
+-A=+—H - - 419 419
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—MF
+-A=+—-H - - - -
The above customer relationship and patents were acquired FEFPEARIFENTEBRN T REH
through a business combination in 2006. EBEHEA ©
The above intangible assets have finite useful lives and are FiEEEREBEEMNAIFEAFE - WA
amortised on a straight-line basis over the following periods HiRAR B UL B BBEET R T 51 B A8y

from the acquisition date:

Customer relationship 8 years Sl 8%F
Patents 4 years =H| 45
Security Trading Licence 10 years FEHZHHER 104
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 19. JHHERE
2015 2014
—E-HEF —ZE—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Unlisted investment: I EmRE :

— Limited partnership —BREB AT 69,536 65,761
On 18 November 2013, the Group has invested AEBRZ-_ZT—=F+—A+/\HM
HK$83,000,000 (approximately RMB65,761,000) in First First Capital Automotive Component
Capital Automotive Component Industry M&A Fund L.P. Industry M&A Fund LP.(T&BAFA])FE
(the “Partnership”), an exempted limited partnership 83,000,000 7t (49 A £ #565,761,0007T ) -
established in the Cayman Islands principally engaging ZARRRHAESHEXNINERRERET
in making investments in and carrying out consolidations EBNR] EEXEBARFEKEINEE -
and mergers and acquisitions of automotive component HERHBEABETHHEBNEE - a8 A
business and assets in the PRC and overseas. The initial AIFTE B A S M ¥ 25 415 5 200,000,0004
size of fund managed by the Partnership amounting to 7 ©
HK$200 million.

The investment is measured at cost less impairment ZIARE RS BRU A IBR R BT = -
at the end of the reporting period because the range of REREBEATEGESREFTER  2AF
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the fair BETEEASATE ©

values cannot be measured reliably.

20. GOODWILL 20. HE
RMB'000
AREETTT
COST PR AR
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 RZE—NF—H—H ZZE—NOFK
and 2015 —E-RF+-A=+—H 29,655
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 RZE—NF—HF—H ZZE—MOFK
and 2015 —E-RF+-A=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2014 and 2015 R_ZE—NFER—ZF—RF
+—A=+—H 29,655
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has RETRENSR  BEOEZE— %?ﬁé%%%ﬁ
been allocated to one PRC subsidiary which engages TERIRAE RBERGE AT B A

in manufacturing of automobile shock absorber and
suspension system products.
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HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

20. GOODWILL (Cont'd)

21.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the management
determines that there is no impairment of the CGU
containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period. The CGU's cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 1.96% (2014: 2.32%) growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the relevant industry long-term growth rate in the
jurisdiction the CGU operates. The discount rate applied is
11.37% (2014: 14.51%).

Key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the CGU’s past performance and management'’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of
the CGU to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets:

20. HE(EZ)

21.

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HLEFE &
BERR  PERENReEELBMITER
Ao

ReELBMMAIKRESEHREERER
STEEAER c ZErEAFERRESRERA -
MRS RETEAEREEE i ENF
HISTEE BRI - SBBSFHMIN S EA BN
RS RERA1.96%(—ZF—P4F :2.32%)
MIETHREHY - ZWRESERESE
E B EMERAERAAREITER AL
REREBH - MEAMAEEA11.37%(ZF
—PO% : 1451%) °

FEREEFEENEIERRSRASRA
MEREE AP ERBAEHEERER
. BRMARERYREELSMUNBE
RANEEEBHTSERNOARFL - €1
BRA  EMARRRONEMIESEES)
TR RCELBUNERSRBBRS
ELEBMMAKREISHE -

EEBLE
AT BIEEBIEBEN AT

Allowance Provision for
for obsolete or
doubtful slow-moving
debts inventories Total
BREDS
RRRE HHEERE #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETIT ARET T AREETIT
At 31 December 2013 RIE—=4F
+=-—A=+—~H 1,961 1,846 3,807
(Charge) credit to profit (0B )EF AEZ=
or loss (Note 11) (HiaF11) (624) 375 (249)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—PF
+-A=+—~H 1,337 2,221 3,558
Credit (charge) to profit or AR ERE
loss (Note 11) (H1a#11) 509 (661) (152)
At 31 December 2015 R-TE—HF
+=—A=+—H 1,846 1,560 3,406
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BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

21.DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 21 BEBRIE(E)

The Group had unrecognised tax losses as follows:

REBARFERNOBIBEIRIT

RMB'000
ARETTT

At 1 January 2014
Reduction upon deregistration of a PRC

R-E—MFE—H—H 8,181
— fi] e PR B 2 R BUH A R >

subsidiary (1,267)
Addition INE 8,012
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZE—NNF+_A=+—"HK

—E—hF—HA—H 14,926
Utilisation B (639)
Addition NE 13,561
At 31 December 2015 RZEBE—RAF+-A=+—H 27,848

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of unrecognised tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profits streams. As at 31 December 2015, the tax
losses of RMB14,069,000 (2014: RMB1,291,000) will
expire up to 2020 (2014: 2019). The Group has no other
significant unrecognised deferred tax assets for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries that are received by non-PRC resident entities
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Other than Nanyang Cijan,
other group companies established in the PRC has no
distributable profits as at 31 December 2015 or 2014. At 31
December 2014, deferred taxation had not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of Nanyang Cijan amounting to RMB112,150,000 as the
Group was able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it was probable that the
temporary differences would not reverse in the foreseeable
future. There was no accumulated profits of Nanyang Cijan
as at 31 December 2015.

22.INVENTORIES

AR ARREF RO ER M - WER
AR BEERERECRBEE - K=
T-—FHF+-_A=+—H BMEEBEA
R #14,069,000 L ( — T —4F : AR
1,291,0007C) R —ZE =T F (=T —UF :
ZE-AF)HB - BEZE—RER=-F
—E+—A=+—HILFE  KEELE
HihERARBRELERIHEE ©

BECEREHE A N\E—H—H
BFTFEERMCEGHKEGTEMNBEA
BT BREUR T SR HO AL B B U FE N © B
FARSHRSN - MR BER BB A TR
—E-RFR_FE-WNE+-_A=+—H¥%
MO DEEF c RZE—mE+=—A=+—
B - AR E AL Sie ) B o B RS 1 = 5
BN EE R EEEA RN A FB R Bk
TefE - I ENRE SRR BN
R 5T A AR 112,150,0007T &1 B B S
MEEREHBIEHES - mBITRR=F
—RHFE+-_A=+—BAEEZREF -

22. 78

2015
—B-AfF

RMB’000
AR¥T T

Raw materials JRAT
Work-in-progress T2
Finished goods I i

24,045 23,307
5,205 4,274
72,748 90,278

101,998 117,859
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. ES R HMEWRIE
Trade and other receivables comprise the following: B 5 NAMEWFIEEIEATEIA
2015 2014
—Z-hfF —ZT—MF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETTT
Trade receivables (note a) B SN IE (S Fa) 392,224 337,259
Less: allowance for doubtful trade debts g : FEE& S (12,307) (8,915)
379,917 328,344
Bills receivables (note b) IR (HT7tb) 76,626 8,990
Other receivables (note c¢) E b N ERIE (fTatc) 32,579 36,798
Less: allowance for doubtful other B EA R BRI E
debts (7,921) (15,628)
24,658 21,170
Value-added tax recoverable AR A g (EF 3,204 2,360
Advances to suppliers M ER B 20,822 14,197
Total trade and other receivables B REMERIEESE 505,227 375,061
Note a: Kizta -
The ageing of trade receivables presented based on invoice date (also 2RI R HE (MR B EIEE ) 250 E 5 UG
approximate to the date of revenue recognition), net of allowance for I8 (R RERE AR HOBRER 2O T -

doubtful debts, is as follows:

2015 2014

—E-AF —ZE g

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T ARKEFT

0 to 90 days 0£90K 366,503 293,872
91 to 180 days 91E180K 9,659 15,377
181 to 365 days 181E365K 3,755 12,159
1to 2 years —EMF - 6,936

379,917 328,344
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
Note a: (Cont’d)

23. B R HMEWFIE(Z
Kiita - (&)

B RERBEBHINT

Movement in the allowance for doubtful trade debts:

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—mEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Beginning balance FHEEH 8,915 13,074
Addition A0 4,764 1,997
Reversal of allowance for doubtful trade debts — REEEER D (1,372) (6,156)
Ending balance FAREEH 12,307 8,915

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed the
potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit limit to each
customer on individual basis. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed once a year.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from
the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting
period and no impairment is necessary for those balances which are
not past due.

At 31 December 2015, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB13,414,000 (2014: RMB34,472,000), which are past due for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered
recoverable based on repayment history of respective customer. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

ERMENHERPH  ARECHEERPNGEREE
FETHE  LRENEEREERRPMNERE
E - BIBEPHREEFFR IR -

WRER ZBAGIAN ATKREIEER - AEEZE R B K
MEHEEZ B EEEREHNREFREFRNGEE
HROEMEE - MARRNEHRERERE

RZTE—AF+-A=+—H0 BEREEOARYE
13,414,0007C( = — 04 : AR¥34,472,0007T) H
BT ARNEBNE S RBGIEES - Tz SEKE
HEBE  EHRNEEERTESAEZ RIREEHE
BPBRTHE xR EREMWREARKE - Bt - &
SEVARAX SR EHEREBERE - ASEHER
MRS A EAER R o

DA EERERN B 5 RUGRIRRRE

2015 2014

—E-RE

RMB’000
AR®TT

—ZT—mEF
RMB’000
ARETT

91 to 180 days 91E180K 9,659 15,377
181 to 365 days 181£365K 3,755 12,159
1to 2 years —EMFE - 6,936

13,414 34,472
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
Note b:

Bills receivables represent $8777# M [EZ2 (“banker’s acceptances”), i.e.
time drafts accepted and guaranteed for payment by banks in the PRC.
Those banks accepting the banker's acceptances, which are state-
owned banks or commercial banks in the PRC (the “PRC Banks"), are
the primary obligors for payment on the due date of such banker’s
acceptances. The Group accepts the settlement of trade receivables by
customers using banker’s acceptances accepted by the PRC Banks on
a case by case basis.

The ageing of bills receivables, presented based on receipt date, is as
follows:

23. ES R HMEKRFIEE)

Hizth

EWRREERTELER([RITALESR]) - BIFE
RITUNAMEZRIELERNEHESR - ZFEF
RITAGLERMNRT AT EEARITHEERT(TH
BRTT))  YRRITAAERNIHEARTIEARX
A - AEERERNBEREZ TP EATRERITER
RERITACLERE N E 5 KR

ERRBERERZWIR R IZ510T

2015 2014

—B—hfF —ZE—mE

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREBFT

0 to 90 days 0E90K 75,642 8,990
121 to 365 days 121E365K 984 -
76,626 8,990

Note c:

Included in the balance is (i) an amount of RMB nil, net of allowance for
doubtful other debts of RMB7,921,000 (2014: RMB nil net of allowance
for doubtful other debts of RMB8,491,000), representing service/rental
receivable in respect of storage and machineries from a third party; (ii)
RMB12,298,000 (2014: RMB6,930,000, net of allowance for doubtful
other debts of RMB2,020,000) concerning deposits to third parties as
security for other borrowings; and (iii) balances comprise of employees’
travel advances, deposits paid to local tax authorities, rental deposits
and certain prepayments, all of which are expected to be recovered
within twelve months after the end of reporting period.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful other receivables:

Hizte -

ZEERPEEOREFREEMER—BE=F0R
B/ HERBARBET  MKEMREBEBEARYE
7,921,000t (=2 —F : ARBZ T HIKEMR
BR # f5 A R%8,491,0007T) : (i) AR #12,298,0007T

—ZT—O4F : AR¥6,930,0007T 5 H &G T —
EE=FERRRNES MREMREREEARYE
2,020,0007T)) ¢ (i) E{E EOERBR - X Finr
REBNIES  MeReARE TEMARBAKRNGE
8 - ZSEHRTERNRERRE T @A AkE -

HA R SRR BB R BT

2015 2014

—B-AF —T

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Beginning balance FHEEH 15,628 7,137
Addition Byl - 8,491
Written off =] (7,707) -
Ending balance FARES 7,921 15,628
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BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

24.LOAN RECEIVABLES

25.

Loan receivables from third parties

ERE=TT AL ERK

24. EREFR

2015
—ZT—hfF

2014
—T—JuF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT

43,234 -

The balances outstanding at 31 December 2015 are of
original maturity terms ranging from 1 month to 12 months,
carrying interest of 12%-15% per annum.

Included in the Group's loan receivables balances
is a debtor with carrying amount of approximately
HKD3,000,000 at 31 December 2015, which is past due
as at the reporting date. Considering the high credibility
of these customers and subsequent settlement, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of the unsettled balances.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from
0.001% to 0.35% (31 December 2014: 0.35% to 0.50%)
per annum.

Restricted bank balances, carrying interest at market rates
ranging from 0.35% to 2.05% (31 December 2014: 2.6% to
3.3%) per annum, represent amounts deposited with banks
as pledge for the bills payable with an original maturity of
three to six months issued to suppliers for the purchase of
raw materials.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to foreign
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

25.

RZZB—RAF+-A=+—BrREMNEH
REFMAAE—ZE+_MEA  FAENT
12%%15% °

AEENERERBRE —SER_Z—1F
+ = A=+—HMREEA%3,000,00075 7T
WER  ZEZEHERBEEHEEH - 57 &
ZERPHMRITEEREEREN  BRER
EHARARENERIEDLRERE -

REBERRZEEHIE ETERE o
ZRERITES RITERRAE

SRITESBERENT0.001%E035% (==
—MOFE+=-—A=+—H : 0.35%£0.50%) °

ERENTF0.35%%2.06%( —F—PNE+—
B=1+—8 :26%%=33%) N RHIETLH
& BIEHRRRITIEARNREERRNES
B ZENERBERET T HENUEERM
¥ RERHAA=ENEA -

ARBTAETEBHLE - MEFTBEAE
HE S AR T BERITRSNEE HIFTR o
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EZ R HMENRIE

Trade and other payables comprise the following: B 5 NAMENFIEEEATEIA
2015 2014
—EB-HF —E—mEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT
Trade payables (note a) B S RN FIE N ita) 357,438 268,698
Bills payables (note b) FERTZEIR (H5ED) 112,680 82,570
470,118 351,268
Other payables E 1t fEf IR 19,281 8,165
Other payables to employees (note ¢)  HfthfEHE 8 89708 (Hitc) 813 1,097
Other tax payables E b R TE 32,547 28,400
Other accruals HivEz+ 2B 25,969 19,717
Payroll and welfare payables B TE RiEFFI8 13,486 8,798
562,214 417,445

Less: Amount shown under non-current & : /R IERBIBE FHKIE
liabilities (544) (777)

Total trade and other payables shown  FII;RAREEE NHE S LEM

under current liabilities FERTFRIB4E5E 561,670 416,668
Note a: Kizta -
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented based NTARREHRNE SENRBEZEZAHZIIE
on invoice date at the end of the reporting periods: BT
2015 2014
—B—hfF —T—WNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR¥ETTT
Within 90 days 90K 319,986 234,446
91-180 days 91E180K 33,990 31,125
181-365 days 181E365K 1,166 1,247
1-2 years —EME 2,296 1,880

357,438 268,698
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d) 26. E5 R EMENTRIE(E
Note b: Hiatb -

AT ARBEHRNENERREZAHZIIRED

The following is an ageing analysis of bills payables, presented based

on issuance date at the end of each reporting period: #r
2015 2014
—E-RF —E U
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Within 30 days 30KA 4,260 11,140
31 to 60 days 31Z260KK 12,430 20,400
91 to 180 days 91ZE180K K 95,990 51,030
112,680 82,570

Trade payables and bills payables principally comprise amounts
outstanding for purchase of materials. The average credit period for
purchase of goods is 90 days. The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that sufficient financial resources are
maintained to meet its financial obligation as they fall due.

Note c:

Other payables to employees are interest-free and the settlement of
the obligations is estimated to occur through to 2026. The payable to
employee are calculated at the net present value of estimated future
net cash flows of the payment obligation, discounted at 3.6% per
annum at 31 December 2014 and 2015, respectively. Management has
allocated the payables that are expected to be settled within twelve
months after the end of reporting period as current liabilities. No assets
was legally restricted for the purposes of settling the payables.

BIRNFARENREEZEEBEMEARMTARK
- BEERNTHERPROX -AEEEREH
BERE R RRERERT T RN EERARNIT
BERMRNEE

Hate -

EfHERREMKIBRRE » BXREETEMEE—
TRFHRER RZT-—HNFR_T-—AF+=
A=+—8 ' Ef{EENFURRNRE EN B RE
FHREREBAFREYL S FIRTF3.6%H L RBERA
& o BEERPHNREPRE T EREENEN
RIREDBERBAE - WHEEEREEZENRA
MEGORR I o

2015 2014

—B-RE —T N

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

At beginning of the year F) 1,097 1,588

Payment INE-N (337) (566)

Accretion during the year FEIE N 53 75

At end of the year FXR 813 1,097
Analysed for reporting purposes: PHmEEMOITOT

Current liabilities REBAG 269 320

Non-current liabilities ErE=NE 544 777

813 1,097
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

27.BORROWINGS 27. fBR
2015 2014
—E-—FF —ZE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Bank borrowings HRITIE 413,908 446,908
Debentures &% 69,195 32,696
Other borrowing HAb S 15,821 6,972
498,924 486,576
Unsecured AR 378,924 323,576
Secured BHEH 120,000 163,000
498,924 486,576
The contractual maturity dates are as follows: ERFHBELT ¢
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Within one year —FR 436,508 338,744
More than one year, but not BB —FETBBMF
exceeding two years 6,913 70,832
More than two years, but not HBBRFE AT BB T
exceeding five years 46,550 77,000
More than five years fhchak:s 8,953 -
498,924 486,576
Less: Amounts due for settlement o AR 12 ARNEENSE
within 12 months (shown FIRRRBEET)
under current liabilities) (436,508) (338,744)
Amounts shown under non-current FIRRIERE BE TSR
liabilities 62,416 147,832
The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group's AEBERNERFEZSHELT -

borrowings are as follows:

Fixed-rate borrowings ERER 4.5% - 6.4% 6.0% - 6.9%
per annum per annum
ESE:S (SEas

4.5% - 6.4% 6.0% - 6.9%
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BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

27.BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 27. AR (&)
The Group has pledged certain assets to secure loan AEEEERAETEEURTERERNE
facilities granted to the Group. The carrying values of the FEEEER BEREENREAENAT

assets pledged are as follows:

2015 2014

—B-HF —=—mfF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 192,371 198,700
Land use rights + it {F F A 101,213 103,436
293,584 302,136

28. DEFERRED INCOME 28. IEFEW A

Note a Note b Total

) MizEb #st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTTT ARETTT AREFTT

At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—PF—HF—H 2,644 5,434 8,078
Additions 10 - 3,390 3,390
Credit to profit or loss HAER (348) (1,030) (1,378)

At 31 December 2014 and ~ R=Z—pO4
1 January 2015 +=—A=+—HK

—ET—-hF—A—H 2,296 7,794 10,090

Additions 3 - 6,000 6,000
Credit to profit or loss FrAE= (350) (618) (968)

At 31 December 2015 RZZE—HF
+=-—A=+—H 1,946 13,176 15,122
Analysed for reporting purposes as: G BRI

2015 2014

—B-RF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ST T ARETFT

Current liabilities* REBREY 806 817

Non-current liabilities EMBAE 14,316 9,273

15,122 10,090
*  The carrying amount of deferred income designated for * TEEARARTZEANBARSNEE AR

expenditure which is expected to be released to profit or loss in FEIERABREED EARE

the next twelve months is classified as current.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF{=A=1—FULFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME (Cont'd)

Notes:

a. The grant represents an amount of RMB4,200,000 designated
for the expenditure on development of the recycling and purifying
facilities received in 2009 which was deferred and are credited to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives
of the related assets.

b. Grants received in relation to acquisition of certain plant and
equipment and were recorded as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and are credited to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives
of the related assets.

29. PROVISIONS

28 JEFEW A (42
Hiiz -

a.  FBEIR =TT h S UEA) AR ¥4,200,0007T
RIEE(ERERMANHEREN RS - WEIRE
FREREENTERERFHRNRERELETA

B e

b.  ZHBIREES TEE RREMUE - LER
BMBARREZ P ARIEELERA RN B EE
MTRERE B HINIRE AR AR A BAR

29. e

Warranty

Provision

ISR

RMB'000

ARBETTT

At 1 January 2014 RZE—MNFE—A—H 7,500

Additions b)) 12,528

Utilisations B3 (8,408)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZZE—NF+—A=+—HK

—ET—hHF—HA—H 11,620

Additions 18840 16,803

Utilisations Bl (11,303)

At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—AF+-_A=+—H 17,120

The warranty provision represents management’'s best
estimate of the Group’s liability under an average warranty
period of two years granted on products, based on prior
experience for defective products.

REBRFBEREEEHAKEREMBEHRNF
BRMEREMPAENRENRERDRT X
BEARREERNEHRAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:

At 1 January 2014, 31 December

2014 and 2015

30. BA

FREE. B LA L A

VERE ¢
RZE—mF—H—H -
—E-MER-FT—FE

Number of
shares

IR

Share
capital
[
HK$

BTT

+=-—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE :
At 1 January 2014 and RZZE—mF—F—HK
31 December 2014 —ZET-mF+=-A=+—H 384,000,000 38,400,000
Issue of shares (note a) BTN (B 5ta) 76,800,000 7,680,000
Issue of shares (note b) BT (KT7Eb) 92,160,000 9,216,000
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—RAF+=-_A=+—H 552,960,000 55,296,000

Share capital presented in consolidated
statement of financial position

R E AR RIIRERA

2015
—E-RF

RMB’000
ARETT

45,311

2014
—ZT—OF
RMB’'000
ARBT T

Note a: On 26 October 2015, an aggregate of 76,800,000 shares were Ktita -

allotted and issued at the placing price of HK$2.00 per share.

Note b: On 23 December 2015, an aggregate of 92,160,000 shares Hiatb -

were allotted and issued at the placing price of HK$2.00 per

share.

RZF-—RFE+tA=-FTRA  a#

76,800,000 % % 15 LA Bt & {8 & 1% 2.0075

BRET -

R=FE—FF+=-_A=+=8 -
92,160,000 /% f% 15 LA B & & & A% 2.007%

BRET -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—AF+-A=+—AULFE

31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 31.

During the year, the Group acquired 51% of equity
interest in RYNEBHBEZARBBR QA (Shenzhen
Juntour Immigration Consulting Services L|m|ted ) and
65% of equity interest in FIEBBERBAER A
(Shenzhen Crown Bridge Immigration Consulting L|m|ted*),
respectively, for total cash consideration of HK$7,241,000
(equivalent to RMB5,695,000) from an independent third
party (Acquisition 1). On 8 June 2015, the Group acquired
100% of equity interest in First Capital Group Limited,
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, First Capital Financial
Limited and First Capital Wealth Management Limited,
for total cash consideration of HK$2,112,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,660,000) from a related party, a nephew of Mr.
Wilson Sea (Acquisition 2).

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

Acquisition 1

Wit B Bt B8 22 B]
FR - NEBAEREKE7,241,000% 7T
(HHER AR¥5,695,0007T) B —&BLH
=9 lERINERBRERNRBE R
RNEls1 % RERRIEEEREANER A
AI65% A E(WHE—) - R —HFKH
NB - REBEAER S K(E2,112,0007% 7T
(FBE MW AR¥1,660,0007T ) A — 7 B B
(AWilson Seaft£RIHE ) W HEFirst Capital
Group Limited &z &2 & [ff/8B /A 7)First Capital
Financial Limited J2 First Capital Wealth
Management Limited 2 ZBRsAE (UgBE —) -

R RS RN RBEERABNT

W hE —

RMB’000
ARET T

Property, plant and equipment M - WE KRB 243
Backlog contracts* MR A #o# 4,119
Other receivables HoAth fEMGRIE 1,946
Loan receivables FEUE R 3,300
Bank balances RITAER 363
Other payables H el k08 (152)
9,819
Plus: non-controlling interests o SRR E R (4,124)
5,695
Satisfied by: B
Cash consideration paid THRERE 5,695
Net cash outflow on Acquisition 1: WEE—RFRSME
Cash consideration paid SRR ERE (5,695)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balances B PRS2 RIS SEWER
acquired 363
(5,332)

The loan receivables acquired with a fair value of
RMB3,300,000, which also represented the gross
contractual amounts and the best estimate at acquisition
date of the contractual cash flows expected to be collected.

JEUWE AN FE AR S,300,0007T 4255 -
@%EMHMBA #4858 I TEHAURER Y & H93R
/JIL:EEALIKE%EH&E’]E—{%'fﬁn-I—
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31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 31. WEBKIB A R (42)
Acquisition 2 Wig=
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMRE 10
Backlog contracts* TR A 2,754
Other receivables H{th fE U k8 2
Bank balances and cash RITESRER S 2,911
Other payables H b FE( 518 (4,017)
1,660
Satisfied by: B
Cash consideration paid SRS RE 1,660
Net cash inflow on Acquisition 2: WBE — KRR S
Cash consideration paid YRERE (1,660)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balances B FTEER e MRS S EYES
acquired 2,911
1,251

Included in the loss for the year of the Group is AAREEFEEENNARKSHEETER

approximately RMB8 million loss attributable to the ThER R E —E AR RRINERS R BB BRI

additional business generated by Acquisition 1 and BZMHARBOSEEILET - REEFE
approximately RMBO0.5 million profit attributable to WABRRENE-—FRNOARK15BET

Acquisition 2. Revenue for the year of the Group includes REWE - BENOARKE2BE T

approximately RMB1.5 million in respect of Acquisition 1

and approximately RMB2 million in respect of Acquisition 2.

The acquisition-related costs have been recognized in B AE R e Bm R 2 EREERS

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other TR

comprehensive income.

#  Backlog contracts represent consultancy services expected to t FEEREKIEMEYGETE R RN B e RS
be rendered by the two newly acquired companies post the REMFARY - RIEETKE + BRPBERE
acquisition date. Subsequent to the completion of the acquisition, AREHIEBEBEAE R EREE K ES - &
due to the changes in demand for relevant immigration and 32 [E {51 8 LA A] SEdb At 5T AR AS S BF P » Rt -
financing services along with stringent immigration control over TERE K1 2 K 88 RME R R IR -

PRC national, the management assessed that it is hardly to make
a reliable estimate on the timing the services will be delivered.
Consequently, the backlog contracts were fully written off and
recognised in the profit or loss.
*  The English name is the unofficial translation of respective *  HAXEBRABTRNEBHIEEHEZE - EHEH

Chinese name and is for identification purposes only. A% -
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32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
The minimum lease payment under operating lease in
respect of office premises amounted to RMB7,272,000
(2014: RMB5,767,000) for the year ended 31 December
2015.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

32. REHEAIE
AEBEREEA
BE—_Z—FAFE+-_A=+—HILEE
BECLEHERRADENREBEN K
BARYT, 272,000 (ZZE—MF : ARKE
5,767,0007T) °

RBEPR - ARBERETAIHHELEEE
HARREE M FAENZRIERAT

2015 2014

—EB—FF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Within one year —FR 17,969 1,362
One to two years —EWE 7,917 -
Two to three years ME=F 1,468 -
27,354 1,362

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for certain office premises and warehouses. Leases
are negotiated for original terms of 1 to 2 years with fixed

REMENFEAKERETHRIENER
BREEMNNES - HERIZ2FHER KA
BEEEE -

rental.
33.OTHER COMMITMENTS 33. HfthA&E
2015 2014
—E-—AfF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T
Capital expenditure in respect of IWEE R 2R B A S &
acquisition of plant and machinery R A
and construction costs
— Contracted for but not provided — BRI HMBRPGR A TIERE
in the consolidated financial B
statements 28,850 28,300
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34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES M. BHAIEE
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BRREMSHRERAE M D EEEIN - £
financial statements, compensation of key management ZERABFHMAOT
personnel is:
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other REBEE-_ZT—HFR-_ZTE—HEF+=A
members of key management during the years ended 31 =t+—BLFE ARREBEEREMEFEE
December 2015 and 2014 were as follows: BABWHMNAT :
2015 2014
—ET—hfF —T—mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETIT
Short-term benefits S EAE R 15,948 5,009
Post-employment benefits RIKAEF 15 47
15,963 5,056
35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 35. ERERIFHE
The employees of the Group are either members of state- REEREE BB EBMEENEHKER
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC BB EINKESREBRGIE ARG
government or members of the Mandatory Provident Fund ZIMKE - AR GBI B AR AR T ERK AN
Scheme in Hong Kong. The Company’s subsidiaries are AT B8RRI E R E B AR R R
required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll costs Be o  AEBERBRARBAENE—FEAR
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The YEHET ST TR E A o

only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes.
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

As 31 December 2015, the Company has the following
indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, subsidiaries:

Issued and fully

36. fiB A EF1E
R-E—RE+-A=+—0 BIEHE
ON - RAFIEA U TRHER A MM B AR -

Place and date of paid share/ Effective equity
incorporation/ registered interest attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment capital to the Group Principal activities Legal form
BEIR
HMBL/ Rk HERfR/
WEAFER HERAMS R AREELERRAESR TEXH EEFA
2015 2014
“E2-1f C-T-Qf
Merit leader British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
10 March 2012 50,000% 7 (directly) (drectly)  %&RER company
EBELES 100% (E#)  100%(E%) BABRAT
“Z-£=f1H
Guang Da Automotive Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
A (RE) BHTDH 14 June 2012 i AR company
BRERAT Bk ABRAT
5 FTIA
Nanyang Cijan* PRC HK$447,080,000 70% 100%  Research, development  Foreign invested
Bl R 23 June 2005 (2014: and manufacture limited liability
BRAT HE HK$170,000,000) of automobile company
“ETRERAZTEA MI08EEET shock absorberand ~ SMEREBRAT
(ZZ2-RE: suspension system
17088%7) products
REREEERRERE
REGER
Haikou Danjiang Auto PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Notyet commenced Domestic limited
Shock Absorber Company 20 March 2006 ARE1BET business liability company
Limited* el WA EE AnERA
BOFIAEHES “EEXEZAZ1A
BRAT
Way Assauto Srl Italy Euro10,000 100% 100%  Research, development  Private limited liability
EANRREE 21 June 2012 10,0008 of automobile shock ~ company
EAF absorber products  FLABBAE]
—5-—§xA=tH R ERGEER
Ordos City Cijan Auto PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Research, development ~ Domestic limited
Shock Absorber Company 14 August 2013 AREI0BET and manufacture liability company
Limited* B of automobile ARERAA
PREETRAERRES —5-=F/\F+IA shock absorber and
BRAF suspension system
products
HERBEEREERE
REfER
First Bridge Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
7 November 2014 E3 REER company
ABRNAHE ABRAT
ZE3-MET-AtA
First Capital Finance Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% N/A Investment Holding Private limited liability
Limited 29 January 2015 0EEHET (directly) TER  RERR company
BEEREEERAA Bk 100% (E$%) ABRAT

ZE-RE-AZTAA
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 36. M A RIFFE (&)

Name of subsidiary

HEAREH

Issued and fully
paid share/
registered
capital

BETR

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

HMRL/ ALK
WK A

SRk
AR

Effective equity
interest attributable
to the Group

AEEEERR RS R
2015 2014

= L

Principal activities

Legal form

EEFA

First Capital Overseas BVI USS1 100% N/A~ Investment Holding Private limited liability
Company Limited 6 January 2015 1%L (directly) NER  RERR company
BRENERAT RERIES 100% (E) RABRAT
“Z-1%-A5A
First Capital International ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% N/A~ Not yet commenced Private limited liability
Holdings Limited 23 January 2015 LEE gl business company
BRERERERLA B WRRREE MABRAT
“Z-nE-At=H
Shenzhen Fist Capital PRC - 100% N/A~ Not yet commenced Domestic Limited
International Business 22 April 2015 NER business liability company
Consulting Limited* PE MARIRES EINERAF
R EFEREEAAERAR —T-RENAZTZA
Shenzhen Juntour PRC RMB5,000,000 51% - Immigration Consulting  Domestic Limited
Immigration Consulting 27 November 2014 ARBEHET husiness liability company
Services Limited* HE BREMZR BNERAE
RMIERB R RS “EUE—A= A
BRAT
Shenzhen Crown Bridge PRC RMB5,000,000 65% - Immigration Consulting  Domestic Limited
Immigration Consulting 1 April 2014 ARESEETL business liability company
Limited* il BREMZER BNERAT
MIBBBRENERAT “T-mEMA-A
Shenzhen First Capital PRC RMB10,000,000 100% N/A~ Not yet commenced Domestic Limited
:_meme:jtional E-Commerce . .31 July 2015 AREI0BET gl h*b%sgis; . %ig;ility cqompany
imited* i HARIRE BARERAT
RIEERETEE - EFCATTE
BRAH
First Capital Group BVI US$1 100% - Not yet commenced Private limited liability
Limited 28 November 2012 (E (directly) business company
EREEARAT AERIES 100% () RS LABRAF
e i UL
First Capital Asset Hong Kong HK$6,500,000 100% - Financial Services Private limited liability
Management Limited** 4 June 2014 BEEEAT SRRE company
BRAEERBRLAM B ABRAT
—Z-RERANA
First Capital Wealth Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% - Not yet commenced Private limited liability
Management Limited 5 December 2014 500,000 business company
BRMEERERAA BB MRS RABRAT

“E-ME+-AnA
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 36. MR A RIFFE (&)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Issued and fully
paid share/
registered
capital

EBIR
BRRB/
AfRA

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

AR/ R
AR A

Effective equity
interest attributable
to the Group

AEBEGRRRAELS
2015 2014

—E-R5Ff C-Z-|F

Principal activities

IREH

Legal form

EEFR

First Capital Properties Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% N/A~ Not yet commenced Private limited liability
Limited 23 July 2015 100,000 7 TERm business company
BIMERRAT Bk WA EE ABRAT
“T-R¥tA=t=A
First Capital Securities Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% N/A~ Not yet commenced Private limited liability
Limited 23 July 2015 0EEBAT TER business company
BEESFERAT Bk WARRIES HABRAT
ZE-REtATTEA
First Capital International ~ BVI US$1 100% N/A~ Not yet commenced Private limited liability
Clean Energy Investments 16 April 2015 %7 (directly) Tam business company
Holdings Ltd EBALES 100% (E#%) HARIRES HABRAR
BREREZERRE ZE-NENATRA
BRAE
First Capital Clean Energy ~ Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 100% N/A~ Not yet commenced Private limited liability
Investments Holdings Ltd. 4 May 2015 100BE%T TER business company
BB RRRIARR B WARGEE RABRAT
BRAT “E-nERARA
First Capital International BV US$ 1 100% N/A~ Not yet commenced Private limited liability
Investments Holdings 7 September 2015 1% (directly) TER business company
Limited RERIES 100% (E$%) WA EE ABRAT
BRERRERRERLR “E-nENALA
(RRELHES)
First Capital International ~ Hong Kong - 100% N/A~ Not yet commenced Private limited liability
Investments Holdings 23 September 2015 TEA husiness company
Limited & wxmpa AABRAA
BRERRERRERAR “T-RENA=T=A
(&%)
*  The English name is the unofficial translation of respective *  AXEBREMPXEBOIETHES  EitH

Chinese name and is for identification purposes only. R ©

RZZE—ARF—A0A - KEFRARNEZEES
[EReRARAR AR EREETEARA
pIE

** The name of the subsidiary was changed from “First Capital **
Financial Limited” to “First Capital Asset Management Limited”
on 4 January 2016.

REANRBEDRR - LA HERRBEIELT
EREHES

None of the above subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities during the years or at the end of reporting period.
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37.SHARE OPTION SCHEME 37. R RECTE
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the Company’s BER-ZT—=F+A+NLBBITHAQA
special general meeting held on 19 October 2013, the ERFRASBBNERRZERE  AARH
Company approved and adopted a share option scheme (the HERERM—IBREREREI([ZarEl]) - B
“Scheme”) which will remain in force for a period of 10 M H R A BH 1+ F o ZArEIFFBENA
years from the date of its adoption. Details of the Scheme Fl AR &l | —H0 -

are set out in section titled 'Share Option Scheme' in the
annual reports.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, RBEE_Z-—HAEFR-_T—NF+=A
no share options were granted under the Scheme by the =+—HIEFE  ARREREZT 8
Company. In addition, as of 31 December 2015 and 2014, HEERRHIE o ItHN  RZT—RAFR-_FT—N
no share options under the Scheme were outstanding. F+ZA=+—8 ' 2B THE R R

(LAY BRRAE
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38.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 38 &ARMBESR

COMPANY

2015
—E-H%F

RMB’000
ARBTT

2014
—ZT—MF
RMB’000
ARETIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 2,796 -
Investment in subsidiaries/a subsidiary R %R,/ —RHEARHIRE 9,916 297
Amount due from subsidiaries (note a)  FERHI B A BB (H15a) 201,379 127,977
Available for sale investment AHEERE
— unlisted limited partnership —FLETABERERAT 69,536 65,761
Deferred expenditure IEIEE A - 480
283,627 194,515
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 NhEA R IE 2,348 -
Loan receivables FEUE S 22,750 -
Bank balances and cash IRTTEEER IR S 223,207 33,293
248,305 33,293
TOTAL ASSETS BEHAHE 531,932 227,808
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary (note a) e — R BB R BB (K ita) 4,754 17,219
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMPERFRIE 6,640 1,608
Borrowings — due within one year 2= — —F T H 6,778 3,035
18,172 21,862
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEREBERARDAERE
LIABILITIES 513,760 205,946
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREAE
Borrowings - due after one year B — —F &3 H 61,605 29,661
OWNER'’S EQUITY BB AR
Share capital N 45,311 31,318
Reserves (note b) & & (Matb) 406,844 144,967
TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY HEEAREET 452,155 176,285
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMHRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—AF T —A="1—HIFE

38.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 38. AATMEERE)
COMPANY (Cont’d)

Notes: Hiat
a. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on a. ZSEBARE - BIEHRBEREEREE -
demand.
b. Reserves b. f#E
Share Accumulated
Premium Losses Total
Bt RE Z2RER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREEFTT ARETTT ARETFTT
At 1 January 2014 RZZT—ME—F—H 186,462 (35,963) 150,499
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEEREZERY
expenses for the year - (1,030) (1,030)
At 31 December 2014 and R-Z—UF
1 January 2015 +—A=+—H~K
—EF—-hF—HF—H 186,462 (41,495) 144,967
Issue of new shares TR D 263,012 - 263,012
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AFEEEE L EHEMX
expenses for the year - (1,135) (1,135)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF
+—-HA=+—H 449,474 (42,630) 406,844
39. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 39. {EWREE
Shareholding structure change PR REZRIE B B
Up to the date of this report, there is change in the HEARERH  FERFREEBEAMN
shareholding of substantial shareholders. Details of which 28 BEFBEHNRBHER-ZE—XRF=A
are set out in the Announcement dated 28 March 2016. i AN =N: A=
Formation of joint venture RIGEE
On 24 March 2016 (after the trading hours), Nanyang Cijan RZB-—AF=ZAZTHA(RSEER) -
together with other parties agreed to form a joint venture. AEMREREMETAORRBEKLE S
Details of which are set out in the announcement dated 24 ¥ EHBHRRAHE-_ZT—X<E=A
March 2016. As of the date of issuance of these financial ZHHEBEMAE - HENETERETIER

statements, the joint venture is in the process of formation. B A FEERARKPEE -
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In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor’s
Report and Financial Information), unless the context otherwise
requires, the following expression shall have the following

meanings:

"2015 Financial Year”

"AGM”

"Articles” or “Articles of
Association”

"Board”

“BVI"

"Company”

"Director(s)"”

“GF Holding”

"Group”

"HKS$"

for the financial year ended 31
December 2015

the annual general meeting of the
Company

the Articles of Association of the
Company, as amended from time to
time

the board of Directors

the British Virgin Islands

China First Capital Group Limited
(formerly known as China Vehicle
Components Technology Holdings
Limited), an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability, the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange

the director(s) of the Company

Guolian Financial Holding Group Co.,
Limited, the Joint Venture formed by
the Company, Surrich International
Company Limited and New Citic
International Capital Co., Ltd, of which
the Company owned 35% equity
interest

the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency
for the time being of Hong Kong

RAFHA CBLAZ AR E KA BEERERIN) -
BIEXEREME  THFAEEANTEE

[Z=—1F
BHEFE |

[BERBFEAE

EENES

[ =R

[E=g)

[RBRLHE]

[AR7]]

[E%]

[ BB 2 |

[A&E

&7

BE-Z-RF1=7
=+ BLLHBERE

ARABRRBFREG

ARRITE BT NAME
e

Exg
EERIHE

TRERKRERRAA
(AR EEHEMER
BERBRAF)  —
RSB SEMKILAFZ
BEBRATE - EROR
Bt P £

ARAES

B RIERERARA
7 ARF - HNERE
BAREFTHEERER
ERRARHEKNAED
¥ ARRIEH36%RE

=)
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Glossary (Continued)
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“Independent Third Parties”

“INED(s)"

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“"Model Code"

“Nanyang Cijan"

"OEM Market"”

“Plenty Venture”

“PRC" or “China”

Persons or companies which are
independent of and not connected
with any of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the
controlling shareholders of the
Company and members of the Group
and their respective associates, and
“Independent Third Party” means any
of them

the independent non-executive
Directors

23 November 2011

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers

Nanyang Cijan Auto Shock Absorber
Co., Ltd. (FEGHRTERIRBEER
~al]) (formerly known as Nanyang
Jinguan Auto Shock Absorber Co.,
Ltd (&= RIKEAR AR,
a company established in the PRC on
23 June 2005 and a non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company

the automobile market of original
automobile manufacturers

Plenty Venture Holdings Limited
BORIEIR AR A7), a company
|ncorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on 1 July 2010, and is wholly
owned by Mr. Zhao Zhijun (an

executive Director)

the People’'s Republic of China which
excludes Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the
PRC and Taiwan

BIFE=7] 15

BAUEITES] 4

mE

[ L EH 18
[ Er#RAl 18
[MRZESTA ) 18
[FARATR 18

R EELER 18
5]

[k 15

[hE] 1

BUNARRRAEEE
REREE BB E QT
ZEMEEHEBTHA
8 BRERR - BERE
MEBENALTHRA
Ml BLE=7 115 it
AALHAF

BUFHTESF

—F—Ft-At=
H

B2 PE A AR R

IHETAERETES
){%E"] %+ﬁ,ﬁ\”

AR B RREE AR
NGIQIR T k a:
/WTJI_Y SERAR)  —H
RZBETRFEAA-+=
BEFRBEKINAT " A
ARFEREMBAR

RAERERNEm S

BRERERAR » —[H
F\fT*iEtH*EE
EE]oheg ] pRailifAvA:Y
BREERR - LHES
E(RTES)2ERF

REARLEME - ABEE
B - PEIEFBRITH
kG &
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2010, and is wholly owned by

Mr. Zhao

Zhijun (an executive Director)

“SFO"

“Shareholder(s)”

“Share Option Scheme”

"“Shares”

"Stock Exchange”

"Wealth Max"

the prospectus of the Company dated
11 November 2011

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the
PRC

Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)

the holder(s) of the Share(s)

the share option scheme adopted by
the Company pursuant to the written
resolutions of the Shareholders of the
Company passed on 19 October 2011

the ordinary shares issued by the
Company, with a nominal value of
HK$0.10 each

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Wealth Max Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability on 12 July 2010, one
of our Substantial Shareholder and
is wholly beneficially owned by Mr.
Wilson Sea (formerly known as Mr. Xi
Chunying)

AR =72 ]

[AR¥]

BH R

[FRER )

[FERUEsTE )

[t ]

(B2 P )

[Wealth Max

ARRBHA=ZE—F
+—A+—BHRRER

RRENEEEEARYE

BEREDIENEES R
BRI

BIFAA

ARARBRER T
——F+ AT AB BB
EMARRRAOBRE
st

ARRCETEREE
0.10/8 7T H E @A {0

ERBMARSMERDA

Wealth Max Holdings
Limited * —RAR=F—F
FrA+-BEEEBREX
HEFMAHAERET
DR REERRZ—
M Wilson SeaZt 4 (BIfESE
FUEE)2EERES
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